
NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days 
in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

 

 
Meeting of the 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 

AUGUST 20, 2007 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Submitted By 

      The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us


 

 

 -  -  

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 

FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 

This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 

Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 

Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 

Goals 
 

I. Enhance the livability and safety of the community  
II. Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of        

City government 
III. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment 
IV. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally 
V. Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public 

needs 
VI. Emphasize regionalism and incorporate creativity into the annual 

strategic planning process 
 

As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 

 



NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of 
the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
      

  

 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  AGENDA 

August 20, 2007 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

  

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor David Halan – Calvary Chapel of 

Oakland County 1 

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

ROLL CALL 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1  No Presentations 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Request for Outdoor Seating Area in Excess of 20 Seats – Mitchell’s Ocean Club 
2915 Coolidge (Proposed Address) 1 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 2 

D-1 Proposal to Refer Charter Revision – Section 6.2 – Vacancies in Elective Office to 
the Charter Revision Committee 2 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us


 

 

 -  -  

CONSENT AGENDA: 2 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 2 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 2 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 2 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Submitted 3 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 3 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Printing of 
City of Troy 2008 Calendar/Annual Report ........................................................... 3 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 7: Proprietary Maintenance Service Contract 
Bentley Systems, Inc. ........................................................................................... 3 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 
Specifications – Troy Daze Electrical Services ..................................................... 3 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Purchase of 
Firearms Ammunition ........................................................................................... 4 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Sidewalk 
Replacement and Installation Program ................................................................ 4 

E-5 Resolution to Excuse Mayor Pro Tem Broomfield from the Special Joint City 
Council Meeting of Wednesday, August 1, 2007 5 

E-6 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Sanitary Sewer and 
Authorization of Payment for Easement and Temporary Construction and Grading 
Permit – Patricia Willard-Bonnici Revocable Intervivos Trust and William and 
Helen Yeyna – Section 6, Sidwell #88-20-06-328-007 5 

E-7 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Water Main – Rochester 
Professional Building, LLC, Section 3, Sidwell #88-20-03-226-104 5 

E-8 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Public Utilities – 100 East 
Big Beaver, LLC, Section 27, Sidwell #88-20-27-101-060 6 

E-9 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Sidewalk – Troy Long Lake, 
LLC, Section 15, Sidwell #88-20-15-101-001 6 



 

 

 -  -  

E-10 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed and Five Permanent Easements for 
Athens Parc Site Condominium – Milano Development, Inc. Section 14, Sidwell 
#88-20-14-401-006 6 

E-11 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Storm Drain/Sewer – Norris 
and Brinda Perkins Reid, Section 4, Sidwell #88-20-04-380-010 6 

E-12 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Water Main – Suma Medical 
Properties, LLC – Section 23, Sidwell #88-20-23-401-018 7 

E-13 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed and Three Permanent Easements for 
Stone Haven Park Site Condominium – Mondrian Properties Stone Haven 
Development, LLC, Section 20, Sidwell #88-20-20-226-009, -080 and -135 7 

E-14 Winter Maintenance Agreement – Road Commission for Oakland County 7 

E-15 Request for Compensation for a Permanent Easement for Sanitary Sewer and 
Temporary Construction and Grading Permit – Amina R. Haque Revocable Trust, 
Section 6, Sidwell #88-20-06-328-008 8 

E-16 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, 
Square Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #42 – 
Sidwell #88-20-02-279-069- John G. Pappageorge and Dianne Cristina 
Pappageorge 8 

E-17 Private Agreement for Clark Gas Station, Maple and Livernois – Project No. 
05.916.3 8 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 9 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 9 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Downtown 
Development Authority b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Animal Control Appeal Board; Ethnic Issues Advisory 
Board; Historic District Commission; Historical Commission; Liquor Advisory 
Committee; Municipal Building Authority; and Parks and Recreation Board 9 

F-2 Bid Waiver – Fire Department Hose Testing 11 



 

 

 -  -  

F-3 Designation of Voting Delegates at the Annual Meeting of the Michigan Municipal 
League 12 

F-4 Personnel Evaluation – City Manager Phillip L. Nelson 12 

F-5 Reconsideration of Resolution #2007-07-205 – Standard 2007 Annual Salary 
Update for Classified and Exempt Employees and Proposed Changes to Benefit 
Package and Personnel Rules & Regulations 12 

F-6 Emergency Purchase of Firearms Ammunition 13 

F-7 Amendments to Chapter 10 – Employees Retirement System 14 

F-8 Mobile Windshield Repair 14 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 15 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 15 

a) Rezoning Application (File Number: Z-727) – Office Use, West Side of 
Rochester Road, South of De Etta – 6493 Rochester, Section 3 – R-1B to O-
1 – September 10, 2007 ..................................................................................... 15 

b) Concept Development Plan Approval – Big Beaver Place Planned Unit 
Development (PUD 8), North Side of Big Beaver, West of John R, Section 24 
– Currently Zoned R-1D (One Family Residential) District – September 10, 
2007 ................................................................................................................... 15 

c) Concept Development Plan Approval – The Oasis at Centennial Park 
Planned Unit Development (PUD 6), South Side of Long Lake and West Side 
of John R, Section 14 – Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) 
District – September 10, 2007 ............................................................................ 15 

d) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 230) – Articles X 
and XVIII – Wireless Communication Towers on School Property in the R-1A 
through R-1E (One Family Residential) and C-F (Community Facilities) 
Districts – September 10, 2007 .......................................................................... 15 

G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 15 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 15 

H-1 Charter Revision Committee Referral – 2007-08 Property Tax Reduction 
Requested by Council Member Martin Howrylak 15 



 

 

 -  -  

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 15 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 15 

REPORTS: 16 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 16 

a) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – June 5, 2007 ........................................... 16 
b) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – June 6, 2007 ............. 16 

c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – June 6, 2007 ............. 16 
d) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – July 10, 2007 ........................................... 16 

e) Library Advisory Board/Final – June 14, 2007 .................................................... 16 
f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – July 11, 2007 .......... 16 
g) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – July 24, 2007 ................................ 16 
h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – July 24, 2007 ................................ 16 

i) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – July 31, 2007 ................................ 16 
j) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – July 31, 2007 ................................ 16 

k) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – August 1, 2007 .................................... 16 

J-2 Department Reports: 16 

a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of July, 2007 ............. 16 

b) Police Department – 2007 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service Report .......... 16 
c) City of Troy Employees Retirement System Forty-Third Annual Actuarial 

Valuation – December 31, 2006 ......................................................................... 16 
d) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting BidNet On-Line Auction – 

Generators, Televisions, Display Case, and Vehicles – May/June, 2007 .......... 16 
e) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting BidNet On-Line Auction – 

Computers, Stacking Chairs, File Cabinets, and Card Tables – July, 2007 ....... 16 

f) City of Troy Retirement System – Summary Annual Report to Members – 
December 31, 2006 ............................................................................................ 16 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 16 

a) Letter of Thanks to Carol Anderson from Bethany Mosshart Regarding the 
Parks and Recreation Staff and Activities .......................................................... 16 

b) Telephone Call to Police Staff from Rosanne MecIsaac Regarding Assistance 
Received from Officer Kris Maczka .................................................................... 16 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 16 

J-5  Calendar 16 

J-6  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission – Notice of 
Hearing for Gas Customers of Consumers Energy Company Case No. U-14716-R16 



 

 

 -  -  

STUDY ITEMS: 17 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 17 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 17 

CLOSED SESSION: 17 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 17 

ADJOURNMENT 17 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 18 

Monday, September 10, 2007 ................................................................................. 18 

1. Rezoning Application (File Number: Z-727) – Office Use, West Side of 
Rochester Road, South of De Etta – 6493 Rochester, Section 3 – R-1B to O-
1 ......................................................................................................................... 18 

2. Concept Development Plan Approval – Big Beaver Place Planned Unit 
Development (PUD 8), North Side of Big Beaver, West of John R, Section 24 
– Currently Zoned R-1D (One Family Residential) District ................................. 18 

3. Concept Development Plan Approval – The Oasis at Centennial Park 
Planned Unit Development (PUD 6), South Side of Long Lake and West Side 
of John R, Section 14 – Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) 
District ................................................................................................................ 18 

4. Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 230) – Articles X 
and XVIII – Wireless Communication Towers on School Property in the R-1A 
through R-1E (One Family Residential) and C-F (Community Facilities) 
Districts ............................................................................................................... 18 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 18 

Monday, September 10, 2007 Regular City Council .............................................. 18 
Monday, September 17, 2007 Regular City Council .............................................. 18 

Monday, October 1, 2007 Regular City Council .................................................... 18 
Monday, October 15, 2007 Regular City Council .................................................. 18 

Monday, November 12, 2007 Regular City Council ............................................... 18 
Monday, November 19, 2007 Regular City Council ............................................... 18 

Monday, December 3, 2007 Regular City Council ................................................. 18 
Monday, December 17, 2007 Regular City Council ............................................... 18 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 20, 2007 

 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor David Halan – Calvary Chapel 

of Oakland County 

CALL TO ORDER: 

ROLL CALL  

(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

 
(b) Excuse Absent Council Members 
 

 CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1  No Presentations 
 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Request for Outdoor Seating Area in Excess of 20 Seats – Mitchell’s Ocean Club 

2915 Coolidge (Proposed Address) 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Don Waller, 
representing Mitchell’s Ocean Club Restaurant, for Special Use Approval for an outdoor 
seating area for 80 seats as part of the construction of a new restaurant at the southwest 
corner of Big Beaver Road and Coolidge, proposed address 2915 Coolidge, for a period not to 
exceed 2 years, in accordance with Section 26.30.03 of the Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 39 of 
the Code of the City of Troy; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Mitchell’s Ocean Club Restaurant MAY APPLY for a 2-
year continuance prior to the expiration of this appeal. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 20, 2007 

 

- 2 - 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Proposal to Refer Charter Revision – Section 6.2 – Vacancies in Elective Office to 

the Charter Revision Committee 
 
Pending Resolution  
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by Howrylak    
Seconded by Lambert  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REFERS proposed Charter Revision to Section 6.2 
– Vacancies in Elective Office to the Charter Revision Committee for further review. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  

 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 

presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08-  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 20, 2007 

 

- 3 - 

RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of August 6, 2007 

be APPROVED as submitted. 
 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Submitted 
 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Printing of City of 

Troy 2008 Calendar/Annual Report                      
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
 
WHEREAS, On July 10, 2006, a contract to provide Printing and Design Services to mail 
40,000 copies of the 2007 City calendar with an option to renew for the 2008 calendar was 
awarded to University Lithoprinters, Inc. of Ann Arbor, MI, the vendor with the highest weighted 
final score, as a result of a best value process (Resolution #2006-07-290-E-4b); and 
 
WHEREAS, University Lithoprinters, Inc. has agreed to exercise the option to renew for the 
2008 City calendar under the same prices, terms, and conditions; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to 
renew the contract for the 2008 calendar with University Lithoprinters, Inc. to provide printing, 
design and distribution of the 2008 City calendar for an estimated total cost of $33,825.00, plus 
$2,310.00 for the reply card insert, under the same contract prices, terms, and conditions as 
the original contract, to expire upon successful delivery of the 2008 calendars, in accordance 
with contract requirements; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That City Management INTENDS to sell advertising in excess of 
$14,000.00 to help offset the costs to produce the calendar/annual report. 
 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 7: Proprietary Maintenance Service Contract 

Bentley Systems, Inc.                      
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Proprietary Maintenance Service 
Contract to provide software maintenance for Microstation, InRoads, InRoads Survey, 
PowerSurvey and InRoads Storm and Sanitary Sewer software through July 13, 2008 to 
Bentley Systems, Inc., 685 Stockton Drive, Exton, PA 19341 for an estimated total cost of 
$18,687.50. 
 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Troy Daze Electrical Services                      
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 20, 2007 

 

- 4 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a three-year contract to furnish all 
electrical services for the Troy Daze Festival to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, 
Winiarski Electric of Fowlerville, MI, for an estimated three-year total cost of $31,000.00, plus a 
materials allowance of $3,250.00 and other work as assigned at the rate of $60.00 per hour; 
and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the bidder’s submission 
of proper contract and bid documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements. 
 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Purchase of Firearms 

Ammunition                      
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to furnish one-year 
requirements of ammunition to the low bidders:  Michigan Police Equipment of Charlotte, MI, 
Michigan Ammo Co., Inc. of Ecorse, MI, TJ Conevera's, Inc. of Rockford IL, and CMP 
Distributors, Inc. of Lansing MI, at unit prices as contained on the bid tabulation opened July 

24, 2007, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with 
contracts expiring August 20, 2008; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REJECTS bids for lead-free .223 
caliber, duty carry Cor-Bon .40 caliber, and duty carry 12 gauge shotgun ammunitions due to 
budgetary limitations. 
 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Sidewalk Replacement 

and Installation Program                      
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to complete the Sidewalk 
Replacement and Installation Program for 2007/08 with an option to renew for two additional 
one-year periods to the low total bidder, Viking Construction, Inc. of Warren, MI, at unit prices 

contained in the bid tabulation opened July 19, 2007, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting, the cost of which shall not exceed budgetary limitations; 
and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements.  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 20, 2007 

 

- 5 - 

 

E-5 Resolution to Excuse Mayor Pro Tem Broomfield from the Special Joint City 

Council Meeting of Wednesday, August 1, 2007  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Mayor Pro Tem 
Broomfield at the Special Joint City Council Meeting of August 1, 2007 due to being out of the 
county.  
 

E-6 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Sanitary Sewer and 

Authorization of Payment for Easement and Temporary Construction and Grading 

Permit – Patricia Willard-Bonnici Revocable Intervivos Trust and William and 

Helen Yeyna – Section 6, Sidwell #88-20-06-328-007  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for Sanitary 
Sewer from Patricia Willard-Bonnici individually and as trustee of the Patricia Willard-Bonnici 
Revocable Trust dated November 4, 2000, and William and Helen Yeyna owners of the 
property having Sidwell #88-20-06-328-007; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council AUTHORIZES payment in the amount of 
$13,330.00 for the easement and $6,670.00 for the temporary construction and grading permit, 
plus closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Permanent 

Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

E-7 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Water Main – Rochester 

Professional Building, LLC, Section 3, Sidwell #88-20-03-226-104  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for Water 
Main from property owner Rochester Professional Building, LLC, having Sidwell #88-20-03-
226-104; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 20, 2007 

 

- 6 - 

E-8 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Public Utilities – 100 East Big 

Beaver, LLC, Section 27, Sidwell #88-20-27-101-060  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for Public 
Utilities from 100 East Big Beaver, LLC, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-27-101-
060; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

E-9 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Sidewalk – Troy Long Lake, 

LLC, Section 15, Sidwell #88-20-15-101-001  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for Sidewalk 
from Troy Long Lake, LLC, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-15-101-001; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

E-10 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed and Five Permanent Easements for 

Athens Parc Site Condominium – Milano Development, Inc. Section 14, Sidwell 

#88-20-14-401-006  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Warranty Deed for right-of-way and 
five Permanent Easements for storm sewer, tree-line preservation, drainage, sanitary sewer, 
and public utilities from Milano Development, Inc., owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-
14-401-006; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easements and Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy 

of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

E-11 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Storm Drain/Sewer – Norris 

and Brinda Perkins Reid, Section 4, Sidwell #88-20-04-380-010 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 20, 2007 

 

- 7 - 

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for Storm 
Drain/Sewer from Norris and Brinda Perkins Reid, owners of the property having Sidwell #88-
20-04-380-010; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

E-12 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Water Main – Suma Medical 

Properties, LLC – Section 23, Sidwell #88-20-23-401-018  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for Water 
Main from Suma Medical Properties, LLC owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-23-401-
018; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

E-13 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed and Three Permanent Easements for 

Stone Haven Park Site Condominium – Mondrian Properties Stone Haven 

Development, LLC, Section 20, Sidwell #88-20-20-226-009, -080 and -135 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Warranty Deed for right-of-way and 
three Permanent Easements for storm sewer and surface drainage, sanitary sewer and public 
utilities, and sidewalk from Mondrian Properties Stone Haven Development, LLC, owner of the 
property having Sidwell #88-20-20-226-009, -080 and -135; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easements and Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy 

of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

E-14 Winter Maintenance Agreement – Road Commission for Oakland County  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Winter Maintenance Agreement 
between the Road Commission for Oakland County and the City of Troy for Snow and Ice 
Control of certain primary and local roads, which are described and outlined in Exhibit A, and 

the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the agreement, a copy of which shall 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 20, 2007 

 

- 8 - 

be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting and is authorized by the provisions of 
1951 PA 51 (MCL 247.651 et seq.).  
 

E-15 Request for Compensation for a Permanent Easement for Sanitary Sewer and 

Temporary Construction and Grading Permit – Amina R. Haque Revocable Trust, 

Section 6, Sidwell #88-20-06-328-008  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council AUTHORIZES payment in the amount of $8,310.00 plus 
costs for the sanitary sewer easement and temporary construction and grading permit to Amina 
R. Haque, as Trustee of the Amina R. Haque Revocable Trust, owner of the property having 
Sidwell #88-20-06-328-008. 
 

E-16 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, 

Square Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #42 – 

Sidwell #88-20-02-279-069- John G. Pappageorge and Dianne Cristina 

Pappageorge  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between John G. Pappageorge and Dianne Cristina Pappageorge, owners of 
property having Sidwell #88-20-02-279-069, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-
way for John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard in the amount of 
$23,900.00, plus closing costs; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department is hereby 

AUTHORIZED to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase according to 
the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Warranty 

Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

E-17 Private Agreement for Clark Gas Station, Maple and Livernois – Project No. 

05.916.3  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and Bala / Ramana for 
the installation of paving, sidewalks, storm sewer, sanitary sewer, landscaping and soil erosion 

on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 20, 2007 

 

- 9 - 

execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 

questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 11 “F”.  

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Downtown 

Development Authority b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 

Persons with Disabilities; Animal Control Appeal Board; Ethnic Issues Advisory 

Board; Historic District Commission; Historical Commission; Liquor Advisory 

Committee; Municipal Building Authority; and Parks and Recreation Board      

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 

(a)  Mayoral Appointments   
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 20, 2007 

 

- 10 - 

 

Downtown Development Authority 
Appointed by  Mayor (13-Regular) –  4-Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/2011 

 
 Term Expires 09/30/2011 

 
 Term Expires 09/30/2011 

 

(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following person(s) to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 

 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities  
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) – 3 Year Terms 
 

(Alternate) Term Expires 11/01/09 

 

Animal Control Appeal Board 
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 

 Term Expires 09/30/10 

 
 Term Expires 09/30/10 

 

Ethnic Issues Advisory Board 
Appointed by Council (9-Regular) – 2 & 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/09 - 2 Year Term 

 
 Term Expires 09/30/09 - 2 Year Term 

 
 Term Expires 09/30/09 - 2 Year Term 

 
 Term Expires 09/30/09 - 2 Year Term 

 

Historic District Commission  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 03/01/10 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 20, 2007 

 

- 11 - 

 

Historical Commission  
Appointed by Council  (7- Regular) 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/31/10 

 

Liquor Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 

 
 Term Expires 09/20/10 

 

Municipal Building Authority  
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 01/31/09 

 

Parks & Recreation Board  
Appointed by Council  (7-Regular) – 3 Year Terms; (1-Troy School Board) – 1 Year Term;  
(1-Troy Daze Committee) – 1 Year Term; (1-Advisory Committee for Sr. Citizens) – 1 Year 
Term 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/10 

 
 Term Expires 09/30/10 

 
 Term Expires 09/30/10 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

F-2 Bid Waiver – Fire Department Hose Testing 

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, Fire hose testing is a required part of providing fire protection;   
 
WHEREAS, Outsourcing fire hose testing provides more training time for firefighters and 
reduces apparatus maintenance repair costs; and 
 
WHEREAS, FireCATT is the sole provider of this service in southeast Michigan; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 

procedures and APPROVES a contract to utilize the services of FireCATT of Troy, MI, for fire 
hose testing at an estimated total cost of $13,000.00; and 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 20, 2007 

 

- 12 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor 
submission of proper insurance certificate(s), as required. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

F-3 Designation of Voting Delegates at the Annual Meeting of the Michigan Municipal 

League 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DESIGNATES _________________________  as 

Principal Official Representative (Official Voting Delegate) and hereby DESIGNATES 
________________________ as the Alternate Official Representative (Official Alternate Voting 
Delegate) to cast the vote of the City of Troy at the Annual Business Meeting of the Michigan 
Municipal League to be held September 18 through September 20, 2007 in Acme, Michigan.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

F-4 Personnel Evaluation – City Manager Phillip L. Nelson 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the annual compensation of Council Appointee Phillip L. Nelson, City 

Manager, is INCREASED by    %, EFFECTIVE July 28, 2007. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

F-5 Reconsideration of Resolution #2007-07-205 – Standard 2007 Annual Salary 

Update for Classified and Exempt Employees and Proposed Changes to Benefit 

Package and Personnel Rules & Regulations  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RECONSIDERS Resolution #2007-07-205, Moved 
by Beltramini, and Seconded by Stine, as it appears below: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 20, 2007 

 

- 13 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 2007 Annual Salary 
Update for Classified and Exempt Employees and proposed Changes to Benefit 
Package and Personnel Rules & Regulations. 
 

           Yes:     Stine, Schilling, Beltramini 
           No:     Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak  

Absent:  Lambert  
 

Or 

 

Substitution Resolution 

 

RESOLVED, That active motion be AMENDED by SUBSTITUTION in its entirety with the 
following language: 
 

RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby denies the revision to the 
2007 Classified and Exempt Classification Plans. 
 

Yes: 
No: 
 

F-6 Emergency Purchase of Firearms Ammunition  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Police department pre-reserved 100,000 rounds of .223 caliber 
ammunition from the vendor who holds the contract with the State of Michigan MiDEAL 
Program, Michigan Police Equipment; 
 
WHEREAS, Michigan Police Equipment indicates delivery is not eminent and would not be 
available until January 2008; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ammunition is required to complete the transition training to the new patrol rifle 
platform and allow the rifles to be placed into service; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONFIRMS a purchase 
made for .223 caliber ammunition with Jerry’s Sports Center of Forest City, PA, at an estimated 
cost of $31,882.50, plus freight. 
 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 20, 2007 

 

- 14 - 

 

F-7 Amendments to Chapter 10 – Employees Retirement System  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amendment to Chapter 10, 
Sections 6, 9, 54 and 55 as recommended by City Management and Employees Retirement 

Board, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

F-8 Mobile Windshield Repair 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

(a)  Proposed Resolution – Authorizing Preparation of Procedure to Permit Mobile 

Windshield Repairs  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City Management and the City 
Attorney’s office to prepare a procedure to permit mobile windshield repair in parking lots. 
 

Or 
 

(b)  Proposed Resolution – No Action on Mobile Windshield Repairs  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES no action on mobile windshield 
repair in parking lots.   
 
Yes: 
No: 

 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 20, 2007 

 

- 15 - 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  

a) Rezoning Application (File Number: Z-727) – Office Use, West Side of Rochester Road, 
South of De Etta – 6493 Rochester, Section 3 – R-1B to O-1 – September 10, 2007  

b) Concept Development Plan Approval – Big Beaver Place Planned Unit Development 
(PUD 8), North Side of Big Beaver, West of John R, Section 24 – Currently Zoned R-1D 
(One Family Residential) District – September 10, 2007  

c) Concept Development Plan Approval – The Oasis at Centennial Park Planned Unit 
Development (PUD 6), South Side of Long Lake and West Side of John R, Section 14 – 
Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District – September 10, 2007  

d) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 230) – Articles X and XVIII – 
Wireless Communication Towers on School Property in the R-1A through R-1E (One 
Family Residential) and C-F (Community Facilities) Districts – September 10, 2007     
   

G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 Charter Revision Committee Referral – 2007-08 Property Tax Reduction Requested 

by Council Member Martin Howrylak     

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the Charter Revision Committee to draft 
ballot language for City Council consideration to amend Section 9.16 of the City Charter to 
reduce the property tax limit to that which is being levied in fiscal year 2007-08. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced    
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 20, 2007 

 

- 16 - 

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  

a) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – June 5, 2007 

b) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – June 6, 2007  

c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – June 6, 2007  

d) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – July 10, 2007 

e) Library Advisory Board/Final – June 14, 2007  

f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – July 11, 2007 

g) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – July 24, 2007  

h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – July 24, 2007 

i) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – July 31, 2007  

j) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – July 31, 2007 

k) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – August 1, 2007 
 

J-2 Department Reports:   

a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of July, 2007 

b) Police Department – 2007 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service Report 

c) City of Troy Employees Retirement System Forty-Third Annual Actuarial Valuation – 
December 31, 2006   

d) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting BidNet On-Line Auction – Generators, 
Televisions, Display Case, and Vehicles – May/June, 2007 

e) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting BidNet On-Line Auction – Computers, 
Stacking Chairs, File Cabinets, and Card Tables – July, 2007  

f) City of Troy Retirement System – Summary Annual Report to Members – December 31, 
2006  

 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  

a) Letter of Thanks to Carol Anderson from Bethany Mosshart Regarding the Parks and 
Recreation Staff and Activities  

b) Telephone Call to Police Staff from Rosanne MecIsaac Regarding Assistance Received 
from Officer Kris Maczka    

 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:   
 

J-5  Calendar 
 

J-6  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission – Notice of 

Hearing for Gas Customers of Consumers Energy Company Case No. U-14716-R 

 

campbellld
Text Box



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 20, 2007 

 

- 17 - 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 

have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 20, 2007 

 

- 18 - 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

Monday, September 10, 2007 
1. Rezoning Application (File Number: Z-727) – Office Use, West Side of Rochester 

Road, South of De Etta – 6493 Rochester, Section 3 – R-1B to O-1 
2. Concept Development Plan Approval – Big Beaver Place Planned Unit 

Development (PUD 8), North Side of Big Beaver, West of John R, Section 24 – 
Currently Zoned R-1D (One Family Residential) District  

3. Concept Development Plan Approval – The Oasis at Centennial Park Planned 
Unit Development (PUD 6), South Side of Long Lake and West Side of John R, 
Section 14 – Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District  

4. Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 230) – Articles X and 
XVIII – Wireless Communication Towers on School Property in the R-1A through 
R-1E (One Family Residential) and C-F (Community Facilities) Districts  

 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, September 10, 2007 ................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, September 17, 2007 ................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, October 1, 2007 .......................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, October 15, 2007 ........................................................ Regular City Council 

Monday, November 12, 2007 .................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, November 19, 2007 .................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, December 3, 2007 ...................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, December 17, 2007 .................................................... Regular City Council 

 



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

August 20, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 

 
CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 No Presentations  

campbellld
Text Box
A-01



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

August 20, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 

 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items  

campbellld
Text Box
B-01



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
August 10, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/ Economic Development Services 

Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:   Public Hearing  

Request for outdoor seating area in excess of 20 seats 
Mitchell’s Ocean Club – 2915 Coolidge (proposed address) 

 
 
 
Background:  
  
• We have received an application from Don Waller, representing Mitchell’s Ocean Club Restaurant, 

for approval for an outdoor seating area for 80 seats as part of the construction of a new 
restaurant at the southwest corner of Big Beaver Road and Coolidge.  This property is in the O-S-
C (Office Service Commercial) Zoning District.  Section 26.30.03 of the Zoning Ordinance allows 
outdoor seating in conjunction with restaurant uses in the O-S-C district subject to Special Use 
Approval before City Council (in place of the Planning Commission).   

 
• The indoor seating proposed at the restaurant is 300.  They propose to add another 80 seats 

outside.  The Planning Commission, at their meeting of June 26, 2007, as part of the Special Use 
Approval for the freestanding restaurant, considered the total seating capacity for this facility and 
found that the parking spaces dedicated for this use within the overall parking lot for the office 
development was sufficient per Section 40.20.12.  A copy of their minutes is enclosed for your 
reference.  The outdoor dining area is proposed to be enclosed by a railing system as indicated on 
the plans and is intended to be accessed only by going through the restaurant. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations regarding this matter. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 Public hearing notices for the special use approval were sent as required by the Troy Zoning 

Ordinance and the State of Michigan Municipal Planning Act. 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Enhance the livability and safety of the Community (Goal I) 
 Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment (Goal III). 

 
Options: 
 
 City Council can approve the request. 
 City Council can deny the request. 
 City Council can approve the request with conditions. 















PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JUNE 26, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Mr. Miller reported on the Smart Growth Readiness Assessment Tool (SGRAT) 
Workshop held on June 21, 2007, as part of the public input efforts for the Master 
Plan. 

 
POSTPONED ITEM 

 
8. SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 351) – Proposed Mitchell’s Ocean Club Restaurant, 

Southwest corner of Big Beaver and Coolidge, Section 30, Zoned O-S-C (Office-
Service-Commercial) District 
 
Mr. Miller summarized the changes made to the site plan since the June 12, 2007 
Regular meeting. 
 
Larry Nemer, 4559 Raune Drive, Bloomfield Hills, described the project. 
 
Mark Knauer, Project Architect, Knauer, Inc., 720 N. Waukegan Road, Deerfield, IL, 
described the project and presented building materials. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-111 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the 
total number of required parking spaces to 2,871 when a total of 3,228 spaces are 
required on the site based on the off-street parking space requirements for offices 
and restaurants, as per Article XL.  This 357 space reduction meets the standards 
of Article 40.20.12 given the parking demands of the restaurant and office 
complex. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site 
Plan Approval, pursuant to Section 26.30.05 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested 
for the proposed Ocean Club Restaurant, located on the southwest corner of Big 
Beaver and Coolidge, in Section 30, within the O-S-C zoning district, is hereby 
granted. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Strat, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Kerwin noted that the applicant was very responsive and did a great job 
addressing Planning Commission concerns. 









 
Date August 16, 2007 

 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 

 
FROM: Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 
SUBJECT: Resolution to Refer Charter Revision Proposal to Charter Revision 

Committee 
  
Background: 
 

City Council made a motion to postpone a resolution to Refer Charter Revision Proposal to 
Charter Revision Committee at their Regular meeting of August 6, 2007 
 

Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2007-08-235 
Moved by Broomfield     
Seconded by Howrylak   
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES the resolution to refer 
Charter Revision Proposal to Section 6.2 – Vacancies in Elective Office to the 
Charter Revision Committee for further review until the Regular City Council 
meeting scheduled for Monday, August 20, 2007. 
 
Yes:  All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  

 
In addition to the Charter Revision Committee recommended resolution, City Administration 
has prepared several resolutions to assist Council as well as a proposed resolution, as 
requested by Councilmember Howrylak, to remove the 1994 Charter Amendment to Section 
6.2(g). 
 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 

There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  

campbellld
Text Box
D-01



There are no policy considerations associated with this item. 
 
Options: 
 

Attached are five (5) resolutions for Council’s convenience. The first resolution is the Active 
motion before Council.  
 

• Should Council wish to consider the failed resolution from the previous 
Council meeting, a Substitute Amendment resolution would be required as 
provided as Substitute Resolution A, as well as Reconsideration Resolution B. 

 
• Should Council wish to consider one of the additionally provided resolutions 

(Resolutions a, b, or c) Substitute Amendment resolution C should be moved.  
 

The Substitute Amendment and Reconsideration resolutions will require an affirmative vote 
of 4 members of Council for passage. The final resolution for placement of a Charter 
question on the ballot will require an affirmative vote of 5 members of Council. 
 

 



ACTIVE MOTION: 
 
RESOLUTION TO REFER CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL TO CHARTER REVISION 
COMMITTEE 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Howrylak    
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REFERS proposed Charter Revision to Section 6.2 – 
Vacancies in Elective Office to the Charter Revision Committee for further review. 
 
Yes:   
No:  
Absent:   
lori 
 
ADDITIONAL PROPOSED MOTIONS: 

A. SUBSTITUTION RESOLUTION: 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That active motion be AMENDED by SUBSTITUTION in its entirety with the 
following language: 

B. RECONSIDERATION MOTION: 
 
RESOLVED, That Resolution #2007-08-234, as it appears below be RECONSIDERED by 
City Council: 

 
F-5 Charter Revision Committee Recommendation – Amendment to the 

Troy City Charter Section 6.2(g) – Vacancies in Elective Office 
 

Resolution #2007-08-234 
Moved by Lambert   
Seconded by Broomfield  

 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES as to form the 
following proposed Charter Amendment for the November 6, 2007 City 
General Election: 

 
A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 6.2 – 
VACANCIES IN ELECTIVE OFFICE 

 
Shall Section 6.2 (g) of the City of Troy Charter, which provides that “Any City 
Council member desiring to become a candidate for any City elective office, 



except to succeed oneself, shall resign from the Council prior to the filing 
deadline of the municipal election”, be deleted in its entirety?   

 
YES ___ NO ___ 

 
Yes:  Howrylak, Lambert, Beltramini, Broomfield  
No:   Stine, Schilling 
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION FAILED 

 

C. SUBSTITUTION RESOLUTION: 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That Resolution #2007-08-234, be AMENDED by SUBSTITUTION in its entirety 
with the following language: 
 
CHOOSE ONE OF THE FOLLOWING: 

a. CITY ADMINISTRATION ORIGINAL PROPOSED BALLOT 
WORDING: 

 
A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 6.2 – 
VACANCIES IN ELECTIVE OFFICE 
 
Shall Section 6.2 of the Troy Charter, which discusses vacancies in elective office, 
be revised to allow members of Council, whose terms are expiring at the next 
municipal election, to file for an office other than their own without resigning from 
Council by deleting the wording of the current Section 6.2(g) in its entirety and 
inserting “Any member of City Council whose term is not expiring at the next 
municipal election, filing a petition for any City elective office, except to succeed 
oneself, shall resign from their current Council position prior to the filling deadline 
of the municipal election.”? 
 
YES ___ NO ___ 

 
OR 



 

b. CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
 

A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 6.2 – 
VACANCIES IN ELECTIVE OFFICE 
 
Shall Section 6.2 of the Troy Charter, regarding vacancies in elective office, be 
amended  to allow members of Council, whose terms are expiring at the next 
municipal election, to file for an office (other than their own) without resigning from 
Council by deleting the wording of current Section 6.2(g) in its entirety and 
inserting “Any member of City Council whose term is not expiring at the next 
municipal election, filing a petition for any City elective office, except to succeed 
oneself, shall resign their current Council position at least 21 days before filing for 
municipal election.”? 
 
YES ___ NO ___ 

 
OR 
 

c. COUNCILMEMBER HOWRYLAK’S RECOMMENDED MOTION TO 
DELETE 1994 CHARTER AMENDMENT: 

 
A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 6.2 – 
VACANCIES IN ELECTIVE OFFICE 
 
Shall Section 6.2 (g) of the City of Troy Charter, which provides that “Any City 
Council member desiring to become a candidate for any City elective office, except 
to succeed oneself, shall resign from the Council prior to the filing deadline of the 
municipal election”, be deleted in its entirety?   
 
YES ___ NO ___ 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 6, 2007 

 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, August 6, 2007, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:31 PM. 
 
Pastor Steve Zarrilli of Woodside Bible Church gave the Invocation and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling  
Robin Beltramini  
Mayor Pro Tem Cristina Broomfield  
Wade Fleming (Absent) 
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 
 

Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Member Fleming  

 
Resolution #2007-08-231 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Lambert  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Council Member 
Fleming at the Regular City Council meeting of Monday, August 6, 2007 due to being out of the 
county.  
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield  

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 No Presentations  
 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 231) – Article XXVIII – 

Restaurants in the M-1 Light Industrial District 

 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
Norm Johnson-Support 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the public. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 6, 2007 

 

- 2 - 

Resolution #2007-08-232 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Article XXVIII (M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL 
DISTRICT) of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, pertaining to permitting restaurants subject to 
Special Use Approval in the M-1 District, to read as written in the proposed Zoning Ordinance 
Text Amendment (ZOTA 231), City Council Public Hearing Draft, as recommended by the 
Planning Commission contingent upon adding “only” after “restaurant” in Section 28.30.11 B. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2007-08-233 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield 
 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Resolution #2007-08-233-E-2  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of July 23, 2007 

and the 7:30 PM Special Joint City Council Meeting of August 1, 2007 be APPROVED as 
corrected. 
 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted 
 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 6, 2007 

 

- 3 - 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Emergency 

Medical Services           
 
Resolution #2007-08-233-E-4a 
 
WHEREAS, On June 2, 2003, a three-year contract to provide emergency medical services 
with an option to renew for three additional one-year periods was awarded to the low bidder 
submitting the best value proposal, Alliance Mobile Health for an estimated cost of $463,623.00 
per year at unit prices contained in the tabulation opened January 31, 2003 {Resolution #2003-
06-281};  
 
WHEREAS, The first of three one-year options was exercised and approved by Troy City 
Council on September 18, 2006, under the same pricing structure, terms, and conditions as the 
original contract {Resolution #2006-09-369}; and  
 
WHEREAS, Alliance Mobile Health has agreed to exercise the second option to renew for one 
year under the same terms and conditions with a rate increase of 3%; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to 
renew the contract for one additional year with Alliance Mobile Health of Troy, MI, to provide 
Emergency Medical Services for an estimated total cost of $500,000.00 per year under the 
same pricing structure, terms, and conditions as the original contract to expire September 30, 
2008, which allows for a 3% rate increase, in accordance with the Consumer Price Index 
Inflation Calculator.  
 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Patrol Rifles and 

Accessories           
 
Resolution #2007-08-233-E-4b 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to purchase fifty (50) Smith & 
Wesson M&P 15 Patrol Rifles to the low bidder, Michigan Police Equipment Company of 
Charlotte, MI, for an estimated total cost of $43,650.00, at unit prices as contained on the bid 

tabulation opened June 20, 2007, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes 
of this meeting; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REJECTS Proposals A and B for 
accessories due to budgetary limitations. 
 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Bare Root Street Trees           
 
Resolution #2007-08-233-E-4c 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide and install 2500 
bare root residential ROW trees and furnish 200 bare root trees for the golf courses without 
installation to the low bidder, Marine City Nursery of Marine City, MI, at $72.00 and $52.00 per 
tree respectively, in accordance with the bid tabulation opened May 22, 2007, a copy of which 

shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 6, 2007 

 

- 4 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements.  
 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – Troy 

Community Coalition           
 
Resolution #2007-08-233-E-4d 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby GRANTS approval to expend funds budgeted in 
the 2007/2008 fiscal year to the Troy Community Coalition to provide community services to 
prevent drug and alcohol abuse in the amount of $100,000.00, and the Mayor and City Clerk 

are AUTHORIZED to execute the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 07-5 – 14 Mile 

 Road Meter Chamber Rehabilitation           
 
Resolution #2007-08-233-E-4e 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS Contract No. 07-5, 14 Mile Road Meter 
Chamber Rehabilitation, to Trojan Development Company, Inc., 2260 Metamora Road, Oxford, 
MI 48371, at an estimated total cost of $87,200.00; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 

requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost. 
 

E-5 Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Sidewalk – Belal and Shahida Hossain 

Ghazi – Section 23, Sidwell #88-20-23-377-038  
 
Resolution #2007-08-233-E-5 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for Sidewalk 
from property owners Belal Hossain Ghazi and Shahida Hossain Ghazi, having Sidwell #88-20-
23-377-038; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

E-6 Agreement to Provide Fleet Maintenance Services - SOCWA  
 
Resolution #2007-08-233-E-6 
 

RESOLVED, That City Council hereby APPROVES the Interlocal Service Agreement for the 
City of Troy to provide fleet maintenance services to SOCWA, and the Mayor and City Clerk 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 6, 2007 

 

- 5 - 

are AUTHORIZED to execute the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

E-7 Service Agreement for Use of Vehicle – City of Clawson  
 
Resolution #2007-08-233-E-7 
 

RESOLVED, That City Council hereby APPROVES the Interlocal Service Agreement for the 
City of Troy to provide use of vehicle to the City of Clawson, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 

AUTHORIZED to execute the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 

The meeting RECESSED at 8:32 PM. 
 

The meeting RECONVENED at 8:41PM. 
 

F-5 Charter Revision Committee Recommendation – Amendment to the Troy City 

Charter Section 6.2(g) – Vacancies in Elective Office 

 
Resolution #2007-08-234 
Moved by Lambert   
Seconded by Broomfield  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES as to form the following proposed 
Charter Amendment for the November 6, 2007 City General Election: 
 

A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 6.2 – 

VACANCIES IN ELECTIVE OFFICE 
 
Shall Section 6.2 (g) of the City of Troy Charter, which provides that “Any 
City Council member desiring to become a candidate for any City elective 
office, except to succeed oneself, shall resign from the Council prior to the 
filing deadline of the municipal election”, be deleted in its entirety?   
 
YES ___ NO ___ 

 
Yes: Howrylak, Lambert, Beltramini, Broomfield  
No: Stine, Schilling 
Absent: Fleming  

 

MOTION FAILED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 6, 2007 

 

- 6 - 

Vote on Resolution to Refer Charter Revision Proposal to Charter Revision Committee 

 
Resolution  
Moved by Howrylak    
Seconded by Lambert  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REFERS proposed Charter Revision to Section 6.2 
– Vacancies in Elective Office to the Charter Revision Committee for further review. 
 

Vote on Resolution to Postpone 

 
Resolution #2007-08-235 
Moved by Broomfield     
Seconded by Howrylak   
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES the resolution to refer Charter 
Revision Proposal to Section 6.2 – Vacancies in Elective Office to the Charter Revision 
Committee for further review until the Regular City Council meeting scheduled for Monday, 
August 20, 2007. 
 
Yes:  All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  

F-6 Smoking Lounge Ordinance 

 

(a) Approval of Enactment of Chapter 77 – Smoking Lounges 
  
Resolution #2007-08-236a 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Stine  
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES and ENACTS Chapter 77, 

Smoking Lounges, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Lambert  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Fleming  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

(b) Approval of Amendment to Chapter 3 – Administrative Service  
 
Resolution #2007-08-236b 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Stine  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 6, 2007 

 

- 7 - 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Section 1.141 (6) of Chapter 3, 

Administrative Service, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
Yes: Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Lambert 
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Fleming  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

(c) Approval of Amendment to Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required  
  
Resolution #2007-08-236c 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Stine  
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Section 60.03 of Chapter 60, Fees 

and Bonds Required, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting.  
 
Yes: Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Lambert 
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Fleming  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 

Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: No Appointments Put 

Forward c) City Council Appointments Students: Planning Commission   

 

(c) City Council Appointments – Students  
 
Resolution #2007-08-237 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REAPPOINTS the following student to serve on 
the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Planning Commission  
Appointed by Council - 1 Year Term 
 
Jonathan Shin Term Expires 07/01/08 

 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 6, 2007 

 

- 8 - 

F-2 Traffic Committee Recommendations – July 18, 2007 

  
Resolution  
Moved by Lambert   
Seconded by Broomfield  
 

(a) No Changes on Tucker at Standish 
 
RESOLVED, That there be no changes on Tucker at Standish. 
 

(b) Installation of Signs – Stop Signs on Vermont at Lydia 
 

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED for the installation of stop 
signs on Vermont at Lydia. 
 

(c) Installation of Sign – Stop Sign on Colleen at Denise 
 

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED for the installation of stop 
sign on Colleen at Denise. 
 

(d) No Changes at the Woodingham/Washington Crescent Curve 
 
RESOLVED, That there be no changes at the Woodingham/Washington Crescent curve. 
 

(e) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones – 1755 E. Wattles   
 

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED for the establishment of 
fire lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch at 1755 E. Wattles as recommended 
by the Fire Department. 
 
Council Member Stine requested that Item (d) No Changes at the Woodingham/Washington 
Crescent Curve be excepted from the vote. 
 

Vote on Traffic Committee Recommendations-July 18, 2007 (a), (b), (c) and (e)  
 
Resolution #2007-08-238 
Moved by Lambert   
Seconded by Broomfield  
 

(a) No Changes on Tucker at Standish 
 

RESOLVED, That there be NO CHANGES on Tucker at Standish. 
 

(b) Installation of Signs – Stop Signs on Vermont at Lydia 
 

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. 07-05-SS be ISSUED for the installation of stop 
signs on Vermont at Lydia. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 6, 2007 

 

- 9 - 

(c) Installation of Sign – Stop Sign on Colleen at Denise 
 

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. 07-06-SS be ISSUED for the installation of stop 
sign on Colleen at Denise. 
 

(e) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones – 1755 E. Wattles   
 

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. 07-10-MR be ISSUED for the establishment of fire 
lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch at 1755 E. Wattles as recommended by 
the Fire Department. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming 
 

Vote on (d) No Changes at the Woodingham/Washington Crescent Curve 
 
Resolution #2007-08-239 
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby TAKES NO ACTION on Traffic Committee 
Recommendation-July 18, 2007 (d) No Changes at the Woodingham/Washington Crescent 

Curve and REFERS the item back to the Traffic Committee until after the 60 day time period 
allotted by the Traffic Committee to the homeowners to resolve issues has expired. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 

F-3 Rescind Bid Award/Re-award Contract – Streets Rough Mowing 

  
Resolution #2007-08-240 
Moved by Stine   
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, On May 14, 2007, a contract to furnish three-year requirements of Streets 
Department rough weed mowing services with an option to renew for two additional years was 
awarded to the low bidder, Rasins Landscape & Associates, Inc. of Troy, MI, (Resolution # 
2007-05-142-E-4e); and 
 
WHEREAS, Rasins Landscape & Associates, Inc. has defaulted on the contract due to poor 
performance issues resulting from the lack of communication and timeliness of mowing activity;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCINDS with prejudice the 
contract to furnish all labor, tools, equipment and transportation for the Streets Department 

rough weed mowing services from Rasins Landscape & Associates, Inc., and hereby RE-

AWARDS to the next lowest bidder, Bob’s Landscaping Service, Inc. of St Clair Shores, MI, at 
unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened April 23, 2007, a copy of which shall be 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 6, 2007 

 

- 10 - 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with the contract expiring December 31, 
2009. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 

F-4 Revision to Chapter 85, Sign Ordinance Subdivision Entranceway Signs 

 
Resolution #2007-08-241 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Broomfield  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REVISES Section 85.02.05 C of the Troy Sign 
Ordinance, Chapter 85 of the Troy City Code, regarding the provisions for subdivision entrance 
signs in accordance with the proposal prepared by City Management, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of the meeting. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 

F-7 Bid Waiver – Digital Conversion and Microfilm Services 

 
Resolution #2007-08-242 
Moved by Stine   
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, Graphic Sciences was been the provider of optical scanning services under the 
State of Michigan MiDEAL Program for many years; and 
 
WHEREAS, The State of Michigan contract has expired, yet Graphic Sciences has continued 
to provide services to the state and local governments under the same pricing, terms, and 
conditions as the original contract;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract with 
Graphic Sciences to provide digital conversion and microfilm services as dictated by the 
original agreement with the State of Michigan until a new contract is awarded by the State; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That costs for services rendered over the administrative limit in 

the amount of $20,000.00 are hereby CONFIRMED.  
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 6, 2007 

 

- 11 - 

F-8 Kroger SDM License Applications 

 

1.  Transfer of SDM License for Kroger Co. of Michigan – 1237 N. Coolidge  
  
Resolution #2007-08-243-1(a&b) 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Stine  
 

a. New License 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has demonstrated community value of alcohol and substance 
abuse prevention and is dedicated to retaining its status as a healthy community; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from the Kroger Co. of Michigan to transfer 
ownership of 2007 SDM licensed business located at 1237 N. Coolidge, Troy, Michigan 48084 

Oakland County from Borman’s, Inc. {MLCC req #421565} be CONSIDERED for approval with 
the condition that within 1-year the location of the beer and wine must be moved away from the 
main entrance and exit of the store, consistent with the long-standing practice of the existing 
Kroger Store at 31 E. Long Lake Rd., Troy, MI 48085; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance with the aforementioned condition. 

 

b. Agreement 
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with The Kroger Co. of Michigan to transfer ownership of 2007 SDM licensed business located 
at 1237 N. Coolidge, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County from Borman’s, Inc., and the Mayor and 

City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED to execute the document, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7  
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  

 

2.  Transfer of SDM License for Kroger Co. of Michigan – 3125 John R  
 
Resolution #2007-08-243-2 (a&b) 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Stine  
 

a. New License 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has demonstrated community value of alcohol and substance 
abuse prevention and is dedicated to retaining its status as a healthy community; 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 6, 2007 

 

- 12 - 

 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from the Kroger Co. of Michigan to transfer 
ownership of 2007 SDM licensed business located at 3125 John R, Troy, Michigan 48083 

Oakland County from Borman’s, Inc. {MLCC req #421588} be CONSIDERED for approval with 
the condition that within 1-year, the location of the beer and wine must be moved away from 
the main entrance and exit of the store, consistent with the long-standing practice of the 
existing Kroger Store at 31 E. Long Lake Rd., Troy, MI 48085; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance with the aforementioned condition.  
 

 b. Agreement 
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with The Kroger Co. of Michigan to transfer ownership of 2007 SDM licensed business located 
at 3125 John R, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County from Borman’s, Inc., and the Mayor and City 

Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED to execute the document, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7  
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 

3. Transfer of SDM License for Kroger Co. of Michigan – 2105 W. South  
  
Resolution #2007-08-243-3 (a&b) 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Stine  
 

a. New License 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has demonstrated community value of alcohol and substance 
abuse prevention and is dedicated to retaining its status as a healthy community; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from the Kroger Co. of Michigan to transfer 
ownership of 2007 SDM licensed business located at 2105 W. South Blvd., Troy, Michigan 

48098 Oakland County from Borman’s, Inc. {MLCC req #421608} be CONSIDERED for 
approval with the condition that within 1-year the location of the beer and wine must be moved 
away from the main entrance and exit of the store, consistent with the long-standing practice of 
the existing Kroger Store at 31 E. Long Lake Rd., Troy, MI 48085; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance with the aforementioned condition.  

 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 6, 2007 

 

- 13 - 

b. Agreement 
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with The Kroger Co. of Michigan to transfer ownership of 2007 SDM licensed business located 
at 2105 W. South, Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County from Borman’s, Inc., and the Mayor and 

City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED to execute the document, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7  
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a. Mitchell’s Ocean Club – 2915 Coolidge (proposed address) - Request for Outdoor 

Seating Area in Excess of 20 Seats – August 20, 2007     
Noted and Filed 

 

G-2 Green Memorandums: None Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced   

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
Mayor Schilling congratulated City Management for the recent “AAA” rating received from 
Standard & Poors. 
 
Council Member Lambert asked whether there are guidelines regarding hours when city 
maintenance vehicles should be operating? Mr. Nelson responded that the city tries to refrain 
from having vehicles on the road during high volume traffic periods. Mr. Nelson added that 
traffic is also heavier at this time due to the volume of road construction. 
 
Council Member Beltramini is pleased that the contract with Alliance Mobile Health has been 
renewed. She added that she is very satisfied with their services and the relationship they have 
established with the city. 
 
Council Member Beltramini asked that when ordinances are established and require licensing, 
that the licensing process be in place so that business owners do not lose business time while 
in the process of applying for their license. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 6, 2007 

 

- 14 - 

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a. Traffic Committee/Final – March 21, 2007 
b. Traffic Committee/Final – April 18, 2007  
c. Charter Revision Committee/Final – June 15, 2007 
d. Troy Daze Festival Committee/Final – June 26, 2007  
e. Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Draft – July 10, 2007 
f. Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – July 10, 2007  
g. Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – July 10, 2007 
h. Planning Commission/Final – July 10, 2007  
i. Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – July 11, 2007  
j. Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – July 11, 2007  
k. Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – July 17, 2007 
l. Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – July 24, 2007  
m. Charter Revision Committee/Draft – July 31, 2007 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a. City of Troy Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters – 27th Annual Actuarial Valuation 

Report – December 31, 2006 
 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a. Letter of Appreciation from Lynn Cooper Regarding the Senior Home Assistance Repair 

Program (SHARP)  
b. Letter of Thanks to City Manager Phil Nelson from J. Michael Ermiger  
c. Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Scott Horne Commending the Efforts of Officer 

McWilliams  
d. Letter of Thanks to Captain Murphy from John Reynolds, Delphi Corporate Security in 

Appreciation of the Presentation by Sgt. Kowalski   
Noted and Filed 

 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
 

J-5  Calendar 
 

J-6  Standard & Poor’s Rating of Troy 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-7  Rehman Robson’s Engagement Letter for the City of Troy – Year Ended June 30, 

2007 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-8  Communication from Police Chief Craft Regarding the Limited Brands Law 

Enforcement Loss Prevention Grant 
Noted and Filed 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 6, 2007 

 

- 15 - 

J-9  Communication from Traffic Engineer John Abraham Regarding Concerns about 

Pedestrians at Rochester and Big Beaver 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-10  Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson Regarding 

Schroeder Park 
Noted and Filed 

 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session: No Closed Session Requested 
 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:15 PM. 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

August 20, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 

 
Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  

E-3 No Proposed City of Troy Proclamations  

campbellld
Text Box
E-03



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
August 2, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director  
   Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 – Exercise Renewal Option –                         
   Printing of City of Troy 2008 Calendar/Annual Report 
 
Background 
 
 On July 10, 2006, a contract to provide printing of the 2007 City Calendar/Annual report was 

approved with an option to renew for the 2008 Calendar to University Lithoprinters, Inc. of Ann 
Arbor, MI, the vendor with the highest weighted final score as a result of a best value process. 
(Council Resolution #2006-07-290-E4b).   

 
 A letter is attached from University Lithoprinters, Inc. indicating their agreement to renew the 

contract for the 2008 Calendar under the same terms and conditions as the original contract.  
 
 University Lithoprinters is not seeking any price increase to recover for the rising cost of paper. 

 
• Due to the best value process used in evaluating the request for proposal, a market survey was  

not done; since the City utilizes an evaluation process in which bidders are required to meet  
minimum specified requirements, along with a weighted score for samples of their work from 
similar projects.   

 
Financial Considerations 
 
 Funds are available from the Community Affairs Department operating budget, account 

#748.7901.  
 
 Community Affairs sold $15,694.00 in ads to offset the cost to produce the 2007 Calendar/Annual 

Report. 
 
Legal Considerations 
 
 RFQ/RFP 06-16, the printing of the 2007 City Calendar/Annual Report was competitively bid and 

opened with five bidders responding.   

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a



Page 2 of 2 

 
August 2, 2007 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Exercise Renewal Option – 2008 Calendar/Annual Report 
 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
 The City Calendar/Annual Report is an all-encompassing informational and promotional piece 

used as one of the City’s major public relations/marketing tools.  It is mailed to approximately 
37,000 households and businesses and used as the main piece in our new resident/business 
welcome packets.  Ads are sold to help cover a portion of the printing costs. (Goals II, III & IV). 

 The City Calendar can also contain a Citizens Survey Report Card floated into each calendar to 
measure citizen responses on a number of City services.  (Goal I). 

 
Option 
 
 City management recommends the Troy City Council exercise the option to renew for the 2008 

calendar with University Lithoprinters, Inc. for an estimated total cost of $33,825.00 plus $2,310.00 
for the reply card insert under the same prices, terms and conditions, to expire upon successful 
delivery of the 2008 calendars, in accordance with contract requirements. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:/Bid Award 06-07 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 – Calendar 2008 07.07.doc 









June 28, 2006 
 
TO:  John M Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item: Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value 

Process Award – 2007 Calendar/Annual Report Printing Services 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
On May 17, 2006, five (5) proposals were opened to provide Printing & Design 
Services to mail 40,000 copies of the 2007 City of Troy Calendar/Annual Report 
with the option to renew for the 2008 calendar year.  City management 
recommends that a contract be awarded to University Lithoprinters of Ann Arbor, 
MI, the bidder providing the best value with the highest final weighted score of 
87.92, which included calendar samples and a price scoring evaluation process, at 
an estimated cost of $33,825.00 per year at unit prices contained in the attached 
bid tabulation, plus $2,310.00 for the reply card insert.  
 
Although University Lithoprinters is not the lowest total bidder, price is just one 
component in the “Best Value” approach to a Request for Proposal process.  The 
award recommendation was based upon the vendor offering the best combination 
of a variety of factors; not simply the lowest bidder meeting certain minimal 
requirements.  A best value approach addresses ability, experience, and quality 
issues leading to a successful contract and reduction in risk of poor service for 
such high profile PR tools as the City Calendar.   
       
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On September 22, 2003, University Lithoprinters was awarded the contract to 
provide the 2004 City Calendar/Annual Report.  An option to renew printing 
services for the 2005 and 2006 Calendar/Annual Report was exercised.   Cost for 
the 2006 calendar was $38,650.00.  This included 40,000 calendars plus minor 
corrections to proof throughout the process.   
 
The calendar size is 8 ½ x11 (a cost savings measure instituted in 2004) and has 
a reply card as an option.  The estimate for the 2007 calendar would be 
$33,825.00 or $36,135.00 with the reply card.   
 
We have also sold advertising in the 2005 and 2006 City Calendars to help offset 
printing costs.  The total amount collected in 2006 was $11,335.00 for the 
advertising insert.  We intend to sell advertising again for the 2007 calendar to 
help offset costs and anticipate collecting a comparable amount. 
 
 

1 of 2 



June 28, 2006 
         
To:  John M Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
Re:  Award Recommendation - Printing Services – City Calendar 
Page 2 of 2 
 
  
SUMMARY 
 
After completing the evaluation process, University Lithoprinters received the 
highest recommendations from the committee.  In an effort to achieve the most 
positive image for our City Calendar and personnel working in the field, and 
supply the best service, proper quality at the right price; a best value approach 
was used to evaluate and award the contract.   
 
University Lithoprinters received the highest recommendations from the 
committee consisting of the Community Affairs Director, Community Affairs 
Officer and Finance Department Account Clerk.  They received superior marks 
based on their quality samples.  University Lithoprinters has serviced many other 
municipalities on similar projects of comparable magnitude. City calendars they 
produced within the last five years include Troy, Westland, Dearborn, Warren, 
and Novi.  Not only did this company furnish the most impressive and complete 
proposal package; they as well as their designer received outstanding 
endorsements from the Cities of Novi, Dearborn, Warren and Westland when we 
called them inquiring about their calendar printer.  University Lithoprinters also 
produced calendars for The Masarati Club, Consumers Energy, University of 
Michigan and the Detroit Free Press.    The Community Affairs Department staff 
has worked with University Lithoprinters and Graphic Visions on a number of 
projects and is very impressed with their professionalism, creativity, cooperation 
and timeliness.  University Lithoprinters has their own bindery and does the mail 
prep in house.  
 
 
BUDGET 
 
Funds are available from the operating budget in the Community Affairs 
Department a/c# 748.7901. 
 
120 Vendors notified via the MITN System 
122 Notices distributed by mail and email to prospective bidders 
   1 Vendor Walked-In 
   5 Proposals Received 
 



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 06-16
Opening Date -- 5/17/06 TABULATION Pg 1 of 2
Date Prepared -- 5/22/06 PRINTING 2007 CALENDAR/ANNUAL REPORT

FIRM NAME: Dearborn Lithograph, TGI Direct University Lithoprinters
Inc. Inc.

Check Number 101178360 35644763 111781
Amount  $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00

PROPOSAL: Furnish and deliver to a designated mailing service 40,000 copies of the City of Troy Year 2007
                  Calendar / Annual Report, including graphic design services, presswork, packaging, delivery, etc…..

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: (Yes or No) Yes Yes Yes

SAMPLE CALENDAR: (Yes or No) Yes Yes Yes
SAMPLE PAPER: (Yes or No) Yes Yes Yes

Troy calendar
STOCK Option A Complete for the Sum of: 29,044.00$             32,599.00$        34,995.00$               

Cost per Additional (M) : 592.50$                  815.00$             550.00$                    
Per Specifications

Novi calendar
ALTERNATE Option B Quoting On Cover Stock Omni Gloss Euro Art 80# Gloss 80 lb Creator Gloss

Quoting on Text Stock Omni Silk Euro Art 70# Dull 80 lb Creator Silk
Manufactured by: M-Real Millcraft Torraspapel USA, Inc.
Complete for the Sum of: 26,802.00$             30,982.00$        34,195.00$               
Cost per Additional (M) : 534.80$                  775.00$             535.00$                    

OPTIONAL:
Reply Card Option A Complete for the Sum of: 1,981.92$               2,398.00$          2,310.00$                 

Cost per Additional (M) : 42.98$                    59.95$               20.00$                      
Per Specifications

ALTERNATE Option B Quoting On Cover Stock Omni Matte 75# White, uncoated Blank
Quoting on Text Stock Blank N/A Blank
Manufactured by: M-Real Wausau Blank
Complete for the Sum of: 1,711.00$              1,397.00$          Blank
Cost per Additional (M) : 36.28$                   34.92$               Blank

ADDITIONAL COSTS:
SCANS: Cost for each color photo over 65 color scans $25.00         /scan $0.00         /scan $45.00         /scan

EDIT CHARGES: Hourly rate for edits 55.00$                    75.00$               85.00$                      

DELIVERY DATE Can meet schedule XX XX XX
Dec 11th Cannot meet but offers

TERMS: Net 30 Days Net 30 Days Net 30 Days

DELIVERY DATE: 12/11/2006 5/17/2006 12/11/2006

EXCEPTIONS: Blank N/A Any paper cost increases
will be documented &
presented to the City

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes

ADDENDUM #1 Y or N Yes Yes Yes

ATTEST:
Laura Campbell
Susan M. Davis Jeanette Bennett
Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G:RFP-COT 06-16 - Calendar/Annual Report 2007



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 06-16
Opening Date -- 5/17/06 TABULATION Pg 2 of 2
Date Prepared -- 5/22/06 PRINTING 2007 CALENDAR/ANNUAL REPORT

FIRM NAME: * University Lithoprinters Grand River Printing Brophy
Option C

Check Number 111781 453266 567005098
Amount  $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00

PROPOSAL: Furnish and deliver to a designated mailing service 40,000 copies of the City of Troy Year 2007
                  Calendar / Annual Report, including graphic design services, presswork, packaging, delivery, etc…..
VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: (Yes or No) Yes Yes Yes

SAMPLE CALENDAR: (Yes or No) Yes Yes No
SAMPLE PAPER: (Yes or No) Yes Yes Yes

STOCK Option A Complete for the Sum of: n/a Blank 64,200.00$                 
Cost per Additional (M) : n/a Blank 578.00$                      
Per Specifications Paper Not Available in Web

Dearborn calendar
ALTERNATE Option B Quoting On Cover Stock Commerce Gloss 80# 80#  #2 Gloss Commerce Gloss 80#

Quoting on Text Stock Commerce Dull 80# 70#  #2 Gloss Commerce Dull 80#
Manufactured by: SAPPI Productolith Sappi
Complete for the Sum of: 33,825.00$               34,617.08$             62,661.00$                 
Cost per Additional (M) : 535.00$                    865.00$                  595.00$                      

OPTIONAL:
Reply Card Option A Complete for the Sum of: 2,310.00$                 2,767.00$               2,345.00$                   

Cost per Additional (M) : 20.00$                      69.00$                    43.00$                        
Per Specifications

ALTERNATE Option B Quoting On Cover Stock Blank N/A Per Xpedx - No comparable
Quoting on Text Stock Blank N/A alternate stock at this price
Manufactured by: Blank N/A level

ADDITIONAL COSTS:
SCANS: Cost for each color photo over 65 color scans $45.00         /scan $25.00         /scan $55.00         /scan

EDIT CHARGES: Hourly rate for edits 85.00$                      80.00$                    75.00$                        

DELIVERY DATE Can meet schedule XX XX XX
Dec 11th Cannot meet but offers

TERMS: Net 30 Days Net 30 60 Days

DELIVERY DATE: 12/11/2006 12/11/2006 5/17/2006

EXCEPTIONS: Any paper cost increases Blank Samples: have not been
will be documented & involved in printing of
presented to the City a calendar within the

past few years.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes

ADDENDUM #1 Y or N Yes Yes Yes

NO BIDS:
 Caldwell Printing

* DENOTES BEST VALUE PROPOSAL

G:RFP-COT 06-16 - Calendar/Annual Report 2007



 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
PRINTING 2007 CALENDAR 

 
STATISTICS: 
 

 120 Vendors notified via the MITN System 
 

 122 Notices were distributed by mail and e-mail to prospective bidders  
 

 1 Vendor Walked-In 
 
 5 proposals were received 

 
 University Lithoprinters was the most qualified bidder by receiving the 

highest weighted score 
 
The following bidders submitted a proposal and received the indicated final 
scores: 
 
COMPANY  SCORE 
University Lithoprinters 87.92       ** 
Dearborn Lithograph 82.4 
Grand River Printing 69.92 
TGI Direct 69.36 
Brophy 28.88 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Attachments: 
Weighted Final Scoring Including “Sample” and Price Scoring 
Evaluation Process 



WEIGHTED FINAL SCORING  
 PRINTING 2007 CALENDAR 

 
Final Score Calculation: 
 

40% x    Price Score 
60% x    Sample Score – Weighted Average 
100%  Final Weighted Score 

 
* In order to equate the price to the weighted evaluation process scoring, 

the prices had to be converted into a score with the base of 100 
 

SAMPLE SCORE (60%) 
Raters: 1 2 3 AVERAGE 

Vendors:     
Dearborn Lithograph 60 63 89 70.67 
Brophy 67 71 74 70.67 
TGI Direct 58 66 54 59.33 
Grand River Printing 73 39 96 69.33 
University Lithoprinters 98 96 98 97.33 
 
PRICING SCORES (40%) – Option B 
Vendors: 

 
FORMULA:  [1 – (Proposal price – low price) / low price] x available points 

Dearborn Lithograph [1-(26802-26802)/26802]*100 100 
Brophy [1-(62661-26802)/26802]*100 -33.8 
TGI Direct [1-(30982-26802)/26802]*100 84.4 
Grand River Printing [1-(34617.08-26802)/26802]*100 70.8 
University Lithoprinters [1-(33825-26802)/26802]*100 73.8 
 
FINAL WEIGHTED SCORE:        
VENDORS:    University ** 

Lithoprinters 
 

Dearborn Grand 
River 
Printing 

TGI Direct Brophy 

Score      
PRICE SCORE:            (x .40) =  29.52 40 28.32 33.76 -13.52 
      
SAMPLE SCORE:         (x .60) = 58.40 42.40 41.60 35.60 42.4 
      
Final Score: 87.92 82.4 69.92 69.36 28.88 
 
 
** HIGHEST RATED VENDOR – RECOMMENDED AWARD 
 
G:/BidAward 05-06 / Best Value SR8 – RFP –Calendar 2007- WeightedRatingSummary 06.06.doc 



 
SELECTION PROCESS 

 
CRITERIA FOR SELECTION 
The identified City Committee will review the proposals.  The City of Troy reserves the right to 
award this proposal to the company considered the most qualified based upon a combination of 
factors including but not limited to the following: 

 
A. Compliance with qualifications criteria  
B. Completeness of the proposal 
C. Financial strength and capacity of the printer  
D. Correlation of the proposals submitted to the needs of the City of Troy 
E. Any other factors which may be deemed to be in the City’s best interest 
F. Evaluation Process 

 
Phase 1:  Qualifications Evaluation. 
 Bidders will be required to meet minimum established criteria  
 in order to go to the second phase of the process.   
 
Phase 2:  Sample Evaluation Process. 

o The City Committee will use a weighted scoring sheet to evaluate the 
   required submitted samples. 

o Each Committee Member will calculate a weighted score.   
o The scores of the three Committee Members will be averaged into 

one score for each bidder for this phase of the process. 
 
Phase 3:  Price   
 Points for price will be calculated as follows: 
 
 FORMULA: 
  
  [1 – (Proposal price – low price) / low price] x available points 
  
 
Phase 4:  Final Scoring and Selection 
 The highest final weighted scored will be the printer recommended to the Troy City 

Council for Award. 
 
  40% x Price Score (100 pt. Base)   = 
  60% x Sample Calendar Score (100 pt. Base)  =  
      100%      Final Weighted Score  

 
Note:  The City of Troy reserves the right to change the order or eliminate an evaluation phase if 
deemed in the City’s best interest to do so. 
 



campbellld
Text Box
E-04b





Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
August 10, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
    Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director    
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Troy Daze Electrical Services 
 
Background 
 On August 2, 2007, bids were received to furnish Electrical Services for the Troy Daze Festival. 
 100 vendors were notified via the MITN system with two bidders responding. One bidder, Waug’s 

Electrical Service did not include proposal pricing, therefore their bid is incomplete and considered 
non-responsive. 

 The remaining vendor, Winiarski Electric, 5318 Spruceview, Fowlerville, MI 48836 submitted a 
complete bid to furnish all labor and materials for the electrical services of the 2007, 2008, and 
2009 Magic of Fall/Troy Daze Festival. The bid also includes an additional allowance for materials 
that may be required during the course of the festival. 

 
Financial Considerations 
 Funding for the electrical services for the Troy Daze Festival is available in the Parks and 

Recreation operating account #784.7802.070. 
 
Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 07-29, to furnish all electrical services for the Troy Daze Festival was competitively bid 

and opened with two bidders responding. 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest to provide electrical 

services for the Troy Daze Festival. 
 The award is contingent upon the recommended bidder’s submission of proper contract and bid 

documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
 The Troy Daze Festival is an annual event celebrating the community. (Goals I & III) 

 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04c



Page 2 of 2 

August 10, 2007 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications – Troy Daze Electrical Services 
 
 
Options 
 City management and the Parks and Recreation Department recommend awarding a contract to 

furnish three-year requirements of all labor and materials for electrical services at the Troy Daze 
Festival to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, Winiarski Electric of Fowlerville, MI, for an 
estimated three-year total cost of $31,000.00, plus a materials allowance of $3,250.00 and other 
work as assigned at the rate of $60.00 per hour. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JB   G:/Bid Award 06-07 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 2 – TroyDazeElectrical08.07.doc 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-29
Opening Date -- 08/02/07 BID TABULATION Pg 1of 1
Date Prepared -- 8/10/07 ELECTRICAL - TROY DAZE

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL: Magic of Fall/Troy Daze Festival Electrical Contract

Furnish Three Year Requirements of all labor
and materials for the Magic of Fall/Troy Daze
Festival Electrical Contract in accordance Complete for the Sum Materials Allowance
with specifications at the following YEAR
prices-- 2007 9,750$                 750$                    

2008 10,250$               1,000$                 
2009 11,000$               1,500$                 

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 31,000$                3,250$                  

ALTERNATE 1: Master Electrician 
for projects not specified - YEAR

2007
2008
2009

SITE INSPECTION: Visted the site
Did not visit site
Date

CONTACT INFORMATION:
Hours of Operation

24 Hr Phone #

COMPLETION DATE Can meet
Cannot meet
But Offers:

EXPERIENCE: Number of Yrs
Licensed 

INSURANCE: Can meet
Cannot meet
Signed  Y or N

TERMS:

WARRANTY:

DELIVERY:

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Completed   - Y or N

INCOMPLETE BID: BOLD FACE TYPE DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDER
Waug's Electrical Service

Diane Fisher ____________________________
Ron Hynd Susan Leirstein CPPB
Susan Leirstein Purchasing Director G:/ITB-COT 07-29 Troy Daze Electrical 

Jeff Winiarski/
Winiarski Electric

Yes

Blank

AS SPECIFIED 

Yes

Net 15 days after Monday teardown

N/A

14 Years

XX

7 - 3:30pm
(248)721-0138

XX

ATTEST:

DESCRIPTION 

Hourly Rate 

60.00$                                                  
60.00$                                                  
60.00$                                                  

Previous festival's electrician



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
August 10, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

Charles T. Craft, Police Chief 
   

      
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award To Low Bidders – Purchase of 

Firearms Ammunition  
 

Background 
 On July 24, 2007, bids were received for the purchase of one-year requirements of 

firearms ammunition with an option to renew for one additional year. 
 Thirty (30) vendors were notified via the MITN system with four (4) bid responses received. 
 The ammunition requirements for the Police department are broken into two (2) categories:  

Lead-Free, for use on the indoor firearms range (for practice purposes only), and duty-use 
ammunition, which contains lead.  Per department policy, only lead-free ammunition may 
be fired on the indoor range; however, the lead-free ammunition is not duty rated which 
necessitates the need for both types of ammunition. 

 In addition, there are three (3) weapon platforms, which need different types of ammunition 
specific to each: Pistols, Rifles, and Shotguns. 

 Given the current economic situation, the on-going wars in Iraq and Afghanistan, as well as 
the tremendous cost increase in ammunition raw materials; staff recommends rejecting 
three (3) of the eight (8) bid ammunition types.  The rejected bids are for the following 
ammunition lots:  Lead-free .223 rifle ammunition, Cor-Bon .40 caliber handgun 
ammunition, and the Federal 00 Buckshot 12 gauge shotgun ammunition. 

 The primary reason for the rejection of the listed ammunition is that the cost exceeds our 
budgetary limits. 

 

Financial Considerations 
 Funds are available in the 2007/08 Police Operating budget for Training, Ammunition 

Account #322.7740.012. 
 

Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 07-25 to furnish firearms ammunition for the Troy Police Department was 

competitively bid, as required under Chapter 7 of the City Code.  
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in supplying 

firearms ammunition for the City of Troy. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04d



Page 2 of 2 

August 10, 2007 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Bid Award - Ammunition 
 
 

Policy Considerations 
 This project will enhance both the safety of the community and the police officers who 

service them.  (Goal I) 
 

Options 
 City management and the Police department recommend the purchase of firearms 

ammunition from the listed vendors, at unit prices as contained on the bid tabulation 
opened July 24, 2007, with contracts expiring August 20 2008. 

 
Michigan Police Equipment:  Lead-free .40 caliber pistol ammunition, and duty carry

 .223-rifle ammunition.  
Michigan Ammo Co. Inc:  Lead-free 00 buckshot shotgun practice ammunition. 
TJ Conevera's Inc:  Duty carry .40 caliber pistol ammunition 
CMP Distributors:  Lead-free .45 caliber pistol ammunition for the Police department 
pistol team. 
 

 In addition, staff recommends rejecting lead-free .223 caliber, duty carry Cor-Bon .40 
caliber, and duty carry 12 gauge shotgun ammunitions due to budgetary limitations. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Sergeant Michael Bjork 
 
G:/Bid Award 06-07 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 – Ammunition 07-07.doc 



CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 07-25
Opening Date -- 7/24/07 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 4
Date Prepared-- 7/30/07 AMMUNITION

VENDOR NAME:

EST QTY UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE
ROUNDS        DESCRIPTION PER CASE TOTAL PER CASE TOTAL PER CASE TOTAL

LEAD-FREE AMMUNITION
75,000 Frangible, lead free, Non-Iron 0.50$            37,462.50$            0.47$                35,100.00$            0.48$                35,625.00$       

.223 Colt Rifles 40-55 Grain
Rds per Case 1000 1000 200
CASE PRICE 499.50$                 468.00$                 95.00$              
Make & Model No. ICC-223-055TLF-M Kilgore5036/Winchester RA223SF Winchester RA223SF

100,000 Frangible, Lead Free, Non-Iron 0.37$            36,550.00$            0.27$                26,950.00$            0.34$                33,800.00$       
.40 Glock   105-135 Grain Load

Rds per Case 1000 1000 500
CASE PRICE 365.50$                 269.50$                 169.00$            
Make & Model No. ICC-040-125TLF-M Kilgore5037/Winchester RA40SF Winchester RA40SF

1,000 Frangible, Lead Free, Non-Iron 0.66$            660.00$                 0.76$                756.00$                 0.84$                844.00$            
12 Gauge Shotgun-00 Buck Load

Rds per Case 250 250 250
CASE PRICE 165.00$                 189.00$                 211.00$            
Make & Model No. ICC-012-009SHT-C Winchester RA1200SF Winchester RA1200SF

10,000 Frangible, Lead Free, Non-Iron 0.41$            4,100.00$              0.34$                3,390.00$              0.42$                4,220.00$         
.45 Pistol Handguns 125-155 Grain

Rds per Case 1000 1000 500
CASE PRICE 410.00$                 339.00$                 211.00$            
Make & Model No. ICC-045-155TLF-M Kilgore 5035 Winchester RA45SF 

(this is a 175gr +P)
DUTY AMMUNITION

10,000 Cor-Bon Solid Copper Barnes No Bid No Bid 0.93$                9,325.00$              No Bid No Bid
.223 Patrol & Swat Colt Rifles
53 Grain Rds per Case 400

CASE PRICE $ 373.00$                 $
Make & Model No. Cor-Bon DPX22353

10,000 Cor-Bon Solid Copper Barnes No Bid No Bid 0.95$                9,460.00$              No Bid No Bid 
.40 Glock   140-Grain DPX Load

Rds per Case 500
CASE PRICE $ 473.00$                 $
Make & Model No. Cor-Bon DPX40140

10,000 Winchester SXT No Bid No Bid 0.25$                2,450.00$              0.23$                2,320.00$         
.40 Glock   165 Grain Load

NO Rds per Case 500 500
SUBSTITUTION CASE PRICE $ 122.50$                 116.00$            

Make & Model No. Winchester SXT Winchester SXT

1,000 Federal 00 Buck No Bid No Bid 0.39$                388.00$                 No Bid No Bid 
12 Gauge Shotgun load

NO Rds per Case 250
SUBSTITUTION CASE PRICE $ 97.00$                   $

Make & Model No. Federal 00 Buck 

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL -- 78,772.50$    87,819.00$    76,809.00$
ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS -- 660.00$          36,275.00$     2,320.00$   

TJ Conevera's IncMichigan Ammo Co Inc Michigan Police Equipment Co

RECOMMEND REJECTION

RECOMMEND REJECTION

RECOMMEND REJECTION



CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 07-25
Opening Date -- 7/24/07 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 4
Date Prepared-- 7/30/07 AMMUNITION

VENDOR NAME:

CONTACT INFORMATION:
Hrs of Operation:
24 Hr. Phone #:

TERMS:

WARRANTY:

DELIVERY:

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Y or N

ADDENDUM #1:       Y or N

BOLD FACE TYPE DENOTES LOW BIDDERS

PROPOSAL - One-Year Requirements of Ammunition with an Option to Renew for One (1)
ATTEST: Additional Year
Yvonne Ranzinger
Michael Bjork 
Julie Hamilton 

_______________________
Susan Leirstein CPPB
Purchasing Director

G:ITB-COT 07-25 AMMUNITION

30 days 

Blank

Yes

40-60 Days ARO

RA45SF is a 45 Auto +P
175gr Frangible 

7:00am - 3:30pm 
313-383-4430

Yes

Net 30 Days 

1 Year

5-30 Days

None 

Yes

Net 30 

100% Replacement 

Net 30 Days 

N/A 

Michigan Ammo Co Inc Michigan Police Equipment Co TJ Conevera's Inc

Yes Yes Yes

8:30am-5pm M-F
313-600-7484

M-F 8am-5pm
800-858-8067/815-239-1569



CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 07-25
Opening Date -- 7/24/07 BID TABULATION Pg 3 of 4
Date Prepared-- 7/30/07 AMMUNITION

VENDOR NAME:

EST QTY UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE
ROUNDS        DESCRIPTION PER CASE TOTAL PER CASE TOTAL PER CASE TOTAL

LEAD-FREE AMMUNITION
75,000 Frangible, lead free, Non-Iron 0.66$            49,350.00$            

.223 Colt Rifles 40-55 Grain
Rds per Case 500
CASE PRICE 329.00$                 
Make & Model No. Federal BC223NT5

100,000 Frangible, Lead Free, Non-Iron 0.33$            32,700.00$            
.40 Glock   105-135 Grain Load

Rds per Case 1000
CASE PRICE 327.00$                 
Make & Model No. Federal BC40CT1

1,000 Frangible, Lead Free, Non-Iron 0.82$            824.00$                 
12 Gauge Shotgun-00 Buck Load

Rds per Case 250
CASE PRICE 206.00$                 
Make & Model No. Federal BC132-00BK

10,000 Frangible, Lead Free, Non-Iron 0.33$            3,280.00$              
.45 Pistol Handguns 125-155 Grain

Rds per Case 1000
CASE PRICE 328.00$                 
Make & Model No. Federal BC45CT1

DUTY AMMUNITION
10,000 Cor-Bon Solid Copper Barnes No Bid No Bid 

.223 Patrol & Swat Colt Rifles
53 Grain Rds per Case

CASE PRICE $
Make & Model No.

10,000 Cor-Bon Solid Copper Barnes No Bid No Bid 
.40 Glock   140-Grain DPX Load

Rds per Case
CASE PRICE $
Make & Model No.

10,000 Winchester SXT No Bid No Bid 
.40 Glock   165 Grain Load

NO Rds per Case
SUBSTITUTION CASE PRICE $

Make & Model No.

1,000 Federal 00 Buck 0.80$            796.00$                 
12 Gauge Shotgun load

NO Rds per Case 250
SUBSTITUTION CASE PRICE 199.00$                 

Make & Model No. Federal 00 Buck 

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL -- 86,950.00$    
ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS -- 3,280.00$       

RECOMMEND REJECTION

RECOMMEND REJECTION

RECOMMEND REJECTION

CMP Distributors, Inc



CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 07-25
Opening Date -- 7/24/07 BID TABULATION Pg 4 of 4
Date Prepared-- 7/30/07 AMMUNITION

VENDOR NAME:

CONTACT INFORMATION:
Hrs of Operation:
24 Hr. Phone #:

TERMS:

WARRANTY:

DELIVERY:

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Y or N

ADDENDUM #1:       Y or N

G:ITB-COT 07-25 AMMUNITION

Blank

Yes

Full Manuf Warranty 

30-240 Days

866-721-0970/517-974-4276

Net 30 

Yes

CMP Distributors, Inc

M-F 8:30-5:00



 

 
  August 14, 2007 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 

Susan A Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award To Low Bidder – Sidewalk Replacement and 

Installation Program  
  
Background 

• On July 19, 2007, bids were received for the sidewalk replacement and installation program for the 
2007/2008 fiscal year with an option to renew for two (2) additional one-year periods.  

• Five (5) bid responses were received. 
• Viking Construction is the low total bidder for both Proposal A – Sidewalk Replacement and Proposal B 

– Sidewalk Installation.  
• 180 vendors were notified via the MITN system with six (6) additional vendor walk-ins. 

 
Financial Considerations  

• Funds for this project are available in the 2007/08 Capital Accounts for Public Works Construction. 
• Proposal A – Account # 401513.7989.700 Sidewalk Replacement  
• Proposal B – Account # 401513.7989.650 Sidewalk Installation 

 
Legal Considerations  

• ITB-COT 07-26, Sidewalk Replacement and Installation was competitively bid and opened with five 
bidders responding. 

• The award is contingent upon the recommended bidder’s submission of proper contracts and bid 
documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.  

 
Policy Considerations 

• All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in the Sidewalk 
Replacement and Installation program for the City of Troy. (Goal II). 

• Moving this work forward would improve public safety and also reduce the liability for the City. (Goal I) 
 
Options 

• City management and the Public Works department recommend a contract award to the low total 
bidder, Viking Construction, Inc of Warren, MI, for an estimated total cost of $513,815.00, at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation not to exceed budgetary limitations.  

 
Prepared by: Marina Basta-Farouk, Project Construction Manager 
 
G:/Bid Award 06-07 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 – Sidewalk 07.07.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04e



CITY OF TROY
Opening Date -- 7/19/07 BID TABULATION ITB-COT 07-26
Date Prepared -- 7/24/07 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT & INSTALLATION Page 1 of 2

VENDOR NAME: ** Viking Construction Inc KoaLa-T

CHECK #: 65443 707136288
CHECK AMOUNT: 3,000.00$            3,000.00$           3,000.00$           

PROPOSAL A:  Sidewalk Replacement
UNIT UNIT UNIT

ITEM DESCRIPTION     EST. QTY PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT
1 Remove and Replace 4" Concrete 2.98$          298,000$           3.00$             300,000$          3.10$             310,000$          
2 Remove and Replace 6" Concrete 3.15$          62,370$             3.40$             67,320$            3.35$             66,330$            
3 Remove and Replace 8" Concrete 3.95$          30,415$             4.50$             34,650$            4.00$             30,800$            
4 Adjusting Drainage Structure 150.00$      3,000$               50.00$           1,000$              200.00$         4,000$              
5 Reconstruct Drainage Structure 175.00$      3,500$               150.00$         3,000$              220.00$         4,400$              
6 Reconstruct Sanitary Manhole 195.00$      1,950$               250.00$         2,500$              245.00$         2,450$              
7 Handicap Ramps 298.00$      44,700$             475.00$         71,250$            600.00$         90,000$            
8 Tree Root Grind 47.50$        16,625$             25.00$           8,750$              40.00$           14,000$            
9 Traffic Maintenance Included Included Included

10 Soil Erosion Control Included Included Included

11 Restoration Included Included Included
460,560$           488,470$          521,980$          

PROPOSAL B:  Sidewalk Installation
EST UNIT UNIT UNIT

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNITS QTY PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT

1 Ea 1.0 275.00$      275$                  50.00$           50$                   200.00$         200$                 
2 Ea 1.0 500.00$      500$                  300.00$         300$                 600.00$         600$                 
3 S.Y. 10.0 9.00$          90$                    9.00$             90$                   6.30$             63$                   
4 Ea 1.0 3,500.00$   3,500$               4,000.00$      4,000$              7,500.00$      7,500$              
5 Ea 1.0 250.00$      250$                  1,000.00$      1,000$              1,000.00$      1,000$              
6 Ea 1.0 150.00$      150$                  50.00$           50$                   150.00$         150$                 
7 L.F. 20 29.00$        580$                  25.00$           500$                 25.00$           500$                 
8 L.F. 10 65.00$        650$                  40.00$           400$                 50.00$           500$                 
9 Ea 2.0 180.00$      360$                  150.00$         300$                 250.00$         500$                 
10 LBS 2000 1.15$          2,300$               1.20$             2,400$              1.20$             2,400$              
11 S.F. 10394 3.35$          34,820$             3.15$             32,741$            3.50$             36,379$            
12 S.F. 530 3.80$          2,014$               3.50$             1,855$              3.75$             1,988$              
13 Install Handicap Ramps EACH 7.0 298.00$      2,086$               475.00$         3,325$              600.00$         4,200$              
14 LSUM 1.0 2,500.00$   2,500$               1,000.00$      1,000$              3,000.00$      3,000$              
15 LSUM 1.0 1,500.00$   1,500$               4,000.00$      4,000$              1,000.00$      1,000$              
16 S.Y. 335 3.50$          1,173$               7.00$             2,345$              8.00$             2,680$              
17 UNITS 1.0 8.00$          8$                      300.00$         300$                 200.00$         200$                 
18 TIMES 4.0 125.00$      500$                  100.00$         400$                 500.00$         2,000$              
19 Included Included Included Included

53,255$             55,056$            64,859.50$       

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL - PROPOSALS A & B: * 513,815$           543,526$          586,839.50$     

INSURANCE: Can Meet
Cannot Meet

PROGRESS PAYMENTS:
Identified as 

TERMS

WARRANTY

EXCEPTIONS

TWO FORMS COMPLETED:
             Legal Status Y or N
             Non-Collusion Y or N

ADDENDUM #1 Y or N

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Y OR N

ATTEST: ** DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDER 
Marina Basta Farouk Proposal - Sidewalk Replacement/Installation Program for 2007/2008 Fiscal Year with an Option to Renew for Two(2)
Tom Rosewarne Additional One-Year Periods
Yvonne Ranzinger __________________________
Julie Hamilton Susan Leirstein CPPB

Purchasing Director
G:Sidewalk Replacement & Installation ITB-COT 07-26

Est. Total Cost - Proposal A - Replacement

Est. Total Cost - Proposal B - Installation

Class A Sod

Watering Lawn Areas (1,000 Gal)

Mowing Grass Areas

Restoration

Install Concrete Sidewalk 4"

Install Concrete Sidewalk 6"

Traffic Maintenance

Soil Erosion Control

Remove/Replace Concrete Curb/Gutt

Class A Culvert, 12", If needed

Adjust Drainage Structures

Drainage Structure Covers

150 EACH

350 EACH

Relocate Sign & Posts, If needed

Included

Included

Removing Trees 8" - 18"

Removing Tress 3" - 7"

Removing Sidewalk & Driveway App

Relocate Hydrant, If needed

Relocate Flag Pole, If needed

Included

Lacaria Concrete Construction

336474028

20 EACH

10 EACH 

100,000 S.F.

19,800 S.F.

7,700 S.F.

20 EACH

XX

Blank

Blank

Blank

No
Yes

Yes

Yes

Blank

XX

Blank

Blank

1 Year

Blank

Yes
Yes

As Specified

Blank 

Yes
Yes

XX

Monthly

As Specified 

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes



CITY OF TROY
Opening Date -- 7/19/07 BID TABULATION ITB-COT 07-26
Date Prepared -- 7/24/07 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT & INSTALLATION Page 2 of 2

VENDOR NAME: Audia Concrete Construction
Inc

CHECK #: 11792433
CHECK AMOUNT: 3,000.00$             3,000.00$             

PROPOSAL A:  Sidewalk Replacement
UNIT UNIT

ITEM DESCRIPTION     EST. QTY PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT

1 Remove and Replace 4" Concrete 3.20$          320,000$           3.75$                 375,000$           
2 Remove and Replace 6" Concrete 3.30$          65,340$             4.50$                 89,100$             
3 Remove and Replace 8" Concrete 4.50$          34,650$             4.75$                 36,575$             
4 Adjusting Drainage Structure 250.00$      5,000$               250.00$             5,000$               
5 Reconstruct Drainage Structure 75.00$        1,500$               120.00$             2,400$               
6 Reconstruct Sanitary Manhole 75.00$        750$                  120.00$             1,200$               
7 Handicap Ramps 640.00$      96,000$             775.00$             116,250$           
8 Tree Root Grind 40.00$        14,000$             80.00$               28,000$             
9 Traffic Maintenance Included Included
10 Soil Erosion Control Included Included
11 Restoration Included Included

537,240$           653,525$           
PROPOSAL B:  Sidewalk Installation

EST UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION UNITS QTY PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT

1 Ea 1.0 400.00$      400$                  300.00$             300$                  
2 Ea 1.0 600.00$      600$                  600.00$             600$                  
3 S.Y. 10.0 15.00$        150$                  9.00$                 90$                    
4 Ea 1.0 4,500.00$   4,500$               2,000.00$          2,000$               
5 Ea 1.0 1,000.00$   1,000$               200.00$             200$                  
6 Ea 1.0 300.00$      300$                  100.00$             100$                  
7 L.F. 20 30.00$        600$                  25.00$               500$                  
8 L.F. 10 38.00$        380$                  45.00$               450$                  
9 Ea 2.0 1,800.00$   3,600$               250.00$             500$                  
10 LBS 2000 2.50$          5,000$               1.00$                 2,000$               
11 S.F. 10394 3.25$          33,781$             4.25$                 44,175$             
12 S.F. 530 3.35$          1,776$               4.75$                 2,518$               
13 Install Handicap Ramps EACH 7.0 640.00$      4,480$               775.00$             5,425$               
14 LSUM 1.0 2,000.00$   2,000$               2,000.00$          2,000$               
15 LSUM 1.0 1,000.00$   1,000$               1,000.00$          1,000$               
16 S.Y. 335 4.00$          1,340$               8.00$                 2,680$               
17 UNITS 1.0 900.00$      900$                  400.00$             400$                  
18 TIMES 4.0 2,000.00$   8,000$               125.00$             500$                  
19 Included Included Included

69,806$             65,437$             

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL - PROPOSALS A & B: 607,046$           718,962$           

INSURANCE: Can Meet
Cannot Meet

PROGRESS PAYMENTS:
Identified as 

TERMS

WARRANTY

EXCEPTIONS

TWO FORMS COMPLETED:
             Legal Status Y or N
             Non-Collusion Y or N

ADDENDUM #1 Y or N

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Y OR N

G:Sidewalk Replacement & Installation ITB-COT 07-26

Major Cement Company, Inc. 

336472542

100,000 S.F.

19,800 S.F.

7,700 S.F.

20 EACH

20 EACH

10 EACH 

150 EACH

350 EACH

Included

Included

Included

Est. Total Cost - Proposal A - Replacement

Removing Tress 3" - 7"

Removing Trees 8" - 18"

Removing Sidewalk & Driveway App.

Relocate Hydrant, If needed

Relocate Flag Pole, If needed

Relocate Sign & Posts, If needed

Remove/Replace Concrete Curb/Gutt

Class A Culvert, 12", If needed

Adjust Drainage Structures

Drainage Structure Covers

Install Concrete Sidewalk 4"

Install Concrete Sidewalk 6"

Traffic Maintenance

Soil Erosion Control

Class A Sod

Watering Lawn Areas (1,000 Gal)

Mowing Grass Areas

Restoration

XX

Est. Total Cost - Proposal B - Installation

Every 30 Days

30 Days

2 Year Maint Bond

Yes

Blank

Yes
Yes

Yes

Yes

XX

N/A

Per Contract

Per Contract

N/A

Yes
Yes

Yes



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

August 20, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

E-5 Resolution to Excuse Mayor Pro Tem Broomfield from the Special 
Joint City Council Meeting of Wednesday, August 1, 2007  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Mayor 
Pro Tem Broomfield at the Special Joint City Council Meeting of August 1, 2007 
due to being out of the county.  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-05



campbellld
Text Box
E-06













campbellld
Text Box
E-07







campbellld
Text Box
E-08







 

 
 
July 26, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services  

Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
Larysa Figol, Right-of-Way Representative 

     
SUBJECT: Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Sidewalk – Troy 

Long Lake, L.L.C., Section 15, Sidwell #88-20-15-101-001 
  
 
Background: 
 

 In connection with the development of the southeast corner of Long Lake and Livernois in Section 
15, the Real Estate Department has received a permanent easement for sidewalk from property 
owner Troy Long Lake, LLC, having Sidwell #88-20-15-101-001.  

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The consideration amount on this document is $1.00. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The format and content of this easement is consistent with easements previously accepted by 

City Council. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The dedication of easements is required as part of the development process.  (Goal I & V) 
 
Options: 
 
 City Management recommends that City Council accept the attached easement for sidewalk, 

consistent with our policy of accepting easements for property improvement. 
 
 
 
 
G:\MEMOS TO MAYOR AND CC\Troy Long Lake Sidewalk Esmt.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-09







campbellld
Text Box
E-10











































campbellld
Text Box
E-11









campbellld
Text Box
E-12







campbellld
Text Box
E-13



























 

 
July 30, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services  
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item: Winter Maintenance Agreement, Road Commission for Oakland 

County  
 
Background: 
 Attached is a copy of the proposed 2007/2008 Winter Maintenance Agreement between the Road 

Commission for Oakland County and the City of Troy. 
 Since 2001 the City of Troy has serviced all county roads in Troy for snow and ice control.  
 The amount of compensation to the City has increased by approximately two percent (2%) over 

last season’s contract, which does not cover our cost but a higher level of service is provided and 
the Road Commission for Oakland County is in concurrence. 

 It continues to be evident that this agreement is beneficial to both the RCOC and the City of Troy 
by allowing the City to administer Snow & Ice Control in a more timely and uniform manner to it’s 
high priority roads and allowing  the County to concentrate on it’s highest priority roads, I-75 and 
M-59. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 No additional staffing or equipment is required. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 Legal counsel has reviewed the contract for form and legality. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 Enhance the livability and safety of the community. (Goal I) 

 
Options: 
 City management is in agreement with the measured lane mile figures as has been presented, 

and with the level of compensation for each road configuration; therefore we recommend that the 
proposed maintenance agreement be approved as printed. 

 
Where legal review is necessary: 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:       
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-14





















campbellld
Text Box
E-15















campbellld
Text Box
E-16













campbellld
Text Box
E-17









TO:  Mayor & City Council 
 
FROM: Ethnic Issues Advisory Board 
 
RE:  Recommendation for a Board Vacancy 
 
DATE:  August 15, 2007 
 
 
At our August 14, 2007 Ethnic Issues Advisory Board Meeting, we discussed a 
recent vacancy with the resignation of Hailu Robele.  Hailu and his family have 
left Troy for El Paso, Texas due to his wife’s job transfer. 
 
A motion was made by Kelly Jones, seconded by Mayada Fakhouri to 
recommend Karen Yelder to the Troy City Council to fill the new vacancy on the 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board replacing outgoing Hailu Robele.  
 
Karen Yelder is a resident of Troy, United States Citizen and registered voter.  
She is also a member of the following: NAACP, Charles H. Wright African 
American Museum, Board of Directors Boys & Girls Club of Troy, Board of 
Directors Troy Schools Sex Education Advisory Board, Co-Chair of the Troy 
Daze Talent Show, Founder of a Social Group for African American Women 
Business Owners in Oakland County, Greater Grace Temple member. 
She has attended all sessions of Bridging the Racial Divide sponsored by the 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board, attended all MLK Celebration of Freedom events 
with City of Troy and the Troy Schools.  She is also an Athens Athletic Boosters 
parent and small Business Owner. 
 
The motion was approved unanimously to recommend Karen Yelder to fill the 
vacant position on the Ethnic Issues Advisory Board. 
 
Her leadership, dedication and compassion would make her an outstanding 
asset to the Board.  

 

campbellld
Text Box
F-01



August 1, 2007 
 
Hi Cindy:   
 
It has been wonderful serving as a Board member for Ethnic Issues 
Advisory Board.  I enjoyed working closely with all of you.  
Unfortunately my because of my wife's job we are relocating to El 
Paso, TX at the end of August.  Therefore, I would like to resign from 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board. 
 
Hailu S. Robele 
 
 



 

 

CITY  COUNCIL  ACTION  REPORTC C A RITY OUNCIL CTION EPORT  
 

 
August 2, 2007   
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT:   Bid Waiver - Fire Department Hose Testing 
 
Background 
 
 National standards require that fire departments pressure test fire hose 

annually. 
 The fire department has approximately 48,000 feet of fire hose of various 

sizes. 
 Troy volunteer firefighters expend an average of 625 man-hours per year 

conducting hose testing. 
 Troy fire pumpers are utilized to pressure test fire hose and hose testing 

results in several apparatus repairs annually. 
 On occasion, hose under test ruptures and may cause injury to personnel or 

damage to apparatus. 
 FireCATT, a Troy based company, provides hose testing services for fire 

departments utilizing specialized testing equipment and all labor required to 
load, unload and test the hose. 

 There are no other vendors that provide this service in the Detroit 
metropolitan area. 

 In addition to testing the hose, FireCATT assigns and attaches a barcode 
label to each length of hose and updates a database with the pertinent 
information about each length of hose.  

 Contracting fire hose testing will allow additional fire training for firefighters 
and reduce maintenance on fire apparatus.  

 
Financial Considerations 
 
 FireCATT offers two prices, depending on whether the hose is on apparatus 

($.285/foot) or in racks at the station ($.235/foot)  
 Based on the amount of hose to be tested and it’s location, the estimated cost 

is approximately $13,000. 
 Funds are budgeted in the Fire Halls Contractor Equipment Maintenance 

Account # 344.7802.150 to perform this testing. 
 

1 of 2 

 

campbellld
Text Box
F-02



 
August 2, 2007 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Bid Waiver – Fire Hose Testing 
 
 
Legal Considerations 
• Formal bidding procedures are waived, as no benefit would be derived from 

soliciting formal bids. 
 
 
Policy Considerations 
• Enhance the livability and safety of the community. (Goal I) 
• Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City 

Government. (Goal II) 
 
Options 
• City management and the Fire department are requesting a waiver of the 

formal bid process and authorization to utilize the services of FireCATT of 
Troy, MI, for fire hose testing at an estimated total cost of $13,000.00. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 of 2 
 
G:/Bid Award 06-07 New Format/Regular Business – Waiver HoseTesting.doc 

 



 
 
Chief Bill Nelson       July 12, 2007 
Troy Fire Department 
500 West Big Beaver Rd. 
Troy, MI  48084 
248-524-3419 
 
Dear Chief Nelson: 
 
We have discussed the probability of Troy outsourcing their hose testing requirements for 
2007.  FIRE CATT is excited to be included in these discussions.  I have included below 
the specifications we have set for the testing per our discussions. 
 

1. Document all Hose Data per the NFPA 1962 Standard 
2. Test each fire hose according to the stated Service Test Pressure on each hose 

per the NFPA 1962 Standard 
3. Test each hose dated prior to 1987 according to the NFPA 1962 Standard 
4. Test multiple diameter hose simultaneously at the required hose test pressures 

to minimize apparatus downtime 
5. Capable of testing 3,000 feet of hose per test cycle to minimize apparatus 

downtime. 
6. Provide hard copy Hose Test Report within 1 week of each test. 
7. Provide internet web access, login name and password, via www.firecatt.com, 

to all data in excel format within 1 week of payment received date. 
8. Provide data sort capability on internet report for special reporting formats 

and tracking. 
 
Throughout our discussions the issues of safety, time, technology and tracking are the 
most important to you and your department.  The specifications set above allow for these 
requirements to be met.  At this point in time we have not encountered other hose testing 
companies in the marketplace.  As a new service to the market we have designed our 
testing and reporting technology to meet the requirements of the industry.  
 
In today’s business environment I understand the need for competitive bidding.  And, I 
encourage you to examine the marketplace for fire hose testing companies.  We have yet 
to encounter another hose testing company in the Michigan/Ohio/Indiana region.  Let 
alone a service provider nationally that can meet these state-of-the-art testing capabilities.  
 
FIRE CATT is the single source supplier of fire hose testing services. If you require a 
formal bid we would be pleased to participate in the process.  If, after careful review, you 
find that there are no other options in the marketplace for these valuable services, we 
would be happy to provide a quality service testing program for the City of Troy Fire 
Department. 
 
Best Regards, 
 
Rex E. Curtis, President 

 
  3250 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Suite 544   Troy, Michigan  48084    248-643-7200  Ext. 11 

http://www.firecatt.com/


      

                 3250 West Big Beaver Rd. 
                                Suite 544       

2007 Hose Testing Contract                        Troy, MI   48084     
                    248-643-7200  Ext. 10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P. O. Number: 
 

Key Contact:  
 
Bill Nelson, Fire Chief 

Troy Fire Department 
500 West Big Beaver Rd. 
Troy, MI  48084 
248-524-3419 

 
 

[ Total Footage  ]    [ Price per Foot ]  [ Ext. ] 

 
 

Unknown *             $ 0.285     
Unknown **             $ 0.235          
 
*    Pricing for all hose loaded onto trucks and services conducted no later than    
      December 1, 2007. 
**  Pricing for all hose loaded onto racks and services conducted no later than    
      December 1, 2007. 

Fire Hose Testing Service Includes: 
 

• FIRE CATT Labor 
• Identification Tracking Process  
• Computerized Reporting and Internet Tracking  
• Test All Hose to NFPA 1962 Standards   
• Unpack / Repack All Hose Beds and Racks 
• Check All Couplings  
• Check all Gaskets As Needed 

 
Customer will be responsible for water supply and any costs associated with the supply of water or the 
transport to and from the service test site. 
 
 
Contact Name: Bill Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
Signature:  ___________________________ Date: _________ 
 
 
Terms: Net 30 Days    Service Test Records Delivered Upon Payment 

 

FIRE CATT, a Limited Liability Corporation, will inspect and service test all hose and couplings in accordance with the Standards of the NFPA as
set forth in Section 7 of the “Standard for the Inspection, Care, and Use of Fire Hose, Couplings, and Nozzles”. It is expressly understood and
agreed that FIRE CATT shall not be deemed or held liable, obligated or accountable upon or under any guarantees or warranties, express or
implies, statutory, by operation of the law, or otherwise, relative to the use of any tested fire hose, couplings, or nozzles immediately after the date
of inspection.  Furthermore, FIRE CATT, will not be held liable, obligated or accountable for any hose lengths that fail during testing under
specified conditions and pressures. 



campbellld
Text Box
F-03









      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

August 20, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 

F-4 Personnel Evaluation – City Manager Phillip L. Nelson 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
The annual compensation of Council Appointee Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager, 

is INCREASED by    %, EFFECTIVE July 28, 2007. 

 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04



campbellld
Text Box
F-05

















Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
August 13, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

Charles T. Craft, Police Chief 
   

SUBJECT: Emergency Purchase of Firearms Ammunition  
 

Background 
 On May 21, 2007, the Police department pre-reserved 100,000 rounds of .223 caliber 

ammunition in anticipation of the purchasing of patrol rifles.  This pre-ordering was made 
with Michigan Police Equipment, who holds the state contract.  Michigan Police Equipment 
told the Police department that the ammunition would be delivered within three (3) months.  
The cost of this purchase was to be $26,000.00, or $262.00 per thousand rounds. 

 This ammunition is required to complete transition training to the new patrol rifle platform 
and allow the rifles to be placed into service. 

 On August 7, 2007, the Police department inquired as to the delivery status of the 
ammunition and was told that the ammunition wouldn't be available until January 2008 at 
the earliest. 

 The Police department conducted a survey into the availability of .223 ammunition with 
other Police departments and ammunition distributors. 

 All Police departments are currently, or have been, waiting for six (6) to nine (9) months for 
delivery of their ammunition orders. 

 All ammunition distributors indicated the lead-time on ammunition delivery to their 
customers is six (6) months at best. 

 The Police department was able to locate an ammunition supplier, Jerry's Sports Center of 
Forest City, PA, who had 109,000 rounds of imported ammunition available to purchase.  
The cost of this purchase is $31,882.50, or $292.50 per thousand rounds. 

 Based on experience, the Police department realized that this shipment of ammunition 
would be sold within hours if there were no immediate purchase made. 

 There is a nation-wide shortage of .223 ammunition, due to the war in Iraq and 
Afghanistan, and the increased cost of raw materials to manufacture ammunition.  

 The Police department is committed to protecting the citizens of Troy and recognizes the 
need to purchase this ammunition outside the normal municipal purchasing parameters. 

 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-06



Page 2 of 2 

August 13, 2007 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Emergency Purchase - Ammunition 

 

 

Financial Considerations 
 Funds are available in the 2007/08 Police Operating budget for this purchase, Account 

#322.7740.012. 
 

Legal Considerations 
 The purchase of this ammunition falls within an emergency situation, approved by the City 

Manager and reported to City Council at the next regularly scheduled meeting, in 
accordance with Chapter 7, Purchases, Contracts, & Sales, paragraph 9. 

 There are no other vendors readily available to deliver this item. 
 Prvi-Partizan Inc., a Serbian ammunition company, manufactures the .223 caliber 

ammunition. 
 The .223 caliber ammunition meets all NATO, SAMMI and MIL-Spec M195 specifications, 

which are used by American ammunition manufacturers. 
 

Policy Considerations 
 This project will enhance both the safety of the community and the Police officers who 

service them.  (Goal I) 
 

Options 
 City management and the Police department request Council’s confirmation of the 

purchase of .223 caliber ammunition from the sole known supplier, Jerry's Sports Center 
located in Forest City, PA, at an estimated cost of $31,882.50, plus freight. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Sergeant Michael Bjork 

 
 
G:/Bid Award 06-07 New Format/Regular Business – Emergency – AmmunitionDuty 08.07.doc 



 

 
 
August 13, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance and Administration 
 
SUBJECT:   Amendments to Chapter 10 – Employees Retirement System 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 The attached amendments are necessary to bring Chapter 10 into compliance with settled labor 

agreements. 
 The Employees Retirement Board reviewed and approved the amendments at their August 8, 

2007 Board meeting.  
 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The net financial impact of these changes was reviewed with City Council at the time of contract 

approval. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm has reviewed the proposed changes and has concurred with them. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 There are no policy considerations associated with this item.  

 
Options: 
 
 City Council approves the amendments to Chapter 10 – Employees Retirement System as noted. 

 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:       
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-07



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 1

 
CHAPTER 10 - EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

 
1. Definitions.  The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the 

meaning ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different 
meaning: 

 
 (A) Accumulated contributions means the sum of all amounts deducted from the compensation 

of a member and credited to his individual account in the member's deposit fund, together 
with regular interest thereon. 

 
 (B) Beneficiary means any person, except a retirant, who is in receipt of, or who has entitlement 

to, a pension or other benefit, payable from the funds of the retirement system. 
 
 (C) Board of trustees or board means the board of trustees provided for in this chapter. 
 
 (D) Compensation means the salary or wages paid an employee for personal services rendered 

by him to the city.  The term shall not include allowances for clothing, equipment, travel and 
similar items, nor shall it include the payment of sick or vacation leave that is made because 
of termination or retirement. 

 
 (E) Council means the legislative body of the City of Troy. 
 
 (F) Credited service means the total of a member's service, to the extent such service is 

credited to him by the board of trustees. 
 
  (Rev. 07-26-93) 
 
 (G) Employee means any person in the employ of the city. 
 
 (H) Final average compensation means the average of the annual compensation paid a 

member during the three (3) highest calendar years of his service contained within the last 
ten (10) calendar years, immediately preceding termination of his last employment with the 
City. 

 
  (Rev. 11-6-00) 
 
 (I) Member means any employee who is included in the membership of the retirement system. 
 
 (J) Pension means an annual amount payable by the retirement system throughout the future 

life of a person or for a temporary period as provided in this chapter.  All pensions shall be 
paid in equal monthly installments. 

 
 (K) Pension reserve means the present value of all payments to be made on account of any 

pension, computed on the basis of such mortality and other tables of experience, and 
regular interest, as the board of trustees shall from time to time adopt. 

 
 (L) Regular interest means such rate of interest per annum, compounded annually, as the 

board of trustees shall from time to time adopt. 
 
 (M) Retirant means any member who retires with a pension payable from funds of the 

retirement system. 
 



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 2

 (N) Retirement means a member's withdrawal from the employ of the city with a pension 
payable from the funds of the retirement system. 

 
 (O) Retirement system or system means the city employees retirement system created and 

established by this chapter. 
 
 (P) Service means personal service rendered to the city by an employee of the city. 
 
  (Rev. 02-11-91) 
 
2. Board of Trustees.  The Board of Trustees is vested with the power and authority to administer, 

manage and operate the retirement system, and to construe and make effective the provisions of 
this Chapter.  The Board shall consist of eight trustees as follows: 

 
 (Rev. 03-01-04) 
 
 (A) The City Manager, by virtue of his position. 
 
 (B) The Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration, by virtue of his position. 
 
  (Rev. 11-6-00) 
 
 (C) A member of Council selected by the Council. 
 
  (Rev. 02-28-94) 
 
 (D) A citizen, who is an elector of the City, and who is not a member, retirant or beneficiary of 

the retirement system, and who is not a member of the Council, to be appointed by the 
Council. 

 
  (Rev. 09-11-78) 
 

(E) Three members of the retirement system to be elected by the members of the system in 
accordance with such rules and regulations as the Board shall from time to time adopt to 
govern such elections.  

 
 (F) A retiree member in the Defined Benefit plan, who shall be appointed by the City Council, 

and shall serve as a non-voting member. 
 
 (g) Of the five employee members, two must be in the Defined Benefit plan.  A minimum of two 

of the five member trustees, as set forth in paragraphs A, B or E, must be a member of the 
Defined Benefit plan. 

 
   (Rev. 03-01-04) 



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 3

 
3. Terms of Office.  The regular term of office for the appointed citizen, the 3 member trustees, and the 

Council trustee, shall be 3 years. 
 
 (Rev. 02-28-94) 
 
Vacancy of Board 
 
3.4  If a member trustee leaves the employ of the City he shall be considered to have resigned from the 

Board and the vacancy shall be filled for the unexpired portion of the term. 
 
 (Rev. 02-11-91) 
 
Board Quorum, Vote, Meetings, Proceedings 
 
3.5  Four trustees shall constitute a quorum at any meeting of the Board of Trustees.  Each trustee shall 

be entitled to one vote on each question before the Board and at least four concurring votes shall 
be required for a decision by the Board.  The Board shall hold meetings regularly, at least one in 
each quarter year, and shall designate the time and place thereof.  The Board shall adopt its own 
rules of procedure. 

 
 (Rev. 02-11-91) 
 
Board Chairman, Retirement System Officers, Employees 
 
3.6  (A) The Board of Trustees shall designate from its own number a Chairman and a Vice-

Chairman. 
 

(B) The City Treasurer shall be the Treasurer of the Retirement System. 
 
 (C) The Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration shall be the Administrative Officer 

and serve as secretary of the Retirement System and he shall be the custodian of its money 
and investments. 

 
  (Rev. 11-6-00) 
 
 (D) The City Attorney shall be the Legal Advisor to the Board of Trustees. 
   
 (E) The Board of Trustees shall designate an actuary who shall be the Technical Advisor to the 

Board and who shall perform such other duties as are required of him under this Chapter.  
 
 (F) The Board of Trustees may employ such other services as are approved by the City 

Manager and authorized by the Council. 
 
  (Rev. 06-7-99) 



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 4

 
Records, Annual Reports 
 
3.7  The Administrative Officer shall keep, or cause to be kept, such data as shall be necessary for an 

actuarial valuation of the Retirement System. 
 
 (Rev. 09-23-74) 
 
Experience Tables, Regular Interest, Adoption Of 
 
3.8  The Board of Trustees shall from time to time adopt such mortality and other Tables of Experience, 

and a rate of regular interest, as are required in the proper operation of the Retirement System; 
provided, that no such rate of regular interest shall exceed seven percent per annum, compounded 
annually. 

 
 (Rev. 02-4-80) 
 
4. Membership.  The membership of the Retirement System shall include only those persons who are 

classified as full time on the records of the Human Resources Department of the City, and shall 
specifically exclude but not be limited to the following: (1) any employee who is employed by the 
City in a position normally requiring less than 1,000 hours of work per annum, (2) any person whose 
services are compensated on a contractual or fee basis, (3) volunteer firefighters as such, (4) 
elected officials of the City, and (5) employees classified as part time, seasonal or temporary, on the 
records of the Human Resources Department of the City regardless of the number of hours actually 
worked by the employee in any calendar year.  

 
 In any case of doubt as to the membership status of any employee, the Board shall decide the 

question. 
 
 (Rev. 01-22-01) 
 
Termination of Membership 
 
4.2  Should any member cease to be employed in a position covered by the Retirement System he shall 

thereupon cease to be a member and his credited service at that time shall be forfeited, unless 
otherwise provided in this Chapter.  If he is re-employed by the City in a position covered by the 
system he shall again become a member.  Should his re-employment occur within a period of 5 
years from the date he last ceased to be a member, his credited service last forfeited by him shall 
be restored to his credit, provided he immediately returns to the Members Deposit Fund the 
amount, if any, he withdrew therefrom, together with regular interest thereon from the date of 
withdrawal to the date of repayment.  Upon a member's retirement, he shall cease to be a member 
of the system. 

 
 (Rev. 02-11-91) 
 
Service Credit 
 
4.3  The Board shall fix and determine by appropriate rules and regulations the amount of service to be 

credited any member; provided, that in no case shall less than 10 days of service rendered by him 
in any calendar month be credited as a month of service, nor shall less than 10 months of service 
rendered by him in any calendar year be credited as a year of service, nor shall more than 1 year of 
service be credited any member for all service rendered by him in any calendar year. 

 (Rev. 08-7-67) 



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 5

 
4.4 Military Service Credit.  If an employee of the City, who while employed by the City, enters the 

Armed Forces of the United States during any period of compulsory military service, such armed 
service shall be credited him as City service; provided, that (1) he re-enters the employ of the City, 
in a position covered by this retirement system, within 6 months from and after termination of such 
armed service actually required of him, and (2) he pays into the Members Deposit Fund the 
amount, if any, he may have withdrawn therefrom, together with regular interest from the date of 
withdrawal to the date of repayment, and (3) in no case shall any member be credited with more 
than 5 years of service for all such armed service rendered by him.  In any case of doubt as to the 
period to be so credited any member, the Board of Trustees shall have final power to determine 
such period. 

 
 (Rev. 02-11-91) 
 
4.5 Additional Service Credits.  Any person (having been first employed by the City prior to January 

22, 2001) who is in the active employ of the City as of the date of enactment of this provision, 
and who currently is or has previously been excluded from membership in the Retirement 
System pursuant to the provisions of Section 4(1) (solely due to being employed by the City in a 
“part time” position normally requiring less than 1,000 hours of work per annum), shall be 
subject to the following additional provisions: 

 
 (A) Any such employee who as of the date of enactment of this provision has completed five 

(5) or more consecutive years of service in such part time position, shall immediately be 
eligible to become a member of the Retirement System and receive credit for such 
service; provided that during each such year he or she performed services in at least 10 
months and completed at least 1,000 hours of work, and that such consecutive period of 
service is continuing as of the date of enactment of this provision. 

 
 (B) Any such employee who after the date of enactment of this provision (and prior to 

January 21, 2006), completes a minimum of five (5) consecutive years of service in such 
part time position, shall be eligible to become a member of the Retirement System and 
receive credit for such service, effective as of their completion of such period of service; 
provided that during each such year he or she performed services in at least 10 months 
and completed at least 1,000 hours of work. 

 
 (C) Any such employee who currently is or otherwise becomes a member of the Retirement 

System pursuant to Section 4 (due to a change in job classification), and who previously 
was excluded from membership as a part time employee, shall be eligible to receive 
credit for years of service completed in such part time position, effective as of the later of 
the enactment of this provision or their otherwise becoming a member; provided that 
only the consecutive period of service (during each year of which he or she performed 
services in at least 10 months and completed at least 1,000 hours of work) that 
commenced prior to January 22, 2001, and that was continuing at the date they became 
a member shall be so credited. 

 
 (D) An employee referred to in (A) or (B) above, shall continue to be a member and receive 

credit for service only for such period as he or she continues to perform services in at 
least 10 months complete at least 1,000 hours of work in any year.  An employee 
referred to in (C) above, shall continue to be a member and receive credit for service 
only for such period that he or she continues to be employed in a position that otherwise 
qualifies them for membership pursuant to the provisions of Section 4.  All such 
employees shall be subject to the break-in-service provisions of Section 4.2, and the 
vesting requirements of Sections 6 and 57.  In no event shall any year of service be  



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 6

 
counted more than once pursuant to these provisions. 

 
 (E) If the first period for which an employee receives service credit hereunder occurs prior to 

January 1, 1998, such credited service shall be applied towards determining the amount 
of pension under Section 6.1 to which the employee may become entitled upon 
retirement; provided that the value of such pension may be transferred to the Defined 
Contribution Plan in accordance with such procedures as the Board may determine.  If 
the first period for which an employee receives service credit hereunder occurs on or 
after such date, the Board shall determine (and the City shall contribute) those amounts 
that would otherwise have been required to be contributed on such employee’s behalf 
under Section 55 with respect to such years. 

 
 (F) Notwithstanding any provision in this Chapter to the contrary, for purposes of calculating 

the amount of benefit (under Section 6.1) or contribution (under Section 55) to which a 
member is entitled with respect to each year of credited service referred to in (A), (B), 
(C) and (D) above, the benefit or contribution otherwise due pursuant to this Chapter 
shall be prorated for each such year based on the actual number of hours worked during 
such year, as determined from the following schedule: 

 
    Hours Worked  Year of Service Credit 
    1,000 to 1,499   50%  
    1,500 to 1,999   75% 
    2,000 and over  100% 
 

(G) In order to become a member and/or receive service credits in accordance with this 
provision, an eligible employee must elect (within six (6) months of the date of 
enactment of this provision) to purchase such service credits, by agreeing in writing to 
contribute to the Retirement System those amounts that would otherwise have been 
required to be contributed by the employee under Section 9.1 or Section 55 with 
respect to such years, along with such interest as the actuary and/or Board shall 
determine is appropriate.  Such amounts shall be deducted from payroll in accordance 
with such procedures as the Board may determine, provided that all amounts due shall 
be contributed into the Retirement System no later than the time the employee 
terminates his employment with the City.  Failure to contribute such amounts in a timely 
manner will result in forfeiture of such service credits. 

 
(Rev. 01-14-02) 
 

4.6 Prior Governmental Retirement Service. A member of the Employees Retirement 
System may be eligible for prior governmental retirement service credit if all of the 
following requirements are satisfied:   

   
(A) The member must be still actively employed by the City of Troy. 
 
(B) The member must have a minimum of 60 months of credited service acquired as a 

member of the Troy Employees Retirement System. 
 

(C) The member must have attained the age requirements for the Troy Employees 
Retirement System. 

 
(D) The member must have previously acquired credited service as a member of another 

official governmental retirement system.   



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 7

 
If all of the above requirements are satisfied, then a member who has not yet met the service 
requirements for the Troy Employees Retirement System shall be entitled to use his or her 
credited service from another official governmental retirement system for eligibility purposes 
only. 

 
(Rev. 10-07-02) 

 
5. Voluntary Retirement. Any member, who has attained age 55 years and has 10 or more years of 

credited service in force, may retire upon his written application filed with the Board of Trustees 
setting forth at what time, not less than 30 days nor more than 90 days subsequent to the execution 
and filing thereof, he desires to be retired. 

 
 
5.1 Normal Retirement.  Normal Retirement age is 65 years.  If a member who is separated from City 

employment on or after his attainment of age 65 years has 10 or more years of credited service in 
force, he shall be retired. 

 
 (Rev. 11-7-88) 
 
6. Deferred Retirement.  In the event a member who has 10 or more years of credited service leaves 

the employ of the City before he is eligible to retire, he shall be entitled to a pension computed 
according to the provisions of this chapter in force at the time of said member's separation from City 
employment; provided, that he does not withdraw his accumulated contributions from the Members 
Deposit Fund.  His said pension shall begin the first day of the calendar month next following the 
month in which he files his application for same with the Board of trustees on or after his attainment 
of age 60 years. 

 
 (Rev. 04-20-92) 
 
6.1(A) Straight Life Pension.  Upon a member's retirement, as provided in this Chapter, if he has less than 

27 years service, he shall receive a straight life pension equal to a percent of an amount computed 
by multiplying the number of years, and fraction of a year, of his credited service by 2.25 percent of 
his final average compensation listed below.  Such percent shall be equal to 70 percent increased 
by 1/2 of 1 percent for each full month by which the member's age at the time of retirement exceeds 
55 years.  Provided, in no event shall such percent exceed 100 percent, and, provided that in case 
of disability retirement or death pension the percent shall be 100 percent. For Troy Command 
Officers Association (TCOA) and Troy Police Officers Association (TPOA) members, the percent of 
Final Average Compensation (FAC) will be 2.8% for the first 25 years and 1% per year thereafter, 
with a cap of 75% of final average compensation. 

 
(Rev. 03-01-04)



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 8

 
6.1(B) Age and Service Retirement.  Upon a member's retirement, as provided in this Chapter, if he has 

27 or more years service, he shall receive a straight life pension equal to an amount computed by 
multiplying the number of years, and fraction of a year, of his credited service by 2.25%. For TCOA 
and Troy Police Officers Association (TPOA) members, the percent of Final Average Compensation 
(FAC) will be 2.8% for the first 25 years and 1% per year thereafter. with a cap of 75% of final 
average compensation. 

 
(Rev. 03-01-04) 
 

6.1(C) A member who has 27 or more years service may retire on or after his attainment of age 50.  Troy 
Police Officers Association (TPOA) and Troy Command Officers Association (TCOA), and Troy Fire 
Staff Officers Association (TFSOA) members retiring after July 1, 1998 may retire as an age and 
service retirement after the attainment of 25 years of service.  Classified and Exempt and Michigan 
Association of Police (MAP) members may retire as an age and service retirement after the 
attainment of age 55 and 25 years of service. 

 
  (Rev 03-01-04) 
 
6.1(D) Supplemental Retirement.   All members excluding Troy Police Officers Association (TPOA) and 

TCOA shall receive an additional pension from age 50 to age 62 to equal the amount it would have 
been if the percentages in the formulas in subsections A or B above were .25% greater.  

 
 (Rev. 03-01-04) 
 
6.2 Terminal Payments.  If a retirant dies before he has received in straight life pension payments an 

aggregate amount equal to his accumulated contributions standing to his credit in the members 
deposit fund at the time of his retirement, the difference between his accumulated contributions and 
the aggregate amount of straight life pension payments received by him shall be paid to such 
person as he shall have nominated by written designation duly executed and filed with the board.  If 
there be no such designated person surviving the retirant, the difference, if any, shall be paid to his 
estate. 

 
 (Rev. 02-11-91) 
 
Pension Options. 
 
6.3 Prior to the receipt of his first retirement payment, but not thereafter, a member may elect to receive 

his pension as a straight life pension payable throughout his life; or, he may elect to receive the 
actuarial equivalent, at that time, of his straight life pension in a reduced pension payable 
throughout his life, and nominate a beneficiary, in accordance with the provisions of Option A thru D 
as set forth below: 

 
 Option A. Joint and Survivor Pension:  Upon the death of a retirant who elected Option A, his 

reduced pension shall be continued throughout the life and paid to such person, having an 
insurable interest in his life, as he shall have nominated by written designation duly executed and 
filed with the Board of Trustees. 



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 9

 
 Option B. Modified Joint and Survivor Pension:  Upon the death of a retirant, who elected Option B, 

one-half of his reduced pension shall be continued throughout the life of and paid to such person, 
having an insurable interest in his life, as he shall have nominated by written designation duly 
executed and filed with the Board of Trustees. 

 
 Option C. Joint and Survivor Pension (pop-up A):  Upon the death of a retirant who elected Option 

C, his reduced pension shall be continued throughout the life and paid to such person, having an 
insurable interest in his life, as he shall have nominated by written designation duly executed and 
filed with the Board of Trustees.  If the selected beneficiary predeceases the retirant, the pension 
shall revert to a straight-life pension payable throughout the remainder of his life. 

 
 Option D. Modified Joint and Survivor Pension (pop-up B):  Upon the death of a retirant who elected 

Option D, one-half of his reduced pension shall be continued throughout the life of and paid to such 
person, having an insurable interest in his life, as he shall have nominated by written designation 
duly executed and filed with the Board of Trustees.  If the selected beneficiary predeceases the 
retirant, the pension shall revert to a straight-life pension payable throughout the remainder of his 
life. 

 
 (Rev. 11-2-87) 
 
7.1A Upon the application of an Exempt, Classified, or Michigan Association of Police (MAP) member, or 

his department head, who is below age 60 or who does not otherwise qualify for retirement, who (1) 
is in the employ of the City, (2) has 10 or more years of credited service [for American Federation of 
State, County, and Municipal Employees (AFSCME) employees hired after 2/12/96, or Michigan 
Association of Police (MAP) members who have 5 or more years of credited services as of 
8/7/1995)], (3) becomes totally and permanently incapacitated for full time work, by reason of a 
personal injury or disease, and is in receipt of disability benefits from Social Security, or has 
received a favorable determination letter with a current effective date for the commencement of 
disability benefits under Social Security, may be retired by the Board of Trustees; provided, that 
after a medical examination of the member made by or under the direction of a Medical Committee 
consisting of 2 physicians, 1 of whom shall be named by the Board, and 1 by the member, the said 
Medical Committee reports to the Board, in writing,(1) that the member is mentally or physically 
totally incapacitated for full time work, (2) that his incapacity will probably be permanent, and (3) that 
the member should be retired.  In the event that the 2 physicians constituting the Medical 
Committee do not agree in their findings, then the Board may, in its discretion, appoint a third 
physician to examine the member and based upon the report, in writing, of the third physician, the 
Board may retire the member. 

 
 The 10 years credited service requirement contained in this section shall be waived in the case of a 

member whom the Board finds (1) to be totally and permanently incapacitated for full time work as a 
natural and proximate result of a personal injury or disease arising out of and in the course of his 
actual performance of duty in the employ of the City and (2) to be in receipt of workmen's 
compensation on account of his disability arising out of and in the course of his City employment. 

 
 (Rev. 03-01-04) 



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 10

 
7.1B Upon the application of an American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees 

(AFSCME), Troy Police Officers Association (TPOA), or Troy Command Officers Association 
(TCOA) member, or his department head, who is below age 60 or who does not otherwise qualify 
for retirement, who (1) is in the employ of the City, (2) has 5 or more years of credited service, and 
(3) becomes totally and permanently incapacitated for duty in the employ of the City, by reason of a 
personal injury or disease, may be retired by the Board of Trustees; provided, that after a medical 
examination of the member made by or under the direction of a Medical Committee consisting of 2 
physicians, 1 of whom shall be named by the Board, and 1 by the member, the said Medical 
Committee reports to the Board, in writing, (1) that the member is mentally or physically totally 
incapacitated for duty in the employ of the City, (2) that his incapacity will probably be permanent, 
and (3) that the member should be retired.  In the event that the 2 physicians constituting the 
Medical Committee do not agrees in their findings, then the Board may, in its discretion, appoint a 
third physician to examine the member and based upon the report, in writing, of the third physician, 
the Board may retire the member.  The 5 years credited service requirement contained in this 
section shall be waived in the case of a member whom the Board finds (1) to be totally and 
permanently incapacitated for duty in the employ of the City as a natural and proximate result of a 
personal injury or disease arising out of and in the course of his actual performance of duty in the 
employ of the City and (2) to be in receipt of workmen's compensation on account of his disability 
arising out of and in the course of his City employment. 

 
 (Rev. 03-01-04) 
 
7.2  Disability Pension 
 
 (A) Upon retirement of a member on account of disability, as provided in this Chapter, he shall 

receive a pension computed in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter; provided, 
that his straight life disability pension shall not be less than the amount it would be if he had 
10 years of credited service. 

 
 (B) Troy Police Officers Association (TPOA) Duty Disability.  Upon the retirement of a member 

of the Troy Police Officers Association (TPOA) on account of disability, as provided in this 
Chapter, he shall receive a pension of not less than two-thirds of his final average 
compensation during the period he is in receipt of workmen's compensation on account of 
his disability arising out of and in the course of his City employment. 

 
  (Rev. 03-01-04) 
 
Re-examination of Disability Retirant 
 
7.4 At least once each year during the first 5 years following a member's retirement on account of 

disability, and at least once in every 3 year period thereafter, the Board of Trustees may, and upon 
the retirant's application shall, require any disability retirant who has not attained age 55 years 
undergo a medical examination to be made by or under the direction of a physician designated by 
the Board.  If the said retirant refuses to submit to such medical examination in any such period, his 
disability pension may be suspended by the Board until his withdrawal of such refusal. Should such 
refusal continue for 1 year all his rights in and to a disability pension may be revoked by the Board.  
If upon such medical examination of said retirant, the said physician reports to the Board that the 
said retirant is physically able and capable of resuming employment with the City he shall be 
returned to City employment and his disability pension shall terminate; provided, that the report of 
the said physician is concurred in by the Board.  In returning the said retirant  to City employment 



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 11

 
 reasonable latitude shall be allowed the City in placing him in a position commensurate with his 
type of work and compensation at the time of his retirement. 

  
(Rev. 05-10-65) 

 
7.5 A disability retirant who is returned to City employment shall again become a member of the 

retirement system.  His credited service at the time of his retirement shall be restored to full force 
and effect.  He shall be given service credit for the period he was in receipt of workmen's 
compensation on account of his disability arising out of and in the course of his City employment; 
otherwise he shall not be given service credit for such period. 

 
 (Rev. 08-7-67) 
  
7.6 If a disability retirant, who has not attained age 55 years become engaged in gainful occupation, 

business, or employment paying him more than the difference between his annual rate of 
compensation at the time of his retirement and his disability pension, his pension shall be reduced 
to an amount which together with the amount so earned by him shall equal but not exceed his 
annual rate of compensation. Should the retirant's earnings change, the reduction of his pension 
shall be adjusted accordingly. 

 
 (Rev. 02-11-91) 
 
8. Duty Death Pension.  If a member dies as the result of personal injury or disease arising solely and 

exclusively out of and in the course of his employment with the City, and such death, or injury or 
disease resulting in such death, be found by the Board of Trustees to have been the result of his 
actual performance of duty in the employ of the City, the benefits provided in this section shall be 
paid, subject to the condition that workmen's compensation becomes payable on account of the 
death of the member.  

 
 (A) His widow shall receive a pension computed as if the member had (1) retired the day 

preceding the date of his death, notwithstanding that he might not have been otherwise 
eligible to retire, (2) elected Option A and (3) nominated his widow as beneficiary; provided, 
that the pension shall not be less than 25 percent of the member's final average 
compensation.  For Troy Command Officers Association (TCOA) and Troy Police Officers 
Association (TPOA), and Troy Command Officers Association (TCOA), and Troy Fire Staff 
Officers Association (TFSOA) members retiring after July 1, 1998, the percent will be 50 
instead of 25.  

 
  (Rev. 03-01-04) 
 
 (B) If there be no widow, or if the widow's pension shall cease, for any reason, the member's 

dependent children shall share equally in a pension equal to 25 percent of the member's 
final average compensation.  Each child's pension shall terminate when the child has either 
died, married, or attained age 18 years. 

 
 (C) As used in this section, the term "Widow" means any person to whom the member was 

married at the time his employment with the City is terminated.   
 
8.1 Non-Duty Death Pension.  If any member who has 10 or more years of credited service and dies 

while in the employ of the City, his or her spouse shall receive a pension computed in the same 
manner in all respects as if the member had (1) retired the day preceding the date of death, 
notwithstanding that the member might not have been otherwise eligible to retire, (2) elected  



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 12

 
Option A, and (3) nominated the member's spouse as beneficiary.  

 
 (Rev. 1-23-95) 
 
9. Members Deposit Fund.  The Members Deposit Fund shall be the fund in which shall be 

accumulated, at regular interest, the contributions of members, and from which shall be made 
refunds and transfers of accumulated contributions, as provided in this Chapter. 

 
 (Rev. 08-07-67)  
 
9.1  Members Contributions.  A members contribution to the retirement system shall be based on the 

following percent of compensation: Michigan Association of Police (MAP) 1.50; Troy Police Officers 
Association (TPOA); 4.00, Troy Command Officers Association (TCOA) 34.00; Classified and 
Exempt 1.00 1.50; American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees (AFSCME) 
1.50; and Troy Command Officers Association (TCOA), and Troy Fire Staff Officers Association 
(TFSOA) 43.00.  

 
 (Rev. 03-01-04) 
 
9.2  Payroll deductions.  The contributions provided for in this Chapter shall be deducted from the 

compensations of each member on each and every payroll, for each and every payroll period, from 
the date of his entrance in the retirement system to the date his City employment terminates.  Each 
member shall be deemed to consent and agree to the deductions made and provided for herein.  
Payment of his compensation less said deduction shall be a full and complete discharge and 
acquittance of all claims and demands whatsoever for the service rendered by him during the 
period covered by such payment, except as to benefits provided by this Chapter. When deducted, 
each of said contributions shall be credited to the member's individual account in the Members 
Deposit Fund. 

 
 (Rev. 04-20-92) 
 
9.5 Contributions Transferred.  Upon a member's retirement, his accumulated contributions standing to 

his credit in the Members Deposit Fund shall be transferred to the Retirement Reserve Fund.  
Except as otherwise provided in this Chapter, at the expiration of a period of years from and after 
the date a member ceases to be an employee of the City, any balance standing to his credit in the 
Members Deposit Fund, unclaimed by the member of his legal representative, shall be transferred 
to the Income Fund. 

 
 (Rev. 02-11-91) 
 
Refund of Member's Contributions 
 
9.6 Should any member cease to be employed by the City and not be entitled to a pension payable 

from funds of the Retirement System, he shall be paid the balance standing to his credit in the 
Members Deposit Fund, provided he files his written request for same.  

 
 (Rev. 04-20-92) 
 
9.7 Upon the death of a member, if no pension becomes payable on account of his City employment, 

the balance standing to his credit in the Members Deposit Fund at the time of his death shall be 
paid to such person or persons as he shall have nominated by written designation duly executed 
and filed with the Board of Trustees.  If no designated person or persons survives the member,  



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 13

 
his accumulated contributions shall be paid to his estate. 

 
 (Rev. 02-11-91) 
 
Pension Reserve Fund 
 
10.1 The Pension Reserve Fund is hereby created.  It shall be the fund in which shall be accumulated 

the contributions made by the City to the retirement system and from which shall be made transfers 
of pensions reserves, as provided in this section. 

 
 (Rev. 11-23-64) 
 
10.2  Upon the basis of such mortality and other tables of experience, and regular interest, as the Board 

of Trustees shall from time to time adopt, the actuary shall annually compute the pension reserves 
or service rendered and to be rendered by members, and the pension reserves for pensions being 
paid retirants and beneficiaries.  The pension reserve liabilities so determined shall be financed by 
annual City contributions to be appropriated by the Council; said contributions: 

 
 (A) for member's current service shall be a percent of their annual compensations which will 

produce an amount which if paid annually by the City during their future service will be 
sufficient, at the time of their retirement, to provide the pension reserves, not financed by 
members' future contributions, for the portions of the pensions to be paid them based upon 
their future service; and  

 
 (B) for members' accrued service shall be a percent of their annual compensations which will 

produce an amount which if paid annually by the City over a period of years, to be 
determined by the Council, will amortize, at regular interest, the unfunded pension reserves 
for the accrued service portions of the pensions to which they may be entitled upon 
retirement; and  

 
 (C) For pensions being paid retirants and beneficiaries shall be a percent of the annual 

compensations of members which will produce an amount which if paid annually by the City 
over a period of years, to be determined by the Council, will amortize, at regular interest, the 
unfunded pension reserves for pensions being paid retirants and beneficiaries. 

 
  (Rev. 11-2-87) 
 
10.3 In the event the amount appropriated in the budget in any fiscal year is insufficient to pay in full the 

amounts due in said year to all retirants and beneficiaries of the retirement system, the amount of 
such insufficiency shall thereupon be provided by the City. 

 
 (Rev. 11-23-64) 
 
10.4 Upon the retirement of a member the difference between the pension reserve for the pension 

payable on his account and his accumulated contributions shall be transferred from the Pension 
Reserve Fund to the Retirement Reserve Fund. 

 
10.5 Retirement Reserve Fund.  The Retirement Reserve Fund shall be the fund from which shall be 

paid all pensions as provided in this Chapter.  In the event a disability retirant returns to City 
employment, his pension reserve at that time shall be transferred from the Retirement Reserve 
Fund to the Members Deposit Fund and the Pension Reserve Fund in the same proportion as the  
 



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 14

pension reserve was originally transferred.   (Rev. 08-07-67) 
 

10.6 Income Fund.  The Income Fund shall be the fund to which shall be credited all interest, dividends, 
and other income from investments of the retirement system; all transfers from the Members 
Deposit Fund by reason of lack of claimant; and all other moneys received by the retirement 
system, the disposition of which is not specifically otherwise provided for in this Chapter.  The Board 
of Trustees may accept gifts and bequests.  There shall be transferred from the Income Fund all 
amounts required to credit regular interest to the Members Deposit Fund, Retirement Reserve 
Fund, and Pension Reserve Fund.  Whenever the Board determines that the balance in the Income 
Fund is more than sufficient to cover the current charges to the Fund, the Board may, by resolution 
provide for contingency reserves. 

 
 (Rev. 11-02-87) 
 
11. Investment.  The Board of Trustees shall be the trustees of the funds of the retirement system and 

shall have full power to invest and reinvest such funds as permitted by State Law. 
 
Restricted Use of Funds 
 
11.3 All moneys and investments of the Retirement System shall be held for the exclusive purpose of 

meeting the disbursements for pensions and other payments authorized by this Chapter and shall 
be used for no other purpose whatsoever. 

 
 (Rev. 11-06-00) 
 
Assets Not Segregated 
 
11.4  The Members Deposit Fund, Pension Reserve Fund, Retirement Reserve Fund, Income Fund, and 

any other Funds created by the Board of Trustees shall be interpreted to refer to the accounting 
records of the Retirement System and not to the actual segregation of the assets of the System in 
the said Funds. 

 
 (Rev. 11-23-64) 
 
Allowance of Regular Interest 
 
11.5 The Board of Trustees shall, at the end of each fiscal year, allow and credit regular interest to the 

members' individual accounts in the Members Deposit Fund computed upon their individual 
balances at the beginning of such fiscal year; and to the mean balances for the year in the Pension 
Reserve Fund and the Retirement Reserve Fund. The amounts of interest so credited shall be 
charged to the Income Fund.  In the event the balance in the Income Fund is not sufficient to cover 
the amounts of interest charged to it, the amount of such insufficiency shall be transferred from the 
Pension Reserve Fund to the Income Fund. 

 
No Trustee Shall Gain From Investments 
 
11.6 Except as otherwise provided in this Chapter, no trustee and no employee of the City shall have 

any interest direct or indirect in the gains or profit arising from any investments made by the Board 
of Trustees.  No person directly or indirectly , for himself or as an agent or partner of others, shall 
borrow any moneys or investments of the Retirement System, or in any manner use the same 
except to make current and necessary payments as are authorized by the Board.  No such person 
shall become an endorser or surety or become in any manner an obligor for moneys loaned by or  

 



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 15

borrowed from the Board.  Nothing contained herein shall be construed to impair the rights of any 
member, retirant, or beneficiary of the Retirement System to benefits provided by the system. 

 
 (Rev. 08-07-67) 
 
Method of Making Payments 
 
11.7 All payments from moneys of the Retirement System shall be made by the City Treasurer; all 

payments shall have been previously authorized by a specific or continuing resolution adopted by 
the Board. 

 
 (Rev. 09-23-74) 
 
Correction of Errors 
 
12.1 Should any change or error in the records of the City or the Retirement System result in any person 

receiving from the System more or less than he would have been entitled to receive had the records 
been correct, the Board of Trustees shall correct such error as far as is practicable shall adjust the 
payment of the benefit in such manner that the actuarial equivalent of the benefit to which such 
person was correctly entitled shall be paid. 

 
 (Rev. 11-23-64) 
 
Subrogation 
 
12.2 In the event a person becomes entitled to a pension or other benefit payable by the Retirement 

System as the result of an accident or injury caused by the act of a third party, the City shall be 
subrogated to the rights of the said person against such third party to the extent of the benefits to 
which the City pays or becomes liable to pay. 

 
Assignments Prohibited 
 
12.3 The right of a person to a pension, to the return of accumulated contributions, the pension itself, any 

pension option, and any other right accrued or accruing to any member, retirant or beneficiary, 
under the provisions of this Chapter, and all moneys belonging to the Retirement System, shall not 
be subject to execution, garnishment, attachment, the operation of bankruptcy or insolvency law, or 
any other process of law whatsoever and shall be unassignable, except as is specifically provided 
in this Chapter; provided, that if a member is covered by a group insurance or repayment plan 
participated in by the City, and should be permitted to, and elect to, continue such coverage as a 
retirant, he may authorize the Board of Trustees to have deducted from his pension the payments 
required of him to continue coverage under such group insurance or prepayment plan and he may 
authorize the withholding of State and Federal taxes as provided by law; provided further, that the 
City shall have the right of setoff for any claim arising from embezzlement by or fraud of a member, 
retirant, or beneficiary. 

 
 (Rev. 10-01-79) 
 
Fraud Penalty 
 
51 Whoever with intent to deceive shall make any statement or report required under this Chapter 

which is untrue, or shall falsify or permit to be falsified any record or records of the Retirement 
System shall be subject to punishment as provided in Chapter 1. 

  



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 16

(Rev. 02-11-91) 
 
52. Pension Suspended.  Except as otherwise provided in this Chapter, in the event a retirant or 

beneficiary is employed or re-employed by the City in a position which requires membership, 
payment of his pension shall be suspended during the period of his employment or re-employment. 
 Upon termination of such employment or re-employment in a position which requires membership, 
his pension shall be re-computed, and he shall receive the new re-computed pension or his prior 
pension shall be resumed, whichever is the greater amount.  

 
 (Rev. 01-07-85) 
 
53. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN (DCP) 
 
 The Employees Retirement System Board of Trustees are vested with the power and authority 

to administer, manage and operate the Defined Contribution Plan, and to construe and make 
effective the provisions of this Chapter  

 
 (Rev. 11-06-00) 
 
54. The following groups of Employees are eligible to participate in the Plan: 
 

Classified & Exempt, American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees (AFSCME), 
Michigan Association of Police (MAP), Troy Command Officers Association (TCOA), and Troy Fire 
Staff Officers Association (TFSOA), and Troy Police Officers Association (TPOA)  and Troy 
Command Officers Association (TCOA). 
 

  (Rev. 03-01-04) 
 
55. Contribution Provisions – The City shall contribute as follows: 
 
 The City shall contribute on behalf of each Participant (a) % of earnings for the Plan Year. Each 

Participant is required to contribute (b) % of earnings for the Plan Year as a condition of 
participation in the Plan. A Participant shall not have the right to discontinue or vary the rate of 
such contributions after becoming a Plan Participant. 

 
       (a) – Employer  (b) – Employee 
 Classified & Exempt      
   (Hired before 1/1/04)   12%    4% 
   (Hired after 1/1/04)   11%    4% 
   (Hired after 1/1/05)   10%    4% 

(Rev. 03-01-04) 
 
 American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees (AFSCME) 

(Hired prior to 2/16/98)  12%    4% 
   (Hired after 2/16/98)   11%    5% 
   (Hired after 11/17/03)   10%    5% 
 (Rev. 02.02.04) 
 
 Michigan Association of Police (MAP)   

(Hired prior to 12/21/98)  12%    4% 
   (Hired after 12/21/98)   11%    5% 
   (Hired after 2/7/05)   10%    5% 

 



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 17

(Rev. 03-01-04)  
 
 Troy Fire Staff Officers Association (TFSOA) 

 (Hired prior to 7/1/97)   13%    3% 
   (Hired after 7/1/97)   11%    5% 

  (Hired after 7/1/06)   10%    5% 
(Rev. 03-01-04) 

 
 Troy Police Officers Association (TPOA) 

(Hired after 2/15/00)   11%    5% 
   (Hired after 10/17/05)   10%    6% 

(Rev. 03-01-04) 
  
 Troy Command Officers Association (TCOA)  12%    4% 
 
 (Rev. 03-01-04) 
 
56. Voluntary Contributions 
 
 Each Participant may make voluntary (unmatched), after-tax contributions, subject to the 

limitations of Section 4.05 and Articles V and VI of the Plan. 
 
 (06-07-99) 
 
57. Vesting Provisions  
 
 The City hereby specifies the following vesting schedule: 
 
  

Each Participant who transfers from the Defined Benefit Plan shall be 100% percent vested. 
 
 For all other Participants the following vesting schedule will apply: 
 
 Years of Completed Service   Percent Vested 
 
  Three        50% 
  Four        75% 
  Five      100% 
 
 (06-07-99) 
 
58. Loan Provisions 
 
 Loans are not permitted under the Plan. 

(06-07-99) 
 
59. Disability Pension  
 
 Participants in the DCP shall also participate in a disability plan equivalent to the defined benefit 

disability plan as set forth in the retirement ordinance. The City’s liability for the disability benefit 
shall be offset by (1) an amount which may be payable pursuant to the workers’ compensation 
act, if applicable, and (2) by the lifetime annuity value of the employee’s 401 (a) defined  
 



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 18

contribution retirement account, determined as of the effective date of the employee’s disability-
related separation from service.  

 
 Defined contributions shall include all contributions and income accumulated in the plan account 

whether derived by the contributions made by the employee or employer, including any amounts 
transferred into the plan. While the employee is receiving disability benefits or is receiving 
workers’ compensation the City shall contribute the employer rate as contained in the ordinance 
of the disabled employee’s taxable wage for deposit in the DCP for the employee’s benefit. 

 
 (06-07-99) 
 
60. Non-Duty Death Provision 
 
 Participants in the DCP shall also be covered in the event of death including non-duty death 

with a benefit equivalent to the defined benefit plan as set forth in the retirement ordinance. The 
City’s liability for a death benefit shall be off-set by (1) an amount which may be payable 
pursuant to the workers’ compensation act, if applicable, and (2) by the lifetime annuity value of 
the employee’s 401 (a) defined contribution retirement account, determined as of the effective 
date of the employee’s death. 

 
 (06-07-99) 



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 1

 
CHAPTER 10 - EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

 
1. Definitions.  The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the 

meaning ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different 
meaning: 

 
 (A) Accumulated contributions means the sum of all amounts deducted from the compensation 

of a member and credited to his individual account in the member's deposit fund, together 
with regular interest thereon. 

 
 (B) Beneficiary means any person, except a retirant, who is in receipt of, or who has entitlement 

to, a pension or other benefit, payable from the funds of the retirement system. 
 
 (C) Board of trustees or board means the board of trustees provided for in this chapter. 
 
 (D) Compensation means the salary or wages paid an employee for personal services rendered 

by him to the city.  The term shall not include allowances for clothing, equipment, travel and 
similar items, nor shall it include the payment of sick or vacation leave that is made because 
of termination or retirement. 

 
 (E) Council means the legislative body of the City of Troy. 
 
 (F) Credited service means the total of a member's service, to the extent such service is 

credited to him by the board of trustees. 
 
  (Rev. 07-26-93) 
 
 (G) Employee means any person in the employ of the city. 
 
 (H) Final average compensation means the average of the annual compensation paid a 

member during the three (3) highest calendar years of his service contained within the last 
ten (10) calendar years, immediately preceding termination of his last employment with the 
City. 

 
  (Rev. 11-6-00) 
 
 (I) Member means any employee who is included in the membership of the retirement system. 
 
 (J) Pension means an annual amount payable by the retirement system throughout the future 

life of a person or for a temporary period as provided in this chapter.  All pensions shall be 
paid in equal monthly installments. 

 
 (K) Pension reserve means the present value of all payments to be made on account of any 

pension, computed on the basis of such mortality and other tables of experience, and 
regular interest, as the board of trustees shall from time to time adopt. 

 
 (L) Regular interest means such rate of interest per annum, compounded annually, as the 

board of trustees shall from time to time adopt. 
 
 (M) Retirant means any member who retires with a pension payable from funds of the 

retirement system. 
 



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 2

 (N) Retirement means a member's withdrawal from the employ of the city with a pension 
payable from the funds of the retirement system. 

 
 (O) Retirement system or system means the city employees retirement system created and 

established by this chapter. 
 
 (P) Service means personal service rendered to the city by an employee of the city. 
 
  (Rev. 02-11-91) 
 
2. Board of Trustees.  The Board of Trustees is vested with the power and authority to administer, 

manage and operate the retirement system, and to construe and make effective the provisions of 
this Chapter.  The Board shall consist of eight trustees as follows: 

 
 (Rev. 03-01-04) 
 
 (A) The City Manager, by virtue of his position. 
 
 (B) The Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration, by virtue of his position. 
 
  (Rev. 11-6-00) 
 
 (C) A member of Council selected by the Council. 
 
  (Rev. 02-28-94) 
 
 (D) A citizen, who is an elector of the City, and who is not a member, retirant or beneficiary of 

the retirement system, and who is not a member of the Council, to be appointed by the 
Council. 

 
  (Rev. 09-11-78) 
 

(E) Three members of the retirement system to be elected by the members of the system in 
accordance with such rules and regulations as the Board shall from time to time adopt to 
govern such elections.  

 
 (F) A retiree member in the Defined Benefit plan, who shall be appointed by the City Council, 

and shall serve as a non-voting member. 
 
 (g) Of the five employee members, two must be in the Defined Benefit plan.  A minimum of two 

of the five member trustees, as set forth in paragraphs A, B or E, must be a member of the 
Defined Benefit plan. 

 
   (Rev. 03-01-04) 



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 3

 
3. Terms of Office.  The regular term of office for the appointed citizen, the 3 member trustees, and the 

Council trustee, shall be 3 years. 
 
 (Rev. 02-28-94) 
 
Vacancy of Board 
 
3.4  If a member trustee leaves the employ of the City he shall be considered to have resigned from the 

Board and the vacancy shall be filled for the unexpired portion of the term. 
 
 (Rev. 02-11-91) 
 
Board Quorum, Vote, Meetings, Proceedings 
 
3.5  Four trustees shall constitute a quorum at any meeting of the Board of Trustees.  Each trustee shall 

be entitled to one vote on each question before the Board and at least four concurring votes shall 
be required for a decision by the Board.  The Board shall hold meetings regularly, at least one in 
each quarter year, and shall designate the time and place thereof.  The Board shall adopt its own 
rules of procedure. 

 
 (Rev. 02-11-91) 
 
Board Chairman, Retirement System Officers, Employees 
 
3.6  (A) The Board of Trustees shall designate from its own number a Chairman and a Vice-

Chairman. 
 

(B) The City Treasurer shall be the Treasurer of the Retirement System. 
 
 (C) The Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration shall be the Administrative Officer 

and serve as secretary of the Retirement System and he shall be the custodian of its money 
and investments. 

 
  (Rev. 11-6-00) 
 
 (D) The City Attorney shall be the Legal Advisor to the Board of Trustees. 
   
 (E) The Board of Trustees shall designate an actuary who shall be the Technical Advisor to the 

Board and who shall perform such other duties as are required of him under this Chapter.  
 
 (F) The Board of Trustees may employ such other services as are approved by the City 

Manager and authorized by the Council. 
 
  (Rev. 06-7-99) 



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 4

 
Records, Annual Reports 
 
3.7  The Administrative Officer shall keep, or cause to be kept, such data as shall be necessary for an 

actuarial valuation of the Retirement System. 
 
 (Rev. 09-23-74) 
 
Experience Tables, Regular Interest, Adoption Of 
 
3.8  The Board of Trustees shall from time to time adopt such mortality and other Tables of Experience, 

and a rate of regular interest, as are required in the proper operation of the Retirement System; 
provided, that no such rate of regular interest shall exceed seven percent per annum, compounded 
annually. 

 
 (Rev. 02-4-80) 
 
4. Membership.  The membership of the Retirement System shall include only those persons who are 

classified as full time on the records of the Human Resources Department of the City, and shall 
specifically exclude but not be limited to the following: (1) any employee who is employed by the 
City in a position normally requiring less than 1,000 hours of work per annum, (2) any person whose 
services are compensated on a contractual or fee basis, (3) volunteer firefighters as such, (4) 
elected officials of the City, and (5) employees classified as part time, seasonal or temporary, on the 
records of the Human Resources Department of the City regardless of the number of hours actually 
worked by the employee in any calendar year.  

 
 In any case of doubt as to the membership status of any employee, the Board shall decide the 

question. 
 
 (Rev. 01-22-01) 
 
Termination of Membership 
 
4.2  Should any member cease to be employed in a position covered by the Retirement System he shall 

thereupon cease to be a member and his credited service at that time shall be forfeited, unless 
otherwise provided in this Chapter.  If he is re-employed by the City in a position covered by the 
system he shall again become a member.  Should his re-employment occur within a period of 5 
years from the date he last ceased to be a member, his credited service last forfeited by him shall 
be restored to his credit, provided he immediately returns to the Members Deposit Fund the 
amount, if any, he withdrew therefrom, together with regular interest thereon from the date of 
withdrawal to the date of repayment.  Upon a member's retirement, he shall cease to be a member 
of the system. 

 
 (Rev. 02-11-91) 
 
Service Credit 
 
4.3  The Board shall fix and determine by appropriate rules and regulations the amount of service to be 

credited any member; provided, that in no case shall less than 10 days of service rendered by him 
in any calendar month be credited as a month of service, nor shall less than 10 months of service 
rendered by him in any calendar year be credited as a year of service, nor shall more than 1 year of 
service be credited any member for all service rendered by him in any calendar year. 

 (Rev. 08-7-67) 



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 5

 
4.4 Military Service Credit.  If an employee of the City, who while employed by the City, enters the 

Armed Forces of the United States during any period of compulsory military service, such armed 
service shall be credited him as City service; provided, that (1) he re-enters the employ of the City, 
in a position covered by this retirement system, within 6 months from and after termination of such 
armed service actually required of him, and (2) he pays into the Members Deposit Fund the 
amount, if any, he may have withdrawn therefrom, together with regular interest from the date of 
withdrawal to the date of repayment, and (3) in no case shall any member be credited with more 
than 5 years of service for all such armed service rendered by him.  In any case of doubt as to the 
period to be so credited any member, the Board of Trustees shall have final power to determine 
such period. 

 
 (Rev. 02-11-91) 
 
4.5 Additional Service Credits.  Any person (having been first employed by the City prior to January 

22, 2001) who is in the active employ of the City as of the date of enactment of this provision, 
and who currently is or has previously been excluded from membership in the Retirement 
System pursuant to the provisions of Section 4(1) (solely due to being employed by the City in a 
“part time” position normally requiring less than 1,000 hours of work per annum), shall be 
subject to the following additional provisions: 

 
 (A) Any such employee who as of the date of enactment of this provision has completed five 

(5) or more consecutive years of service in such part time position, shall immediately be 
eligible to become a member of the Retirement System and receive credit for such 
service; provided that during each such year he or she performed services in at least 10 
months and completed at least 1,000 hours of work, and that such consecutive period of 
service is continuing as of the date of enactment of this provision. 

 
 (B) Any such employee who after the date of enactment of this provision (and prior to 

January 21, 2006), completes a minimum of five (5) consecutive years of service in such 
part time position, shall be eligible to become a member of the Retirement System and 
receive credit for such service, effective as of their completion of such period of service; 
provided that during each such year he or she performed services in at least 10 months 
and completed at least 1,000 hours of work. 

 
 (C) Any such employee who currently is or otherwise becomes a member of the Retirement 

System pursuant to Section 4 (due to a change in job classification), and who previously 
was excluded from membership as a part time employee, shall be eligible to receive 
credit for years of service completed in such part time position, effective as of the later of 
the enactment of this provision or their otherwise becoming a member; provided that 
only the consecutive period of service (during each year of which he or she performed 
services in at least 10 months and completed at least 1,000 hours of work) that 
commenced prior to January 22, 2001, and that was continuing at the date they became 
a member shall be so credited. 

 
 (D) An employee referred to in (A) or (B) above, shall continue to be a member and receive 

credit for service only for such period as he or she continues to perform services in at 
least 10 months complete at least 1,000 hours of work in any year.  An employee 
referred to in (C) above, shall continue to be a member and receive credit for service 
only for such period that he or she continues to be employed in a position that otherwise 
qualifies them for membership pursuant to the provisions of Section 4.  All such 
employees shall be subject to the break-in-service provisions of Section 4.2, and the 
vesting requirements of Sections 6 and 57.  In no event shall any year of service be  



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 6

 
counted more than once pursuant to these provisions. 

 
 (E) If the first period for which an employee receives service credit hereunder occurs prior to 

January 1, 1998, such credited service shall be applied towards determining the amount 
of pension under Section 6.1 to which the employee may become entitled upon 
retirement; provided that the value of such pension may be transferred to the Defined 
Contribution Plan in accordance with such procedures as the Board may determine.  If 
the first period for which an employee receives service credit hereunder occurs on or 
after such date, the Board shall determine (and the City shall contribute) those amounts 
that would otherwise have been required to be contributed on such employee’s behalf 
under Section 55 with respect to such years. 

 
 (F) Notwithstanding any provision in this Chapter to the contrary, for purposes of calculating 

the amount of benefit (under Section 6.1) or contribution (under Section 55) to which a 
member is entitled with respect to each year of credited service referred to in (A), (B), 
(C) and (D) above, the benefit or contribution otherwise due pursuant to this Chapter 
shall be prorated for each such year based on the actual number of hours worked during 
such year, as determined from the following schedule: 

 
    Hours Worked  Year of Service Credit 
    1,000 to 1,499   50%  
    1,500 to 1,999   75% 
    2,000 and over  100% 
 

(G) In order to become a member and/or receive service credits in accordance with this 
provision, an eligible employee must elect (within six (6) months of the date of 
enactment of this provision) to purchase such service credits, by agreeing in writing to 
contribute to the Retirement System those amounts that would otherwise have been 
required to be contributed by the employee under Section 9.1 or Section 55 with 
respect to such years, along with such interest as the actuary and/or Board shall 
determine is appropriate.  Such amounts shall be deducted from payroll in accordance 
with such procedures as the Board may determine, provided that all amounts due shall 
be contributed into the Retirement System no later than the time the employee 
terminates his employment with the City.  Failure to contribute such amounts in a timely 
manner will result in forfeiture of such service credits. 

 
(Rev. 01-14-02) 
 

4.6 Prior Governmental Retirement Service. A member of the Employees Retirement 
System may be eligible for prior governmental retirement service credit if all of the 
following requirements are satisfied:   

   
(A) The member must be still actively employed by the City of Troy. 
 
(B) The member must have a minimum of 60 months of credited service acquired as a 

member of the Troy Employees Retirement System. 
 

(C) The member must have attained the age requirements for the Troy Employees 
Retirement System. 

 
(D) The member must have previously acquired credited service as a member of another 

official governmental retirement system.   



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 7

 
If all of the above requirements are satisfied, then a member who has not yet met the service 
requirements for the Troy Employees Retirement System shall be entitled to use his or her 
credited service from another official governmental retirement system for eligibility purposes 
only. 

 
(Rev. 10-07-02) 

 
5. Voluntary Retirement. Any member, who has attained age 55 years and has 10 or more years of 

credited service in force, may retire upon his written application filed with the Board of Trustees 
setting forth at what time, not less than 30 days nor more than 90 days subsequent to the execution 
and filing thereof, he desires to be retired. 

 
 
5.1 Normal Retirement.  Normal Retirement age is 65 years.  If a member who is separated from City 

employment on or after his attainment of age 65 years has 10 or more years of credited service in 
force, he shall be retired. 

 
 (Rev. 11-7-88) 
 
6. Deferred Retirement.  In the event a member who has 10 or more years of credited service leaves 

the employ of the City before he is eligible to retire, he shall be entitled to a pension computed 
according to the provisions of this chapter in force at the time of said member's separation from City 
employment; provided, that he does not withdraw his accumulated contributions from the Members 
Deposit Fund.  His said pension shall begin the first day of the calendar month next following the 
month in which he files his application for same with the Board of trustees on or after his attainment 
of age 60 years. 

 
 (Rev. 04-20-92) 
 
6.1(A) Straight Life Pension.  Upon a member's retirement, as provided in this Chapter, if he has less than 

27 years service, he shall receive a straight life pension equal to a percent of an amount computed 
by multiplying the number of years, and fraction of a year, of his credited service by 2.25 percent of 
his final average compensation listed below.  Such percent shall be equal to 70 percent increased 
by 1/2 of 1 percent for each full month by which the member's age at the time of retirement exceeds 
55 years.  Provided, in no event shall such percent exceed 100 percent, and, provided that in case 
of disability retirement or death pension the percent shall be 100 percent. For Troy Command 
Officers Association (TCOA) and Troy Police Officers Association (TPOA) members, the percent of 
Final Average Compensation (FAC) will be 2.8% for the first 25 years and 1% per year thereafter, 
with a cap of 75% of final average compensation. 

 
(Rev. 03-01-04)



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 8

 
6.1(B) Age and Service Retirement.  Upon a member's retirement, as provided in this Chapter, if he has 

27 or more years service, he shall receive a straight life pension equal to an amount computed by 
multiplying the number of years, and fraction of a year, of his credited service by 2.25%. For TCOA 
and Troy Police Officers Association (TPOA) members, the percent of Final Average Compensation 
(FAC) will be 2.8% for the first 25 years and 1% per year thereafter. with a cap of 75% of final 
average compensation. 

 
(Rev. 03-01-04) 
 

6.1(C) A member who has 27 or more years service may retire on or after his attainment of age 50.  Troy 
Police Officers Association (TPOA) and Troy Command Officers Association (TCOA), and Troy Fire 
Staff Officers Association (TFSOA) members retiring after July 1, 1998 may retire as an age and 
service retirement after the attainment of 25 years of service.  Classified and Exempt and Michigan 
Association of Police (MAP) members may retire as an age and service retirement after the 
attainment of age 55 and 25 years of service. 

 
  (Rev 03-01-04) 
 
6.1(D) Supplemental Retirement.   All members excluding Troy Police Officers Association (TPOA) and 

TCOA shall receive an additional pension from age 50 to age 62 to equal the amount it would have 
been if the percentages in the formulas in subsections A or B above were .25% greater.  

 
 (Rev. 03-01-04) 
 
6.2 Terminal Payments.  If a retirant dies before he has received in straight life pension payments an 

aggregate amount equal to his accumulated contributions standing to his credit in the members 
deposit fund at the time of his retirement, the difference between his accumulated contributions and 
the aggregate amount of straight life pension payments received by him shall be paid to such 
person as he shall have nominated by written designation duly executed and filed with the board.  If 
there be no such designated person surviving the retirant, the difference, if any, shall be paid to his 
estate. 

 
 (Rev. 02-11-91) 
 
Pension Options. 
 
6.3 Prior to the receipt of his first retirement payment, but not thereafter, a member may elect to receive 

his pension as a straight life pension payable throughout his life; or, he may elect to receive the 
actuarial equivalent, at that time, of his straight life pension in a reduced pension payable 
throughout his life, and nominate a beneficiary, in accordance with the provisions of Option A thru D 
as set forth below: 

 
 Option A. Joint and Survivor Pension:  Upon the death of a retirant who elected Option A, his 

reduced pension shall be continued throughout the life and paid to such person, having an 
insurable interest in his life, as he shall have nominated by written designation duly executed and 
filed with the Board of Trustees. 



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 9

 
 Option B. Modified Joint and Survivor Pension:  Upon the death of a retirant, who elected Option B, 

one-half of his reduced pension shall be continued throughout the life of and paid to such person, 
having an insurable interest in his life, as he shall have nominated by written designation duly 
executed and filed with the Board of Trustees. 

 
 Option C. Joint and Survivor Pension (pop-up A):  Upon the death of a retirant who elected Option 

C, his reduced pension shall be continued throughout the life and paid to such person, having an 
insurable interest in his life, as he shall have nominated by written designation duly executed and 
filed with the Board of Trustees.  If the selected beneficiary predeceases the retirant, the pension 
shall revert to a straight-life pension payable throughout the remainder of his life. 

 
 Option D. Modified Joint and Survivor Pension (pop-up B):  Upon the death of a retirant who elected 

Option D, one-half of his reduced pension shall be continued throughout the life of and paid to such 
person, having an insurable interest in his life, as he shall have nominated by written designation 
duly executed and filed with the Board of Trustees.  If the selected beneficiary predeceases the 
retirant, the pension shall revert to a straight-life pension payable throughout the remainder of his 
life. 

 
 (Rev. 11-2-87) 
 
7.1A Upon the application of an Exempt, Classified, or Michigan Association of Police (MAP) member, or 

his department head, who is below age 60 or who does not otherwise qualify for retirement, who (1) 
is in the employ of the City, (2) has 10 or more years of credited service [for American Federation of 
State, County, and Municipal Employees (AFSCME) employees hired after 2/12/96, or Michigan 
Association of Police (MAP) members who have 5 or more years of credited services as of 
8/7/1995)], (3) becomes totally and permanently incapacitated for full time work, by reason of a 
personal injury or disease, and is in receipt of disability benefits from Social Security, or has 
received a favorable determination letter with a current effective date for the commencement of 
disability benefits under Social Security, may be retired by the Board of Trustees; provided, that 
after a medical examination of the member made by or under the direction of a Medical Committee 
consisting of 2 physicians, 1 of whom shall be named by the Board, and 1 by the member, the said 
Medical Committee reports to the Board, in writing,(1) that the member is mentally or physically 
totally incapacitated for full time work, (2) that his incapacity will probably be permanent, and (3) that 
the member should be retired.  In the event that the 2 physicians constituting the Medical 
Committee do not agree in their findings, then the Board may, in its discretion, appoint a third 
physician to examine the member and based upon the report, in writing, of the third physician, the 
Board may retire the member. 

 
 The 10 years credited service requirement contained in this section shall be waived in the case of a 

member whom the Board finds (1) to be totally and permanently incapacitated for full time work as a 
natural and proximate result of a personal injury or disease arising out of and in the course of his 
actual performance of duty in the employ of the City and (2) to be in receipt of workmen's 
compensation on account of his disability arising out of and in the course of his City employment. 

 
 (Rev. 03-01-04) 



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 10

 
7.1B Upon the application of an American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees 

(AFSCME), Troy Police Officers Association (TPOA), or Troy Command Officers Association 
(TCOA) member, or his department head, who is below age 60 or who does not otherwise qualify 
for retirement, who (1) is in the employ of the City, (2) has 5 or more years of credited service, and 
(3) becomes totally and permanently incapacitated for duty in the employ of the City, by reason of a 
personal injury or disease, may be retired by the Board of Trustees; provided, that after a medical 
examination of the member made by or under the direction of a Medical Committee consisting of 2 
physicians, 1 of whom shall be named by the Board, and 1 by the member, the said Medical 
Committee reports to the Board, in writing, (1) that the member is mentally or physically totally 
incapacitated for duty in the employ of the City, (2) that his incapacity will probably be permanent, 
and (3) that the member should be retired.  In the event that the 2 physicians constituting the 
Medical Committee do not agrees in their findings, then the Board may, in its discretion, appoint a 
third physician to examine the member and based upon the report, in writing, of the third physician, 
the Board may retire the member.  The 5 years credited service requirement contained in this 
section shall be waived in the case of a member whom the Board finds (1) to be totally and 
permanently incapacitated for duty in the employ of the City as a natural and proximate result of a 
personal injury or disease arising out of and in the course of his actual performance of duty in the 
employ of the City and (2) to be in receipt of workmen's compensation on account of his disability 
arising out of and in the course of his City employment. 

 
 (Rev. 03-01-04) 
 
7.2  Disability Pension 
 
 (A) Upon retirement of a member on account of disability, as provided in this Chapter, he shall 

receive a pension computed in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter; provided, 
that his straight life disability pension shall not be less than the amount it would be if he had 
10 years of credited service. 

 
 (B) Troy Police Officers Association (TPOA) Duty Disability.  Upon the retirement of a member 

of the Troy Police Officers Association (TPOA) on account of disability, as provided in this 
Chapter, he shall receive a pension of not less than two-thirds of his final average 
compensation during the period he is in receipt of workmen's compensation on account of 
his disability arising out of and in the course of his City employment. 

 
  (Rev. 03-01-04) 
 
Re-examination of Disability Retirant 
 
7.4 At least once each year during the first 5 years following a member's retirement on account of 

disability, and at least once in every 3 year period thereafter, the Board of Trustees may, and upon 
the retirant's application shall, require any disability retirant who has not attained age 55 years 
undergo a medical examination to be made by or under the direction of a physician designated by 
the Board.  If the said retirant refuses to submit to such medical examination in any such period, his 
disability pension may be suspended by the Board until his withdrawal of such refusal. Should such 
refusal continue for 1 year all his rights in and to a disability pension may be revoked by the Board.  
If upon such medical examination of said retirant, the said physician reports to the Board that the 
said retirant is physically able and capable of resuming employment with the City he shall be 
returned to City employment and his disability pension shall terminate; provided, that the report of 
the said physician is concurred in by the Board.  In returning the said retirant  to City employment 



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 11

 
 reasonable latitude shall be allowed the City in placing him in a position commensurate with his 
type of work and compensation at the time of his retirement. 

  
(Rev. 05-10-65) 

 
7.5 A disability retirant who is returned to City employment shall again become a member of the 

retirement system.  His credited service at the time of his retirement shall be restored to full force 
and effect.  He shall be given service credit for the period he was in receipt of workmen's 
compensation on account of his disability arising out of and in the course of his City employment; 
otherwise he shall not be given service credit for such period. 

 
 (Rev. 08-7-67) 
  
7.6 If a disability retirant, who has not attained age 55 years become engaged in gainful occupation, 

business, or employment paying him more than the difference between his annual rate of 
compensation at the time of his retirement and his disability pension, his pension shall be reduced 
to an amount which together with the amount so earned by him shall equal but not exceed his 
annual rate of compensation. Should the retirant's earnings change, the reduction of his pension 
shall be adjusted accordingly. 

 
 (Rev. 02-11-91) 
 
8. Duty Death Pension.  If a member dies as the result of personal injury or disease arising solely and 

exclusively out of and in the course of his employment with the City, and such death, or injury or 
disease resulting in such death, be found by the Board of Trustees to have been the result of his 
actual performance of duty in the employ of the City, the benefits provided in this section shall be 
paid, subject to the condition that workmen's compensation becomes payable on account of the 
death of the member.  

 
 (A) His widow shall receive a pension computed as if the member had (1) retired the day 

preceding the date of his death, notwithstanding that he might not have been otherwise 
eligible to retire, (2) elected Option A and (3) nominated his widow as beneficiary; provided, 
that the pension shall not be less than 25 percent of the member's final average 
compensation.  For Troy Command Officers Association (TCOA) and Troy Police Officers 
Association (TPOA), and Troy Command Officers Association (TCOA), and Troy Fire Staff 
Officers Association (TFSOA) members retiring after July 1, 1998, the percent will be 50 
instead of 25.  

 
  (Rev. 03-01-04) 
 
 (B) If there be no widow, or if the widow's pension shall cease, for any reason, the member's 

dependent children shall share equally in a pension equal to 25 percent of the member's 
final average compensation.  Each child's pension shall terminate when the child has either 
died, married, or attained age 18 years. 

 
 (C) As used in this section, the term "Widow" means any person to whom the member was 

married at the time his employment with the City is terminated.   
 
8.1 Non-Duty Death Pension.  If any member who has 10 or more years of credited service and dies 

while in the employ of the City, his or her spouse shall receive a pension computed in the same 
manner in all respects as if the member had (1) retired the day preceding the date of death, 
notwithstanding that the member might not have been otherwise eligible to retire, (2) elected  



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 12

 
Option A, and (3) nominated the member's spouse as beneficiary.  

 
 (Rev. 1-23-95) 
 
9. Members Deposit Fund.  The Members Deposit Fund shall be the fund in which shall be 

accumulated, at regular interest, the contributions of members, and from which shall be made 
refunds and transfers of accumulated contributions, as provided in this Chapter. 

 
 (Rev. 08-07-67)  
 
9.1  Members Contributions.  A members contribution to the retirement system shall be based on the 

following percent of compensation: Michigan Association of Police (MAP) 1.50; Troy Police Officers 
Association (TPOA); 4.00, Troy Command Officers Association (TCOA) 34.00; Classified and 
Exempt 1.00 1.50; American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees (AFSCME) 
1.50; and Troy Command Officers Association (TCOA), and Troy Fire Staff Officers Association 
(TFSOA) 43.00.  

 
 (Rev. 03-01-04) 
 
9.2  Payroll deductions.  The contributions provided for in this Chapter shall be deducted from the 

compensations of each member on each and every payroll, for each and every payroll period, from 
the date of his entrance in the retirement system to the date his City employment terminates.  Each 
member shall be deemed to consent and agree to the deductions made and provided for herein.  
Payment of his compensation less said deduction shall be a full and complete discharge and 
acquittance of all claims and demands whatsoever for the service rendered by him during the 
period covered by such payment, except as to benefits provided by this Chapter. When deducted, 
each of said contributions shall be credited to the member's individual account in the Members 
Deposit Fund. 

 
 (Rev. 04-20-92) 
 
9.5 Contributions Transferred.  Upon a member's retirement, his accumulated contributions standing to 

his credit in the Members Deposit Fund shall be transferred to the Retirement Reserve Fund.  
Except as otherwise provided in this Chapter, at the expiration of a period of years from and after 
the date a member ceases to be an employee of the City, any balance standing to his credit in the 
Members Deposit Fund, unclaimed by the member of his legal representative, shall be transferred 
to the Income Fund. 

 
 (Rev. 02-11-91) 
 
Refund of Member's Contributions 
 
9.6 Should any member cease to be employed by the City and not be entitled to a pension payable 

from funds of the Retirement System, he shall be paid the balance standing to his credit in the 
Members Deposit Fund, provided he files his written request for same.  

 
 (Rev. 04-20-92) 
 
9.7 Upon the death of a member, if no pension becomes payable on account of his City employment, 

the balance standing to his credit in the Members Deposit Fund at the time of his death shall be 
paid to such person or persons as he shall have nominated by written designation duly executed 
and filed with the Board of Trustees.  If no designated person or persons survives the member,  



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 13

 
his accumulated contributions shall be paid to his estate. 

 
 (Rev. 02-11-91) 
 
Pension Reserve Fund 
 
10.1 The Pension Reserve Fund is hereby created.  It shall be the fund in which shall be accumulated 

the contributions made by the City to the retirement system and from which shall be made transfers 
of pensions reserves, as provided in this section. 

 
 (Rev. 11-23-64) 
 
10.2  Upon the basis of such mortality and other tables of experience, and regular interest, as the Board 

of Trustees shall from time to time adopt, the actuary shall annually compute the pension reserves 
or service rendered and to be rendered by members, and the pension reserves for pensions being 
paid retirants and beneficiaries.  The pension reserve liabilities so determined shall be financed by 
annual City contributions to be appropriated by the Council; said contributions: 

 
 (A) for member's current service shall be a percent of their annual compensations which will 

produce an amount which if paid annually by the City during their future service will be 
sufficient, at the time of their retirement, to provide the pension reserves, not financed by 
members' future contributions, for the portions of the pensions to be paid them based upon 
their future service; and  

 
 (B) for members' accrued service shall be a percent of their annual compensations which will 

produce an amount which if paid annually by the City over a period of years, to be 
determined by the Council, will amortize, at regular interest, the unfunded pension reserves 
for the accrued service portions of the pensions to which they may be entitled upon 
retirement; and  

 
 (C) For pensions being paid retirants and beneficiaries shall be a percent of the annual 

compensations of members which will produce an amount which if paid annually by the City 
over a period of years, to be determined by the Council, will amortize, at regular interest, the 
unfunded pension reserves for pensions being paid retirants and beneficiaries. 

 
  (Rev. 11-2-87) 
 
10.3 In the event the amount appropriated in the budget in any fiscal year is insufficient to pay in full the 

amounts due in said year to all retirants and beneficiaries of the retirement system, the amount of 
such insufficiency shall thereupon be provided by the City. 

 
 (Rev. 11-23-64) 
 
10.4 Upon the retirement of a member the difference between the pension reserve for the pension 

payable on his account and his accumulated contributions shall be transferred from the Pension 
Reserve Fund to the Retirement Reserve Fund. 

 
10.5 Retirement Reserve Fund.  The Retirement Reserve Fund shall be the fund from which shall be 

paid all pensions as provided in this Chapter.  In the event a disability retirant returns to City 
employment, his pension reserve at that time shall be transferred from the Retirement Reserve 
Fund to the Members Deposit Fund and the Pension Reserve Fund in the same proportion as the  
 



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 14

pension reserve was originally transferred.   (Rev. 08-07-67) 
 

10.6 Income Fund.  The Income Fund shall be the fund to which shall be credited all interest, dividends, 
and other income from investments of the retirement system; all transfers from the Members 
Deposit Fund by reason of lack of claimant; and all other moneys received by the retirement 
system, the disposition of which is not specifically otherwise provided for in this Chapter.  The Board 
of Trustees may accept gifts and bequests.  There shall be transferred from the Income Fund all 
amounts required to credit regular interest to the Members Deposit Fund, Retirement Reserve 
Fund, and Pension Reserve Fund.  Whenever the Board determines that the balance in the Income 
Fund is more than sufficient to cover the current charges to the Fund, the Board may, by resolution 
provide for contingency reserves. 

 
 (Rev. 11-02-87) 
 
11. Investment.  The Board of Trustees shall be the trustees of the funds of the retirement system and 

shall have full power to invest and reinvest such funds as permitted by State Law. 
 
Restricted Use of Funds 
 
11.3 All moneys and investments of the Retirement System shall be held for the exclusive purpose of 

meeting the disbursements for pensions and other payments authorized by this Chapter and shall 
be used for no other purpose whatsoever. 

 
 (Rev. 11-06-00) 
 
Assets Not Segregated 
 
11.4  The Members Deposit Fund, Pension Reserve Fund, Retirement Reserve Fund, Income Fund, and 

any other Funds created by the Board of Trustees shall be interpreted to refer to the accounting 
records of the Retirement System and not to the actual segregation of the assets of the System in 
the said Funds. 

 
 (Rev. 11-23-64) 
 
Allowance of Regular Interest 
 
11.5 The Board of Trustees shall, at the end of each fiscal year, allow and credit regular interest to the 

members' individual accounts in the Members Deposit Fund computed upon their individual 
balances at the beginning of such fiscal year; and to the mean balances for the year in the Pension 
Reserve Fund and the Retirement Reserve Fund. The amounts of interest so credited shall be 
charged to the Income Fund.  In the event the balance in the Income Fund is not sufficient to cover 
the amounts of interest charged to it, the amount of such insufficiency shall be transferred from the 
Pension Reserve Fund to the Income Fund. 

 
No Trustee Shall Gain From Investments 
 
11.6 Except as otherwise provided in this Chapter, no trustee and no employee of the City shall have 

any interest direct or indirect in the gains or profit arising from any investments made by the Board 
of Trustees.  No person directly or indirectly , for himself or as an agent or partner of others, shall 
borrow any moneys or investments of the Retirement System, or in any manner use the same 
except to make current and necessary payments as are authorized by the Board.  No such person 
shall become an endorser or surety or become in any manner an obligor for moneys loaned by or  

 



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 15

borrowed from the Board.  Nothing contained herein shall be construed to impair the rights of any 
member, retirant, or beneficiary of the Retirement System to benefits provided by the system. 

 
 (Rev. 08-07-67) 
 
Method of Making Payments 
 
11.7 All payments from moneys of the Retirement System shall be made by the City Treasurer; all 

payments shall have been previously authorized by a specific or continuing resolution adopted by 
the Board. 

 
 (Rev. 09-23-74) 
 
Correction of Errors 
 
12.1 Should any change or error in the records of the City or the Retirement System result in any person 

receiving from the System more or less than he would have been entitled to receive had the records 
been correct, the Board of Trustees shall correct such error as far as is practicable shall adjust the 
payment of the benefit in such manner that the actuarial equivalent of the benefit to which such 
person was correctly entitled shall be paid. 

 
 (Rev. 11-23-64) 
 
Subrogation 
 
12.2 In the event a person becomes entitled to a pension or other benefit payable by the Retirement 

System as the result of an accident or injury caused by the act of a third party, the City shall be 
subrogated to the rights of the said person against such third party to the extent of the benefits to 
which the City pays or becomes liable to pay. 

 
Assignments Prohibited 
 
12.3 The right of a person to a pension, to the return of accumulated contributions, the pension itself, any 

pension option, and any other right accrued or accruing to any member, retirant or beneficiary, 
under the provisions of this Chapter, and all moneys belonging to the Retirement System, shall not 
be subject to execution, garnishment, attachment, the operation of bankruptcy or insolvency law, or 
any other process of law whatsoever and shall be unassignable, except as is specifically provided 
in this Chapter; provided, that if a member is covered by a group insurance or repayment plan 
participated in by the City, and should be permitted to, and elect to, continue such coverage as a 
retirant, he may authorize the Board of Trustees to have deducted from his pension the payments 
required of him to continue coverage under such group insurance or prepayment plan and he may 
authorize the withholding of State and Federal taxes as provided by law; provided further, that the 
City shall have the right of setoff for any claim arising from embezzlement by or fraud of a member, 
retirant, or beneficiary. 

 
 (Rev. 10-01-79) 
 
Fraud Penalty 
 
51 Whoever with intent to deceive shall make any statement or report required under this Chapter 

which is untrue, or shall falsify or permit to be falsified any record or records of the Retirement 
System shall be subject to punishment as provided in Chapter 1. 

  



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 16

(Rev. 02-11-91) 
 
52. Pension Suspended.  Except as otherwise provided in this Chapter, in the event a retirant or 

beneficiary is employed or re-employed by the City in a position which requires membership, 
payment of his pension shall be suspended during the period of his employment or re-employment. 
 Upon termination of such employment or re-employment in a position which requires membership, 
his pension shall be re-computed, and he shall receive the new re-computed pension or his prior 
pension shall be resumed, whichever is the greater amount.  

 
 (Rev. 01-07-85) 
 
53. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN (DCP) 
 
 The Employees Retirement System Board of Trustees are vested with the power and authority 

to administer, manage and operate the Defined Contribution Plan, and to construe and make 
effective the provisions of this Chapter  

 
 (Rev. 11-06-00) 
 
54. The following groups of Employees are eligible to participate in the Plan: 
 

Classified & Exempt, American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees (AFSCME), 
Michigan Association of Police (MAP), Troy Command Officers Association (TCOA), and Troy Fire 
Staff Officers Association (TFSOA), and Troy Police Officers Association (TPOA)  and Troy 
Command Officers Association (TCOA). 
 

  (Rev. 03-01-04) 
 
55. Contribution Provisions – The City shall contribute as follows: 
 
 The City shall contribute on behalf of each Participant (a) % of earnings for the Plan Year. Each 

Participant is required to contribute (b) % of earnings for the Plan Year as a condition of 
participation in the Plan. A Participant shall not have the right to discontinue or vary the rate of 
such contributions after becoming a Plan Participant. 

 
       (a) – Employer  (b) – Employee 
 Classified & Exempt      
   (Hired before 1/1/04)   12%    4% 
   (Hired after 1/1/04)   11%    4% 
   (Hired after 1/1/05)   10%    4% 

(Rev. 03-01-04) 
 
 American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees (AFSCME) 

(Hired prior to 2/16/98)  12%    4% 
   (Hired after 2/16/98)   11%    5% 
   (Hired after 11/17/03)   10%    5% 
 (Rev. 02.02.04) 
 
 Michigan Association of Police (MAP)   

(Hired prior to 12/21/98)  12%    4% 
   (Hired after 12/21/98)   11%    5% 
   (Hired after 2/7/05)   10%    5% 

 



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 17

(Rev. 03-01-04)  
 
 Troy Fire Staff Officers Association (TFSOA) 

 (Hired prior to 7/1/97)   13%    3% 
   (Hired after 7/1/97)   11%    5% 

  (Hired after 7/1/06)   10%    5% 
(Rev. 03-01-04) 

 
 Troy Police Officers Association (TPOA) 

(Hired after 2/15/00)   11%    5% 
   (Hired after 10/17/05)   10%    6% 

(Rev. 03-01-04) 
  
 Troy Command Officers Association (TCOA)  12%    4% 
 
 (Rev. 03-01-04) 
 
56. Voluntary Contributions 
 
 Each Participant may make voluntary (unmatched), after-tax contributions, subject to the 

limitations of Section 4.05 and Articles V and VI of the Plan. 
 
 (06-07-99) 
 
57. Vesting Provisions  
 
 The City hereby specifies the following vesting schedule: 
 
  

Each Participant who transfers from the Defined Benefit Plan shall be 100% percent vested. 
 
 For all other Participants the following vesting schedule will apply: 
 
 Years of Completed Service   Percent Vested 
 
  Three        50% 
  Four        75% 
  Five      100% 
 
 (06-07-99) 
 
58. Loan Provisions 
 
 Loans are not permitted under the Plan. 

(06-07-99) 
 
59. Disability Pension  
 
 Participants in the DCP shall also participate in a disability plan equivalent to the defined benefit 

disability plan as set forth in the retirement ordinance. The City’s liability for the disability benefit 
shall be offset by (1) an amount which may be payable pursuant to the workers’ compensation 
act, if applicable, and (2) by the lifetime annuity value of the employee’s 401 (a) defined  
 



Chapter 10 Employees Retirement System 

 18

contribution retirement account, determined as of the effective date of the employee’s disability-
related separation from service.  

 
 Defined contributions shall include all contributions and income accumulated in the plan account 

whether derived by the contributions made by the employee or employer, including any amounts 
transferred into the plan. While the employee is receiving disability benefits or is receiving 
workers’ compensation the City shall contribute the employer rate as contained in the ordinance 
of the disabled employee’s taxable wage for deposit in the DCP for the employee’s benefit. 

 
 (06-07-99) 
 
60. Non-Duty Death Provision 
 
 Participants in the DCP shall also be covered in the event of death including non-duty death 

with a benefit equivalent to the defined benefit plan as set forth in the retirement ordinance. The 
City’s liability for a death benefit shall be off-set by (1) an amount which may be payable 
pursuant to the workers’ compensation act, if applicable, and (2) by the lifetime annuity value of 
the employee’s 401 (a) defined contribution retirement account, determined as of the effective 
date of the employee’s death. 

 
 (06-07-99) 



 
 
 
 
Date: August 14, 2007 
 
To: The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
From: Phillip Nelson, City Manager 
 Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
Subject: Mobile Windshield Repair 
 
 
Anthony Kapas, and other owners of Fix-N-Chips, approached the Planning Director regarding the 
use of parking lots in office and retail areas for the temporary set up of a shop which repairs cracks 
in windshields.  Fix-N-Chips brings in tools, a sign on a trailer and utilizes over approximately 15 
parking spaces.  The business relies on individuals who happen to be traveling in the area for other 
reasons; i.e., going to an office or stopping to shop at a retail store, and then the potential customers 
would see the sign on the trailer in the parking lot.  The business model relies on the impulse 
purchase and the customers would get their windshield fixed while they are working or shopping.  
The photos presented to City Council in the booklet were prepared by Fix-N-Chips and demonstrate 
the typical repair set up. 
 
City Management and the City Attorney’s Office do not recommend a change in the Zoning 
Ordinance to accommodate this type of business.  Currently the use of the parking lot for business 
purposes is a violation of the Zoning Ordinance.  Each business is required to maintain a minimum 
number of parking spaces.  Allowing a temporary business to utilize required parking spaces 
violates the Zoning Ordinance.  Further, the use of parking spaces and aisles could create a health 
and safety issue by creating unsafe traffic circulation patterns.  There is also concern for equal 
application of the Zoning Ordinance, where other businesses are required to have a permanent 
location inside a building, along with the required parking.  Thus, the Fix-N-Chips business model 
will have an economic advantage because there are not fixed assets used, such as a building or 
parking lot.  Finally, if it were City Council’s direction to permit these types of businesses, City 
Management and the City Attorney’s office would have to conduct research whether it is 
discriminatory to permit only one business in a parking lot and not other similar uses.   

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-08



Additionally, this type of business is not attractive.  The sign on a trailer could be considered clutter 
and may distract vehicles in maneuvering safely about the parking lot.  Other issues such car 
queues and radios of those waiting could result in noise pollution and a littering problem.  
 
Fix-N-Chips also asked the City to look into the option of not changing the Zoning Ordinance but 
allowing their business use under a temporary license authorized by the City Clerk.  City 
Management and the City Attorney’s Office are opposed to a temporary use under a license.  
According to Fix-N-Chips, the temporary use would be the entire spring, summer and fall seasons 
when they could conduct this type of activity outside.  Such a license is an attempt to circumvent the 
Zoning Ordinance.  There will always be the equal application of the law issue; why won’t other 
similar businesses be allowed to operate in parking lots.  
 
Fix-N-Chips is requesting that City Council authorize City Management and the City Attorney’s 
Office to prepare a procedure to permit windshield repair in parking lots of unrelated office or retail 
businesses.  City Management and the City Attorney’s Office do not recommend that City Council 
allow these windshield repair uses. 
 
 
Attachment:  Fix-N-Chips Booklet 
 
 
Prepared by MFM 
 
 
G:\MARK MILLER\City Council items\Fix-N-Chips Memo.doc 
 



 
 
 
 
 

Fix-N-Chips Brochure 
is included with Council agenda packets 

and available for viewing at the 
City Clerk’s Office and the Troy Public Library 



 1

 
 
DATE: August 13, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing – Rezoning Application – Office Use, West side of 

Rochester Road, South of De Etta (6493 Rochester), Section 3 – R-1B to O-1 (File 
Number Z-727) 

 
 
Background: 
 

• A public hearing is scheduled for the September 10, 2007 City Council meeting. 
 

• The Planning Commission recommended denial of the request to rezone the parcel to O-1 at 
the July 10, 2007 Regular meeting.   

 
• The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Medium Density Residential and has 

been since 1999.  The application is inconsistent with the Medium Density Residential 
classification.  In addition, the parcel falls within the Rochester Road Overlay District classification, 
which provides flexibility in terms of permitted uses as a tradeoff for high quality, innovative 
design.  The Rochester Road Overlay classification was approved in 2006.    It has not been 
demonstrated that the application meets the criteria of the Rochester Road Overlay District 
classification, which permits more intense uses than the underlying zoning district, based on a 
number of standards. 

 
• The character of the west side of Rochester Road in this area is a mix of retail and office uses.  

The abutting property to the south was rezoned to B-1 Local Business on December 18, 2006.  
Rezoning the subject property to O-1 Low Rise Office would be less intense than the abutting B-1 
zoning and would therefore serve as more of a transitional use between the residential 
neighborhood to the west and Rochester Road than the B-1 property.   

 
• The application is not consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan.  However, it is 

consistent with the general character of the area and compatible with adjacent zoning districts and 
land uses. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a



 2

Financial Considerations: 
 

• There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

• City Council has the authority to act on this application.  
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

• Approval of the rezoning application would be consistent with City Council Goal III (Retain and 
attract investment while encouraging development). 

 
 
Options: 
 

• City Council can approve or deny the rezoning application. 
 

• No City Council action until the September 10, 2007 public hearing.   
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Minutes from the March 13, 2007 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
3. Minutes from the July 10, 2007 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
4. Correspondence from Robin Siegel, dated June 1, 2007. 
 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File /Z 727 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-727 Office 6493 Rochester Sec 3\Announce CC Public Hearing 08 20 07.doc 
 
 
 











PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 13, 2007 
  
 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST (Z 727) – Proposed Office Use, 

West side of Rochester Road, South of DeEtta (6493 Rochester Road), Section 
3 – From R-1B (One Family Residential) to O-1 (Low Rise Office) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed rezoning request, and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the rezoning application.   
 
Chair Schultz asked if there was any investigation into what size building could 
be placed on this site.   
 
Mr. Miller replied no.   
 
The petitioner, Lawrence Hromek of 23711 Sandpiper, Clinton Township, was 
present to represent the owner, Robin Siegel.  Mr. Hromek said the building size 
could not be much larger than the existing building.  He indicated the proposed 
vacation of the 20-foot easement for the alley would create an additional 20 feet 
for parking.  
 
Ms. Troshynski questioned if any consideration was given to accessing the 
property from the north.   
 
Mr. Hromek said they have no desire to access the property from the north and 
the existing drive on Rochester Road would be used.   
 
Chair Schultz asked if the petitioner has an interest in consolidating with the 
property to the north. 
 
Mr. Hromek stated the property to the north, which is currently vacant, is a rental 
property that has been rented by different tenants.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Eileen Carty of 990 DeEtta, Troy, was present.  Ms. Carty spoke in opposition to 
the proposed rezoning request.  She said Troy is taking on a Lincoln Park 
persona with strip malls and small storefronts.  Ms. Carty addressed recent 
commercial developments on Rochester Road, specifically Rochester Office Parc 
Building and Binson’s Home Health Care Center, and how they have negatively 
impacted her residential home.  She also addressed the proposed alley vacation, 
which she discovered is no benefit to her because her home does not fall within 
the appropriate subdivision boundaries.  Ms. Carty asked to go on record stating 
that her property and quality of life have deteriorated vastly since she moved into 
her home.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 13, 2007 
  
 
 

Mr. Vleck expressed concern with the small corner lot to the north that would 
remain as a small undevelopable residential property should the rezoning 
request go forward.  He would like consideration to be given to consolidation of 
the properties.   
 
Mr. Strat noted that he voted against the previous rezoning request at this 
location based on the concerns of Ms. Carty.  He asked for clarification on the 
alley vacation.   
 
Ms. Lancaster clarified the “drawn” alley proposed to be vacated is platted as an 
alley on a subdivision plat, and only the subdivision owners within that plat have 
an interest in the alley.  She indicated the developer must start a re-plat action, 
which is a complicated matter. 
 
Mr. Miller stated a Public Hearing on the proposed vacation is scheduled on the 
next City Council agenda.  He indicated the request is to vacate the entire alley 
between DeEtta and Marengo. 
 
The members encouraged Ms. Carty to advise the City in writing of her concerns 
and any associated costs for damage incurred from the recently constructed 
developments; i.e., mailbox replacement, lawn ruts, unshielded vehicular lights, 
dead landscaping, unkempt dumpster, etc.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-059 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends denial to the 
City Council that the R-1B to O-1 rezoning request, located on the west side of 
Rochester, south of DeEtta, within Section 3, being approximately 15,600 square 
feet in size, be denied, for the following reason:  
 
1. By rezoning this property, a financially un-redevelopable residential 

property to the north would remain.  
 
Yes: Strat, Troshynski, Vleck, Wright 
No: Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Tagle 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Ms. Kerwin expressed her reasoning to grant the rezoning request.  She said it 
appears that Rochester Road is not going to be a place for residences, as is the 
case for this remnant parcel.  Ms. Kerwin said she does not see it as an issue for 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 13, 2007 
  
 
 

redevelopment in the future, and the overlay accommodates for parcels such as 
this.   
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-060 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1B to O-1 rezoning request, located on the west side of 
Rochester, south of DeEtta, within Section 3, being approximately 15,600 square 
feet in size, be granted, for the following reason:  
 
1. The application is compatible to adjacent zoning districts and land uses. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Littman asked how site plan compliance would be insured, assuming a site 
plan would not come before the Planning Commission.   
 
Mr. Miller said site plan approval would be required for the site.  He noted the 
parcel would become a legal non-conformity should the parcel be rezoned and 
setback requirements do not meet the ordinance. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Tagle 
No: Strat, Troshynski, Vleck, Wright 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Mr. Wright said he would be more inclined to approve the rezoning request if 
there was an attempt to consolidate the two parcels, and noted the problem is 
the remaining residential parcel that would never be redeveloped as R-1.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-061 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Troshynski 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone this item until there is some attempt to consolidate 
with the property to the north.    



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 13, 2007 
  
 
 

Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Ms. Troshynski said the rezoning request goes against the intent of the Planning 
Commission to decrease the driveways along Rochester Road, from Square 
Lake to South Boulevard.   
 
Mr. Miller said the Planning Commission has postponed items and requested 
petitioners to look into consolidation of properties in the past.   
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST (Z 727) – Proposed Office Use, 
West side of Rochester Road, South of DeEtta (6493 Rochester Road), Section 
3 – From R-1 B (One Family Residential) to O-1 (Low Rise Office) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed rezoning request.  Mr. Miller reported that although the application is 
not consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan, it is the 
recommendation of City Management to approve the rezoning application.  He 
reported that the request is consistent with the general character of the area and 
compatible with adjacent zoning districts and land uses.  Mr. Miller indicated it is 
bad planning to leave the single family residential parcel to the north, but noted 
the Planning Commission conducted themselves reasonably by requesting the 
petitioner to assemble that piece of property.   
 
Mr. Vleck asked what would be required of the petitioner to bring the property in 
compliance with the O-1 office zoning district.   
 
Mr. Miller said the petitioner would be required to go through site plan approval 
because the office use has not been approved for that site.  
 
Mr. Vleck addressed site improvements that would be required in relation to 
quality and long-term development.  Mr. Vleck asked if the City could initiate a 
rezoning on the property to the north.   
 
Ms. Lancaster confirmed the City could initiate a rezoning for any property.  She 
indicated City Council could rezone the parcel by going through the appropriate 
approval process.   
 
Mr. Vleck asked if the existing property owner would be allowed to continue as 
residential.   
 
Mr. Miller said the use would be allowed to continue and the property would be 
considered a true nonconforming use.  He noted the site would lose its 
nonconforming status should it be abandoned as a single family use.  Mr. Miller 
said the greater issue for the property to the north is that it would be very unlikely 
that it could be developed as office.   
 
Mr. Vleck asked if the subject property could continue its operation as it exists, 
without site improvements, should it be rezoned to O-1.   
 
Mr. Miller replied that technically the use has not been approved for the subject 
property and is not permitted in that zoning district.  He said the owner would 
have to show good faith in moving forward with site plan approval to have an 
office at that location. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

The owner, Robin Siegel of 283 W. Square Lake Road, Troy, was present.  Ms. 
Siegel addressed the existing screening to the west along the residential area.   
 
Chair Schultz explained different screening requirements would have to be met 
should the site be zoned office.  He informed the petitioner that should the 
rezoning go forward, the site would have to be redeveloped as an office and go 
through the site plan approval process. 
 
Ms. Siegel said they would be more than happy to do that and would make every 
effort to fully comply with all zoning ordinance requirements.  She confirmed that 
the site is currently being used as office only.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
There was discussion on the screen wall requirements for O-1 zoning.   
 
Mr. Vleck said he is not 100% comfortable with the proposed rezoning.  He 
addressed the petitioner’s attempt to consolidate the property to the north, the 
cost involved for site improvements that would be required for office, its relation 
to the Rochester Road corridor, and the developable status of the residential 
property to the north.  Mr. Vleck said a conditional rezoning might be a favorable 
option. 
 
Mr. Littman addressed the small size of the subject parcel should it be developed 
as office.  He said it might very well be a problem for both the petitioner and the 
City.   
 
Mr. Vleck said the property to the north would be less developable and less 
desirable should the subject property be rezoned and the required screen wall is 
in place.   
 
Mr. Tagle asked if a screen wall is required between the property to the south 
[Binson’s] and the subject property.   
 
Mr. Miller replied a screen wall is required unless the property to the south 
[Binson’s] receives a waiver from the Board of Zoning Appeals.   
 
Chair Schultz said he would like to see a potential conditional rezoning 
application submitted on the subject property to see how it might be developed 
as office.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

Mr. Vleck said he would consider the rezoning request further if there was some 
collaboration between Binson’s and the subject property for a cross access 
easement.   
 
Messrs. Hutson and Littman addressed the option of a conditional rezoning 
application. 
 
Mr. Strat said he would not support the rezoning request because there is 
potential the existing house could become a legal nonconforming use 
automatically.  He said the property to the north would remain an orphan parcel 
until the owner decides to sell or consolidate.  Mr. Strat said he would be 
supportive of a conditional rezoning should the petitioner be willing. 
 
Mr. Vleck said his preference would be for the City to initiate a rezoning request 
for the property to the north.  He questioned the time frame for the City to initiate 
such a request.  
 
Mr. Miller said public hearings could be scheduled next month for both the 
Planning Commission and City Council, should the Planning Commission make a 
resolution tonight to initiate a rezoning.   
 
Ms. Troshynski indicated she would not be in favor of the general rezoning 
request because of its affect on the neighborhood.   
 
Mr. Littman said, as a policy, he is not in favor of City initiated rezoning requests 
especially in cases where the owner is not in support.   
 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-116 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1B to O-1 rezoning request, located on the west side of 
Rochester, south of DeEtta, within Section 3, being approximately 15,600 square 
feet in size, be denied, due to problems in how the site might develop.   
 
Yes: Hutson, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Troshynski 
No: Kerwin, Vleck 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck said he is not necessarily in favor of the rezoning request, but he would 
like to see the petitioner pursue other options to develop the property.  He said 
there could be potential for a desirable development if the petitioner collaborates 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

with the Binson’s development.  Mr. Vleck addressed his position for a City-
initiated rezoning on the property to the north.   
 
Ms. Kerwin said she would have preferred a motion to postpone.  She indicated 
she might have voted in favor of denial if the motion had stipulated denial was 
based on non-compliance with the Future Land Use Plan.   
 
Chair Schultz advised the public of the approval process for rezoning requests at 
the City Council level.  He indicated to the petitioner that the Planning 
Department would be the resource on conditional rezoning applications.   
 
A brief discussion followed on the procedure for City-initiated rezoning requests.   

 
 





 1

 
 
DATE: August 14, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing – Concept Development Plan Approval – Big Beaver 

Place Planned Unit Development (PUD 8), North side of Big Beaver, West of John R, 
Section 24 – Currently Zoned R-1D (One Family Residential) District 

 
 
Background: 
 

• A public hearing is scheduled for this item for the September 10, 2007 City Council meeting. 
 
• The Planning Commission recommended Concept Development Plan Approval of PUD 8 at 

the June 12, 2007 Regular meeting.   
 
• The project consists of 23 two-story townhomes in four buildings, including two-car garages.  

Two clustered retail buildings and one separate building for a deli and coffee shop are also 
proposed.   

 
• Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., the City’s Planning Consultant, prepared 

a report summarizing the project and recommends Concept Development Plan Approval. 
 

• The proposed PUD meets the Eligibility requirements of Section 35.30.00 of the City of Troy 
Zoning Ordinance. 

 
• The proposed PUD meets the Standards for Approval of Section 35.70.03 of the City of Troy 

Zoning Ordinance. 
 

• The Development Agreement will be presented for the Public Hearing.  
 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 

• There are no financial considerations for this item. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01b



 2

Legal Considerations: 
 

• City Council has the authority to act on this application.  
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

• The item is consistent with City Council Goal I (Enhance the livability and safety of the 
community), Goal III (Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment), and Goal 
V (Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public needs). 

 
 
Options: 
 

• City Council can approve the application for Concept Development Plan Approval. 
 
• City Council can approve the application for Concept Development Plan Approval with 

conditions. 
 
• City Council can deny the application for Concept Development Plan Approval. 
 
• No action required until the September 10, 2007 Special meeting. 

 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Map.  
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., dated June 6, 2007. 
3. Planning Commission Minutes from the June 12, 2007 Regular meeting. 
4. Public comments. 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File /PUD 8 
 
G:\PUD's\PUD 008 Big Beaver Place\Announce CC Public Hearing 08 20 07.doc 
 
 
 





 
 
  
 Date: March 27, 2007 
 Rev: April 19, 2007 
 Rev: June 6, 2007 
 

 
 

Planned Unit Development/Site Plan Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Applicant: Stefano Mularoni 
 Big Beaver Place, LLC 
 48593 Hayes Road 
 Shelby Township, MI  48315 

Project Name: Big Beaver Place PUD 

Plan Date: March 9, 2007 

Latest Revision: May 23, 2007 

Location: East of John R Road, on the north side of Big Beaver Road.  

Zoning: R-1E, One Family Residential District  

Action Requested: Planning Commission review and recommendation to the City 
Council for approval of a Concept Development Plan as 
established in Section 35.50. 

Required Information: Deficiencies noted.  

 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
The applicant proposes a mixed use Planned Unit Development.  The project has been assembled 
from six parcels and constitutes 4.77 acres.  Three buildings will be demolished to accommodate 
this proposal. The project consists of 23 two-story townhomes in four buildings, with each unit 



Big Beaver Place 6-6-07 

2 

being approximately 1,800 square feet, including a two-car garage.  Two clustered retail 
buildings (6,400 s.f. and 9,600 s.f.), and one separate building for a deli and coffee shop (3,500 
s.f.) are also proposed.  A few changes have been made to this concept in comparison to the 
previous submission.  The most significant changes include the configuration of the coffee 
shop/deli, size of patio areas, circulation/parking changes, and the configuration of the detention 
pond.     
 

 

 
 
 
NEIGHBORING ZONING AND LAND USE 

 
North: Properties to the north of this site are zoned R-1E, One Family Residential.  They 

are also used for single-family purposes, but are relatively large compared to 
other residential properties in the area. 

 
South: Big Beaver Road is at the southern boundary of the site.  The zoning of the 

properties across Big Beaver Road are controlled by court order.  Current uses 
include office and industrial buildings. 

 
East: Zoning to the east of the site is also R-1E, One Family Residential.  While the use 

of these properties is single-family, the lots are significantly smaller than the 
residential lots located north of the site. 

 

Project 
Site 

Big Beaver Road 



Big Beaver Place 6-6-07 

3 

West: The land directly to the west is zoned per court order, and used for an office 
building.  Properties at the northeast intersection of Big Beaver Road and John R 
Road include B-2, Community Business, and B-3, General Business zoning 
designations, with various commercial uses such as a daycare, gas station, paint 
store, and service center. 

 
Items to be Addressed:  None 
 
MASTER PLAN 
 
The subject property is currently Master Planned for Medium Density Residential use.  The 
surrounding Master Land Use Plan designations are as follows: 
 

North: Low Density Residential 
 
South: (Across Big Beaver Road) Research Industrial  
 
East: Medium Density Residential 
 
West: Local Service Area 

In the Master Plan, medium density residential use is defined as 5-10 dwelling units per acre, and 
includes a variety of housing forms such as duplexes, townhouses, and apartments.  The 
proposed townhomes and associated parking/pavement are located on approximately 2.75 acres 
of land, resulting in a density of approximately 8.33 units per acre.  The proposed residential 
uses for this property also meet some of the residential development policies stated in the Master 
Plan.  The Townhomes are compatible with the adjacent residential uses, and they provide a 
different type of housing (vs. single-family detached) for residents.  The alternative townhome 
residential type also supports the Big Beaver Corridor Study.  And, mixing housing with retail 
and adjacent office uses will help promote walking, create a lively neighborhood, and knit new 
development with existing residential uses.       

While the proposed commercial buildings are inconsistent with the Master Plan designations for 
this property, the proposed commercial uses do extend to the east a pattern of commercial from 
the John R Road and Big Beaver Road intersection and are consistent with the Big Beaver 
Corridor Study.  Therefore, it is our opinion that the project meets the requirements of Sec. 
35.40.00 regarding consistency with applicable corridor or subarea plans and recent development 
trends in the area. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
NATURAL RESOURCES 
 
The applicant provided an environmental analysis with the previous plan submission.   
 
Topography:  The topography is flat to very gently sloping from northwest to the east. 
 



Big Beaver Place 6-6-07 

4 

Trees: The existing vegetation on site was evaluated by an environmental 
consultant.  His report states that the site is covered by thick shrubs and a 
few trees.  The shrubs are common buckthorn, multiflora rose (both exotic 
invasive species), and gray dogwood.  The trees are short in height (under 
45 feet), and are green ash, boxelder, cottonwood, elm, and apple species.  
No mature or natural woods were observed.  The applicant states that the 
entire site will be cleared, and new open space will be created and 
landscaped.  We would agree that this is acceptable since the vegetation is 
of relative low quality. 

 
Wetlands: Based on the City’s Natural Features Map, there are no existing wetlands 

on this site.  However, the environmental evaluation states that there were 
two wetland areas on the property: one being approximately 5 feet x 90 
feet (or 450 s.f.), and another being 870 s.f.  Neither of these wetland areas 
meets MDEQ criteria as regulated wetlands.   

 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
TRAFFIC IMPACT 
 
A traffic analysis was conducted to determine the impact of the proposed development on traffic 
on Big Beaver Road and its intersection with John R Road.  The analysis states that no 
improvements are required for the public road system as a result of this development.        
 
Items to be Addressed:  None.  
 
ESSENTIAL FACILITIES AND SERVICES 

Water and Sewer 

The site will connect to existing water and sewer within the right-of-way of Big Beaver Road.     

Stormwater Management 

A conceptual stormwater system is shown on the plans that include both above- and below-
ground stormwater facilities.  Where feasible, stormwater will be directed to bioswales along the 
east, north and west boundaries, which will infiltrate stormwater and uptake runoff by plants.  
The bioswales will be planted with wetland and upland native shrubs and herbaceous species.  
All bio-swales will have underdrains.  The swale to the east will outlet to an existing stormwater 
pipe on the adjacent property.  The swales on the north and west will outlet to the proposed site 
stormwater system and eventually the central detention pond.  The pond will outlet to the 
existing stormwater system along Big Beaver Road.     

We support the use of infiltration devices in the stormwater management design.  The detention 
pond configuration has been modified in this plan set from a more organic shape to a rectilinear 
shape.  Could the applicant clarify the reason behind this change?       
 



Big Beaver Place 6-6-07 

5 

Items to be Addressed:  Configuration of detention. 
 
 
PUD STANDARDS  
 
The Zoning Ordinance sets forth criteria in Section 35.30.00 for consideration of a project as a 
PUD.  We have also evaluated the proposal in light of the Big Beaver Corridor Study.  We have 
the following comments: 
 
Section 35.30.00, A.  The applicant has demonstrated that they are legally permitted to execute 
a binding agreement over the parcels in the development. 
 
Section 35.30.00, B.:  The applicant shall demonstrate that through the use of the PUD option, 
the development will accomplish a sufficient number of the following objectives, as are 
reasonably applicable to the site, providing:  
 
1.  A mixture of land uses that would otherwise not be permitted without the use of the PUD, 

provided that other objectives of this Article are also met.  

 The proposal provides a mixture of land uses that would otherwise not be permitted in 
the underlying zoning category, or in any other single zoning category. 

2.  A public improvement or public facility (e.g. recreational, transportation, safety and 
security) which will enhance, add to or replace those provided by public entities, thereby 
furthering the public health, safety and welfare.  

 The site plan includes a pedestrian network, increased landscaping, and a large central 
water feature. 

3. A recognizable and material benefit to the ultimate users of the project and to the 
community, where such benefit would otherwise be infeasible or unlikely to be achieved 
absent these regulations.   

 Applying a PUD mixed use concept to this parcel allows for commercial development 
along Big Beaver Road, and attached single-family units behind.  This arrangement 
buffers the residential units from the noise and traffic of the roadway, and places higher-
density residential units along the rear of the property, providing a transition between 
the commercial development and the residential lots behind the project site.  This 
walkable, integrated design would be difficult to arrange using conventional zoning 
techniques. 

4. Long term protection and preservation of natural resources, natural features, and historic 
and cultural resources, of a significant quantity and/or quality in need of protection or 
preservation, and which would otherwise be unfeasible or unlikely to be achieved absent 
these regulations.  

 We are aware of no such features on the subject site. 

5. A compatible mixture of open space, landscaped areas, and/or pedestrian amenities.  

 The proposed plan in the residential portion of the site includes a large open space area 
that serves as a water feature and stormwater detention/retention pond, as well as 



Big Beaver Place 6-6-07 

6 

landscaping/buffer areas around the boundaries of the site.  The commercial portion of 
the property proposes a plaza area (3,760 s.f.) between the two retail buildings, and a 
water feature and 1,600 s.f. plaza along the boulevard entrance.  While landscaped areas 
used for storm drainage purposes may be countable for a portion of required landscape 
area, this area may not exceed more than 5 percent of the overall site area.   A 
calculation for the amount of open space is provided on the site plan (Sheet 2), and states 
that the proposal provides 25 percent (1.20 acres of open space), not including areas 
used for stormwater management.  We feel this meets with the requirements of Section 
39.70.04 and are satisfied that the proposed open space is optimally located to provide 
the best possible transition to adjacent development. 

6. Appropriate land use transitions between the PUD and surrounding properties.  

 As noted above, the project places higher-density residential units along the rear of the 
property, providing a transition between the commercial development and the residential 
lots behind the project site.   

7. Design features and techniques, such as green building and low impact design, which 
will promote and encourage energy conservation and sustainable development.  

 The proposal provides for several environmental quality objectives, such as 
environmental protection through stormwater quality, open space through the water 
feature and pedestrian plazas near the retail buildings, and pedestrian facilities that 
connect the development to retail uses, encouraging users to experience the site on foot.   

8. Innovative and creative site and building designs, solutions and materials.  

 The incorporation of a central water feature and the mix of proposed land uses represent 
an innovative and creative site plan which will provide an amenity to potential visitors to 
the area.  More detailed architectural renderings were provided in this submission, 
showing the variety of construction materials and site furnishings proposed for the 
development.  These details better convey the architectural intent of the townhomes, and 
describe a residential opportunity not readily available in the City.     

9. The desirable qualities of a dynamic urban environment that is compact, designed to 
human scale, and exhibits contextual integration of buildings and city spaces.   

 The proposed site design uses stormwater runoff as an amenity in the central pond and 
open space feature, and places residents in close proximity to commercial and office 
uses, encouraging walking.  These benefits are also consistent with the goals of the Big 
Beaver Corridor Study. 

10.  The PUD will reasonably mitigate impacts to the transportation system and enhance non-
motorized facilities and amenities.   

 The site does include a comprehensive pedestrian pathway network throughout the site 
which provides excellent non-motorized access from one use to another.  Also, based on 
the information provided, it does not appear that the proposal will alleviate current 
traffic congestion on adjacent roadways.  However, it also won’t significantly add to 
existing traffic conditions.  



Big Beaver Place 6-6-07 

7 

11.  For the appropriate assembly, use, redevelopment, replacement and/or improvement of 
existing sites that are occupied by obsolete uses and/or structures;  

 This proposal will redevelop properties that currently include a one-family residence.  
While we do not know whether the specific single family home is obsolete, it is unlikely 
this site would be viable for new single family development. 

12.  A complementary variety of housing types that are in harmony with adjacent uses;  

 The attached single-family portion of this project will provide an alternative type of 
housing within the City.  The proposed residential buildings are limited in height (two 
story) and are designed and located to most appropriately remain in harmony with the 
adjacent subdivision 

13. A reduction of the impact of a non-conformity or removal of an obsolete building or 
structure.  

 As we have indicated,  it is unlikely this site would be viable for new single family 
development; we are not aware of any non-conformities on the site. 

14. A development consistent with and meeting the intent of this Article; and will promote 
the intent of the plan meeting the requirements of the Municipal Planning Act or the 
intent of any applicable corridor or sub-area plans.  If conditions have changed since the 
plan, or any applicable corridor or sub-area plans, were adopted, the uses shall be 
consistent with recent development trends in the area.  

 As noted earlier in this review, the commercial portion of this project does not meet the 
goals of the Master Plan.  However, the project is consistent with a pattern of 
commercial from the John R Road and Big Beaver Road intersection and the Big Beaver 
Corridor Study.  

15.  Includes all necessary information and specifications with respect to structures, heights, 
setbacks, density, parking, circulation, landscaping, amenities and other design and 
layout features, exhibiting a due regard for the relationship of the development to the 
surrounding properties and uses thereon, as well as to the relationship between the 
various elements within the proposed Planned Unit Development. In determining whether 
these relationships have been appropriately addressed, consideration shall be given to the 
following: 

A.  The bulk, placement, and materials of construction of the proposed structures and 
other site improvements.   

 Basic information with regard to building materials has been provided on the 
conceptual floor plan and elevation drawings. 

B.  The location and screening of vehicular circulation and parking areas in relation 
to surrounding properties and the other elements of the development.   

 The vehicular parking and circulation areas and preliminary screening measures 
are adequately described on the site and landscape plans. 



Big Beaver Place 6-6-07 

8 

C.  The location and screening of outdoor storage, loading areas, outdoor activity or 
work areas, and mechanical equipment.   

 A proposed loading area has been added to the site plan.  An analysis of parking 
and loading is provided later in this review. The location and screening of any 
mechanical equipment have not been provided.  Please clarify. 

D.  The hours of operation of the proposed uses.  

 The applicant has provided a list of potential tenants.  In addition, the proposed 
hours of operation for each use has been added to Sheet 2.  While the actual 
hours of operation will be finalized once the spaces have been leased, the 
proposed hours are, in our opinion, reasonable given the nature of each building 
use. 

E.  The location, amount, type and intensity of landscaping, and other site amenities.   

 While specific material quantities have not been provided at this time, a 
conceptual landscaping plan showing initial landscaping designs has been 
provided. 

 
16.  Parking shall be provided in order to properly serve the total range of uses within the 

Planned Unit Development. The sharing of parking among the various uses within a 
Planned Unit Development may be permitted.  The applicant shall provide justification to 
the satisfaction of the City that the shared parking proposed is sufficient for the 
development and will not impair the functioning of the development, and will not have a 
negative effect on traffic flow within the development and/or on properties adjacent to 
the development.   

  
 The number of parking spaces has been reduced by four (4) spaces in this submission.  

However, we still consider that the amount of proposed parking is adequate.  Each of the 
proposed one-family attached residential units has a 2 car attached garage, and 
sufficient parking has been provided for the proposed non-residential uses.  A complete 
parking analysis is provided in later section of this review.   

 
17.  Innovative methods of stormwater management that enhance water quality shall be 

considered in the design of the stormwater system.  
  
 The applicant has proposed an innovative stormwater management system that promotes 

infiltration and improved water quality.  Key features include bio-swales with natural 
contours and native wetland and emergent plant species, and a detention/retention pond 
as a site amenity. 

 
18.  The proposed Planned Unit Development shall be in compliance with all applicable 

Federal, State and local laws and ordinances, and shall coordinate with existing public 
facilities.   

  
 The applicant must demonstrate throughout the process that the proposal meets with all 

applicable Federal, State and local laws and ordinances.  We defer to the City Engineer 
with regard to the site’s coordination with existing public facilities. 



Big Beaver Place 6-6-07 

9 

 
Items to be Addressed:  Clarify screening of mechanical equipment. 
 
AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS 
 
The underlying zoning for the entire site is R-1E, One-Family Residential.   
 
Front yard setbacks shown on the plans to the commercial properties range between 40 feet and 
59 feet, measured from the road right-of-way.  (Note that the coffee shop/deli building has been 
pushed back from the street by five (5) feet compared to the previous submission.)  The existing 
office building to the west is setback 53 feet, and the single-family home to the east is setback 50 
feet.  The Big Beaver Corridor Study states that buildings should be sited based on the district in 
which it is placed.  This property lies within the Single Family Residential district in the 
Corridor Plan.   
 
To the extent possible, the setbacks for all three proposed buildings are relatively consistent, and 
are coordinated with the existing buildings along the corridor (50 foot setback).  The proposed 
height of the retail buildings meets the recommendations for height in this Corridor district. 
  
Appropriate setbacks are provided for the proposed one-family attached residential structures.  In 
addition, the building heights (2 stories) conform to the lower heights called for in this Big 
Beaver district. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
PARKING, LOADING 
 
The plans meet the overall parking requirements.    For the attached one-family residential units, 
2 parking spaces per unit are required.  The site plan provides 46 spaces within garages.  This 
meets the required number of spaces.  An additional 9 spaces are provided on the street for 
visitor parking.   
 
Information about the seating capacity of the coffee shop/deli has been provided on Sheet 2.  
One space is required for every 2 persons within seating capacity of the establishment.  The 
coffee shop will have 20 seats, while the deli will have 30 seats, for a total of 50 seats (or 25 
spaces).  In addition, one space is required for each employee for each 10 seats of seating 
capacity, or one for each 35 s.f. of dining area, whichever is greater.  The applicant calculated 
this requirement using seating capacity, resulting in 5 additional parking spaces.  Total required 
parking spaces equals 30 spaces for the coffee shop/deli.   
 
Seventeen (17) spaces are shown adjacent to the coffee shop/deli, and an additional 13 spaces are 
shown along the western boundary, behind the townhouses.  In addition, the coffee shop has a 
drive-thru window.  This facility requires nine stacking spaces, which have also been added to 
the plans.    
 
The remaining retail portion of the development requires 1 space per each 200 s.f. of gross floor 
area, or 80 spaces (16,000/200 = 80).  The plans provide parking in the front, rear and side of the 



Big Beaver Place 6-6-07 

10 

retail buildings equaling 58 spaces (which was reduced from 60 spaces in the previous 
submission).  An additional 15 spaces (increased from 13 spaces) are shown behind the 
townhouses to the east.   
 
A loading area has been designated behind the retail building to the east. 
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION 
 
Two access points are proposed to service this development.   The main access is a boulevard 
drive to the residential units, and a secondary access is proposed to the east.  Parking serving the 
retail building is proposed via a service lane.  As requested, the applicant has eliminated the two 
most easterly spaces for safety purposes. 
 
The easterly entrance drive has been reconfigured slightly to clarify that it is an “entrance-only” 
drive.  The boulevard section has also been extended north to provide a resting place for 
pedestrians that are crossing the boulevard.   
 
We defer to the City Traffic Engineer for further comment on traffic and circulation issues. 

Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
SAFETY PATHS/SIDEWALKS 
 
Proposed amenities allow pedestrian access between the residential and commercial uses of the 
property.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
LANDSCAPING 
 
An amended landscape plan has been provided with this submission.  The plan shows 
landscaping around the site’s perimeter, at the water feature, and interspersed throughout the 
retail uses.  A finalized landscape plan is not required at this time in the site plan review process.  
However, we have the following comments: 
 
Composition: The mix of plant types provided in the preliminary plan selection is 

appropriate.  The applicant is proposing a range of species throughout the 
site. 

 



Big Beaver Place 6-6-07 

11 

Existing  
Vegetation: As mentioned above, the applicant states that they will clear the site of 

existing vegetation.  Due to the mix of existing species, we would 
consider this to be appropriate. 

 
Greenbelt: A 19 foot wide greenbelt area is proposed along Big Beaver Road within 

the road right-of-way.  The Big Beaver Corridor Study encourages the use 
of vegetation to separate pedestrians from vehicular traffic along the 
Corridor.  The Study also calls for planting large shade trees along the 
street.  Twenty-two (22) shade trees are proposed between the roadway 
and the sidewalk along Big Beaver Road.   

 
Residential  
Screening: Section 39.10 of the ordinance requires that a 6 foot high wall be provided 

for those sides of a conventional commercial district when abutting a 
residential district.  Given that the immediate use proposed along the east 
boundary within the PUD is attached one-family residential, we do not 
believe a wall is warranted, and that the proposed landscaping is 
preferable. 

 
Site  
Landscaping: Developments requesting PUD approval shall provide substantially more 

open space area than required for typical developments within the 
underlying zoning district.  As noted in the PUD section, a calculation for 
the amount of open space and landscaping was provided, stating that the 
proposed development is 25% (or 1.20 acres) open space and landscaping.  
(Also refer to comment #5 under the PUD Standards section of this 
review.)   

 
Other: Use of native herbaceous plantings in the bio-swales will require 

appropriate seed bed preparation, weed control as the plants are 
established, and maintenance to ensure that the plantings thrive and stay 
attractive.  Additional details of how the applicant proposes to accomplish 
these tasks will need to be provided. 

 
Items to be Addressed:  Details of herbaceous planting installation and maintenance.   
 
LIGHTING 
 
A lighting plan has not been provided as part of this submission, but will be required at the time 
of final site plan review.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  Lighting information must be provided at the time of final site plan 
consideration. 



Big Beaver Place 6-6-07 

12 

 
SIGNS 
 
Information about proposed signs has not been provided as part of this submission. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  Signage information must be provided at the time of final site plan 
consideration. 
 
FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS 
 
A rendering, elevations, and floor plans have been provided of the commercial and one-family 
attached residential buildings. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The plan provides many positive aspects that couldn’t be achieved without applying the PUD 
option.  The PUD concept locates appropriate uses across the site to transition from the Big 
Beaver corridor to the adjacent one-family residential area.  The commercial buildings provide 
space for local businesses and complement the other commercial uses along Big Beaver Road.  
The one-family attached residential use provides a comfortable transition between the 
commercial and single-family homes, and coordinates with the City’s Mater Plan and Big 
Beaver Corridor Study.   
 
Because of the revisions shown in this plan submission, it is our opinion that this project meets 
the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance and the intent of the Planned Unit Development 
option.  Therefore, we recommend that Planning Commission recommend approval of the 
Concept Development Plan to the City Council. 
 
 

 
 
  # 225-02-2701 
 
cc: Big Beaver Place, LLC, 48593 Hayes Road, Shelby Township, MI  48315 
 Fazal Khan & Associates, Inc., 43279 Schoenherr Road, Sterling Heights, MI  48313 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (P.U.D. #8) – Proposed 

Big Beaver Place, North side of Big Beaver, East of John R, Section 24, 
Currently Zoned R-1E (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Miller indicated City Management concurs with the recommendation of 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc.  
 
Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., provided an updated report 
on the proposed development and indicated there are no outstanding issues.  Mr. 
Carlisle recommends approval of the Concept Development Plan.   
 
A discussion followed on the internal traffic circulation.  Concerns with egress 
and a designated “No ‘U’ Turn” sign were discussed.   
 
Norman Hyman of 38500 Woodward Avenue, Bloomfield Hills, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  He introduced project team members Carol Thurber of 
Fazal Khan & Associates, Paul Landry of Landry + Newman Architects, and 
Stefano Mularoni, developer.  Mr. Hyman said the revisions made to the internal 
traffic pattern were a result of a consensus of their traffic consultant and the 
City’s Traffic Engineer.   
 
Ms. Thurber said three traffic pattern alternatives were discussed at an April 
Planning Commission study session, and the plan reflects the direction given by 
the members, as well as a consensus reached by the City’s Traffic Engineer and 
the project traffic consultant.  She also addressed the deceleration lane as 
relates to the Oakland County Road Commission (OCRC).  
 
Mr. Landry provided a rendering of the proposed development.  He addressed 
the configurations of the retail building and pond and provided details on the 
building materials.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Mike Dunaj of 2100 Orpington, Troy, was present.  Mr. Dunaj spoke in opposition 
of the proposed development.  He addressed the commercial use near 
residential and existing retail vacancies.   
 
Victor DeFlorio of 3609 Cedar Brook, Rochester Hills, was present.  Mr. DeFlorio 
developed Rhode Island Estates, a residential development located east of the 
subject proposal.  He addressed the difference in development concepts 
between the proposed development and Rhode Island Estates.  Mr. DeFlorio 
said residents are concerned with privacy, property values, traffic and density.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

Ms. Troshynski commented favorably on the amount of landscape buffer 
proposed for the development, especially to the east to buffer the proposed 
parking from the back yards of those residents in Rhode Island Estates.  She 
said getting that information out to the neighbors might result in a better 
understanding of the development. 
 
Mr. Strat commended the developer on the project, but noted he is not pleased 
with the internal traffic circulation.  
 
Mr. Vleck emphasized the developer’s intent to provide 25% open space.  He 
indicated the petitioner might consider additional buffering, such as a fence, in 
the final stage of site plan review.  
 
Mr. Littman said initially he was not comfortable with the fit of the proposed 
development in the neighborhood, and has gradually grown to appreciate it.  He 
indicated the critical point for him is the buffering between the two developments, 
and encouraged communication between the developer and neighbors.  
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-102 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed a Concept Development Plan for 
a Planned Unit Development, pursuant to Article 35.50.01, as requested by Big 
Beaver Place, LLC for the Big Beaver Place Planned Unit Development (PUD 8), 
located on the north side of Big Beaver Road and east side of John R Road, 
Section 24, within the R-1E zoning district, being approximately 4.77 acres in size; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s Planning Consultant Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman 
Associates, Inc. prepared a memorandum dated June 6, 2007 that recommends 
Concept Development Plan Approval of Big Beaver Place Planned Unit 
Development; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed PUD meets the Eligibility Requirements set forth in 
Article 35.30.00; and   
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission recommends that 
Concept Development Plan Approval for Big Beaver Place Preliminary Planned 
Unit Development be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Schultz briefly addressed the procedure for the City Council public hearing. 





 
 
 
 
 

Big Beaver Place   
Preliminary PUD Plans 

are included with Council agenda packets 
and available for viewing at the 

City Clerk’s Office and the Troy Public Library 



 1

 
 
DATE: August 14, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing – Concept Development Plan Approval – The Oasis at 

Centennial Park Planned Unit Development (PUD 6), South side of Long Lake and West 
side of John R, Section 14 – Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District 

 
Background: 
 

• A public hearing is scheduled for this item for the September 10, 2007 City Council meeting. 
 
• The Planning Commission recommended Concept Development Plan Approval of PUD 6 at 

the June 12, 2007 Regular meeting.   
 
• The project consists of a mixed use project with a combination of a 20-bed senior housing 

facility and retail, restaurant, day care, and office uses.   
 

• Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., the City’s Planning Consultant, prepared 
a report summarizing the project and recommends Concept Development Plan Approval. 

 
• The proposed PUD meets the Eligibility requirements of Section 35.30.00 of the City of Troy 

Zoning Ordinance. 
 

• The proposed PUD meets the Standards for Approval of Section 35.70.03 of the City of Troy 
Zoning Ordinance. 

 
• The Development Agreement will be provided for the Public Hearing.  
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01c



 2

Financial Considerations: 
 

• There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

• City Council has the authority to act on this application.  
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

• The item is consistent with City Council Goal I (Enhance the livability and safety of the 
community), Goal III (Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment), and Goal 
V (Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public needs). 

 
 
Options: 
 

• City Council can approve the application for Concept Development Plan Approval. 
 
• City Council can approve the application for Concept Development Plan Approval with 

conditions. 
 
• City Council can deny the application for Concept Development Plan Approval. 
 
• No action required until the September 10, 2007 Special meeting. 

 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Map.  
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., dated June 6, 2007. 
3. Planning Commission Minutes from the June 12, 2007 Regular meeting. 
4. Public comments. 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File /PUD 6 
 
G:\PUD's\PUD 006 Oasis at Centennial Park PUD\Announce CC Public Hearing 08 20 07.doc 
 
 
 





 
 
  

 Date: March 28, 2007 
Rev: April 18, 2007 

Rev: June 6, 2007 
   

Planned Unit Development/Site Plan Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Applicant: Stefano Mularoni 
 Oasis at Centennial Park, LLC 

48593 Hayes  
 Shelby Township, MI  48315 

Project Name: Oasis at Centennial Park Planned Unit Development 

Plan Date: April 10, 2007 

Latest Revision: May 23, 2007 

Location: Southeast corner of Long Lake and John R roads  

Zoning: R-1C, One Family Residential District  

Action Requested: Planning Commission review and recommendation to the City 
Council for approval of a Concept Development Plan as 
established in Section 35.50. 

Required Information: Deficiencies noted.  

 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
We are in receipt of a revised application for the Oasis at Centennial Park Planned Unit 
Development.  The site is located at the southwest corner of Long Lake Road and John R Road.  
The proposal consists of a mixed use project with a combination of a 20-bed senior housing 
facility and retail, restaurant, day care, and office uses.  The senior housing is proposed in the 
form of “greenhouses”, a concept which offers alternative care for the elderly.  The site is 
currently occupied by seven (7) one-family residences on their own parcels, and is 9.34 acres in 
total.  The site is currently zoned R-1C, One Family Residential District.  



Oasis at Centennial Park PUD 6-6-07 

2 

 
 

 
 
The applicant has made the following revisions to the plan which include, but are not necessarily 
limited to, the following: 
 

1. Eliminated parallel parking spaces on either side of the proposed central driveway near 
the southeast access to John R Road.  This resulted in more green space near the cafe; 

2. Relocated the loading area on the proposed central driveway to the north side of the 
Retail/Retail C building. 

3. Narrowed the boulevard entrance slightly off of John R Road. 

4. Added banked parking in the northwest corner of the property.  This change eliminates 
constructing fifty-two (52) parking spaces in this location. 

Project 
Site

Long Lake Road 

Jo
hn

 R
 R

oa
d 



Oasis at Centennial Park PUD 6-6-07 

3 

5. Added nineteen (19) parking spaces in front of the restaurant/office building; two (2) 
spaces in front of Retail A, and two (2) spaces in front of Retail B-C.   

6. Added pedestrian amenities to improve opportunities for crossing the main road through 
the development; added walks behind the retirement facility; and added walkways to 
allow a person to walk from John R Road to E. Long Lake Road. 

 
NEIGHBORING ZONING AND LAND USE 

 
North: The properties directly north across Long Lake Road are zoned R-1C, One Family 

Residential District; uses in this area include a church and one-family residences.  
To the north and east, at the northeast corner of the Long Lake Road and John R 
Road intersection, is a parcel zoned B-3, General Business District, which is used 
for retail.   

 
South: Properties to the south of the site are zoned R-1C, One Family Residential 

District.  Existing uses in this area include a party store and one-family 
residential.   

 
East: The properties located on the southeast corner of Long Lake Road and John R 

Road are zoned B-3, General Business District and R-1C, One Family Residential 
District.  The site surrounds an existing CVS on the southwest corner of Long 
Lake and John R Road. The remainder of the area is used for one-family 
residential (south of the subject site), with the exception of the fire training 
facility, which is located directly east of the project site.  

 
West: The land to the west along Long Lake Road is zoned R-1C, One Family 

Residential District, and is used for one-family residential. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
MASTER PLAN 

The subject property is currently planned for low density residential use along both Long Lake 
Road and John R Road.  The Master Land Use Plan classifications surrounding the site are: 
 

North: Low density residential 
 
South: Low density residential 
 
East: Community facilities 
 
West: Low density residential 

 
While the commercial or senior housing proposed for this property are not consistent with the 
Master Plan designation of low density residential, we agree with the applicant’s assertion that 
the proposed uses are compatible with the surrounding area.     



Oasis at Centennial Park PUD 6-6-07 

4 

 
As set forth in Sec. 35.40.00, the proposal must be consistent with the Master Plan, sub-area or 
corridor plans or recent development trends of the area.  This Plan designates the northeast and 
southeast corners as local service area and community facilities respectively.  However, 
commercial zoning exists on the northeast, and southwest corners.  Therefore, the subject project 
is consistent with “recent development trends in the area.”  The proposed project provides 
relatively low intensity mixed collection of smaller commercial and office uses, which are well 
located in close proximity to the CVS.  The balance of the uses, senior citizen greenhouse and 
day care, are uses which are compatible with the adjacent residential.    
 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
NATURAL RESOURCES 
 
Topography:  The topography of the site is relatively flat, with drainage moving from 

west to east.  The site was previously developed for one-family residential 
use, and varies in grade from 665 feet above sea level at the highest point 
on the west end of the site to 658 feet above sea level at its lowest point at 
the east end of the site.   

 
Woodlands: There does not appear to be a significant number of large mature trees on 

site that could be maintained and/or transplanted, although the plan does 
indicate that there are several pockets with trees of some maturity.  There 
are small collections of trees and brush near the existing residences and in 
a few small brushy areas throughout the site.  The topographic survey 
provided does indicate that a small pocket of larger evergreens at the 
southwest corner of the site will remain.   

 
Wetlands: The on-site evaluation conducted by King and MacGregor Environmental 

on behalf of the applicant indicates that no wetlands are present on the 
subject site.   

 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
TRAFFIC IMPACT 
 
A traffic impact study was provided in a previous submittal, prepared by Traffic Engineering 
Associates, Inc.  The analysis provides land use observations, traffic counts, a level of service 
analysis, a review of background conditions, projected site traffic generation, the estimated 
future traffic volumes, and a future level of service analysis.  The study also includes a summary 
of findings which indicate that the following 5 items should be considered: 
 

1. The Road Commission for Oakland County should evaluate the John R Road and East 
Long Lake Road intersection for the need for signalization and geometric alterations that 
may be necessary in the future, potentially including dedicated right-turn lanes. 



Oasis at Centennial Park PUD 6-6-07 

5 

2. The proposed drive on Long Lake Road should be constructed with two full width exiting 
lanes, and a full-width right-turn lane should be provided for traffic entering the site from 
eastbound Long Lake Road. 

3. The north proposed drive on John R Road (which accesses the CVS site) should be 
provided at the southbound right turn lane shown on the site plan. 

4. A right turn taper for southbound John R Road traffic should be provided at the south 
proposed drive on John R Road. 

5. The proposed boulevard section at the south proposed drive on John R Road should be 
removed to reduce potential left turn conflicts. 

We defer to the City Engineer with regard to the conclusions of the traffic analysis.  The 
applicant has added the proposed changes suggested in #2, #3, and #4 to this set of plans.  The 
only change suggested that was not made was removing the proposed boulevard off of John R 
Road.    

 
Items to be Addressed:  Address conclusions of traffic study.  
 
ESSENTIAL FACILITIES AND SERVICES 

Water and Sewer 

The site will connect to existing water and sewer mains located within the right-of-way of Long 
Lake Road (water) and John R Road (sewer).   

Stormwater Management 

The site plan states that site is in the Nelson Drain District, and that stormwater will be detained 
on site, and then discharged to the existing storm sewer along Long Lake Road.  The plan also 
makes use of bio-swales within parking lot landscaping areas.  Additional information with 
regard to proposed stormwater management has been included in the submittal, in a new Sheet 3 
containing proposed preliminary grading and stormwater management measures.  We support 
the applicant’s use of bio-swales throughout the property. We defer to the City Engineer with 
regard to proposed utilities. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  City Engineer review of utilities.  
 
PUD STANDARDS  
 
The Zoning Ordinance, as amended, sets forth criteria in Section 35.30.00 for consideration of a 
project as a PUD.  The following are our comments:  
 
Section 35.30.00, A.  The proposal development shall be applied for by a person or entity who 
has the legal right to execute a binding agreement concerning all process on the development. 
 
The applicant has demonstrated that this requirement has been met. 
 



Oasis at Centennial Park PUD 6-6-07 

6 

Section 35.30.00, B.:  The applicant shall demonstrate that through the use of the PUD option, 
the development will accomplish a sufficient number of the following objectives, as are 
reasonably applicable to the site, providing:  
 
1.  A mixture of land uses that would otherwise not be permitted without the use of the PUD, 

provided that other objectives of this Article are also met.  

 The proposal provides a mixture of land uses that would otherwise not be permitted in 
the underlying zoning category, or in any other single zoning category. 

2.  A public improvement or public facility (e.g. recreational, transportation, safety and 
security) which will enhance, add to or replace those provided by public entities, thereby 
furthering the public health, safety and welfare.  

 The site plan includes an extensive pedestrian network, increased landscaping, and three 
large park-like settings.  There are walkway connections to the public system along both 
roadways and the neighboring subdivision. 

3. A recognizable and material benefit to the ultimate users of the project and to the 
community, where such benefit would otherwise be infeasible or unlikely to be achieved 
absent these regulations.   

 The proposed project represents a coordinated plan which includes a mix of land uses 
working together to form an innovative and high-quality development.   This walkable, 
integrated design would be difficult to arrange using conventional zoning techniques. 

4. Long term protection and preservation of natural resources, natural features, and historic 
and cultural resources, of a significant quantity and/or quality in need of protection or 
preservation, and which would otherwise be unfeasible or unlikely to be achieved absent 
these regulations.  

 We are aware of no such features on the subject site. 

5. A compatible mixture of open space, landscaped areas, and/or pedestrian amenities.  

 The applicant is required to provide substantially more open space and landscape area 
than the ten (10%) percent requirement of Section 39.70.04.  This requirement is in 
addition to the greenbelt requirements.  Open space and landscape features are intended 
to be primary features of developments seeking PUD approval and are expected to 
provide substantially more open space area than that required for typical developments.  
The site plan now indicates that 2.91 acres of open space (which does not include the 
area occupied by the water feature) are proposed for this development, which is 
equivalent to over 31 percent of the site.  Including the area occupied by the water 
feature, 3.73 acres, or 40 percent of the site, is proposed.  We feel this meets with the 
requirements of Section 39.70.04 and are satisfied that the proposed open space is 
optimally located to provide the best possible transition to adjacent development. 

6. Appropriate land use transitions between the PUD and surrounding properties.  

 The strategic location of the senior housing and proposed open space and landscaping 
materials provide the best possible transition to the adjacent land uses, given the nature 
of the proposed uses within the project.  As mentioned in the previous review, we have a 
concern that the westerly parking is not an appropriate transition.  However, the 



Oasis at Centennial Park PUD 6-6-07 

7 

applicant has now proposed to landback parking for this area and add parking 
elsewhere. 

7. Design features and techniques, such as green building and low impact design, which 
will promote and encourage energy conservation and sustainable development.  

 The applicant has incorporated bio-swales throughout the development to mitigate the 
effect the development will have on stormwater infiltration.  We defer to the City 
Engineer in this regard.  They have also reduced the number of parking spaces by a total 
of twenty-nine (29) spaces, and increased the green/open space by banking parking.  We 
are not aware of any other measures being taken to ensure sustainable design. 

8. Innovative and creative site and building designs, solutions and materials.  

 The incorporation of a central water feature and the mix of proposed land uses represent 
an innovative and creative site plan which will provide an amenity to potential visitors to 
the area.  The proposed buildings are shown in conceptual elevations and floor plans, 
and are of a typical mass and height for the area.  The proposed buildings do provide 
architectural variation between the residential and non-residential portions of the site 
and are arranged to take advantage of future views over the central water feature. 

9. The desirable qualities of a dynamic urban environment that is compact, designed to 
human scale, and exhibits contextual integration of buildings and city spaces.   

 This site plan was designed to offer a variety of uses in close proximity. The pattern is 
compact and demonstrates a multi-use site in which users can recreate and work, shop, 
dine, or seek child care. 

10.  The PUD will reasonably mitigate impacts to the transportation system and enhance non-
motorized facilities and amenities.   

 The plan does include a comprehensive pedestrian pathway network throughout the site 
which provides excellent non-motorized access from one use to another.  The previous 
submission includes a traffic study which makes a series of recommendations with regard 
to motorized transportation, may  which have been incorporated into the site plan.   

11.  For the appropriate assembly, use, redevelopment, replacement and/or improvement of 
existing sites that are occupied by obsolete uses and/or structures;  

 This proposal will redevelop properties that currently include one-family residences.  
The surrounding area is predominantly one-family residential and the site abuts the Long 
Lake Village Subdivision.  While we do not know whether the specific single family 
residential is obsolete, it is unlikely this site would be viable for new single family 
development. 

12.  A complementary variety of housing types that are in harmony with adjacent uses;  

 The senior living portion of this project will provide an alternative type of housing within 
the City.  The greenhouse concept is not currently offered.  The proposed senior housing 
buildings are limited in height (one story) and are designed and located to most 
appropriately remain in harmony with the adjacent subdivision 

13. A reduction of the impact of a non-conformity or removal of an obsolete building or 
structure.  



Oasis at Centennial Park PUD 6-6-07 

8 

 As noted above, we do not know whether the specific single family residential is obsolete, 
but we believe it is unlikely that this site would be viable for new single family 
development; we are not aware of any non-conformities on the site. 

14. A development consistent with and meeting the intent of this Article; and will promote 
the intent of the plan meeting the requirements of the Municipal Planning Act or the 
intent of any applicable corridor or sub-area plans.  If conditions have changed since the 
plan, or any applicable corridor or sub-area plans, were adopted, the uses shall be 
consistent with recent development trends in the area.  

 As noted earlier in this review, the proposal does not meet the goals of the Master Plan.  
However, it is our opinion that the Master Plan may not be realistic and the proposal is 
more consistent with development trends in the area. 

15.  Includes all necessary information and specifications with respect to structures, heights, 
setbacks, density, parking, circulation, landscaping, amenities and other design and 
layout features, exhibiting a due regard for the relationship of the development to the 
surrounding properties and uses thereon, as well as to the relationship between the 
various elements within the proposed Planned Unit Development. In determining whether 
these relationships have been appropriately addressed, consideration shall be given to the 
following: 

A.  The bulk, placement, and materials of construction of the proposed structures and 
other site improvements.   

 Basic information with regard to building materials has been provided on the 
conceptual floor plan and elevation drawings. 

B.  The location and screening of vehicular circulation and parking areas in relation 
to surrounding properties and the other elements of the development.   

 The vehicular parking and circulation areas and preliminary screening measures 
are adequately described on the site and landscape plans. 

C.  The location and screening of outdoor storage, loading areas, outdoor activity or 
work areas, and mechanical equipment.   

 One proposed loading area is described on the site plan (which was relocated 
from the previous submission).  Location and screening of any other outdoor 
storage, loading areas, outdoor activity or work areas, and mechanical 
equipment have not been provided. 

D.  The hours of operation of the proposed uses.  

 The applicant has provided a list of potential tenants.  We did not observe any 
information with regard to the proposed hours of operation of the potential uses 
proposed. 

E.  The location, amount, type and intensity of landscaping, and other site amenities.   
 
 While specific material quantities have not been provided at this time, a 

conceptual landscaping plan showing initial landscaping designs has been 
provided. 

 



Oasis at Centennial Park PUD 6-6-07 

9 

16.  Parking shall be provided in order to properly serve the total range of uses within the 
Planned Unit Development. The sharing of parking among the various uses within a 
Planned Unit Development may be permitted.  The applicant shall provide justification to 
the satisfaction of the City that the shared parking proposed is sufficient for the 
development and will not impair the functioning of the development, and will not have a 
negative effect on traffic flow within the development and/or on properties adjacent to 
the development.  We have suggestions regarding location. 

  
 A complete parking analysis is provided in later section of this review.  Given that the 

proposed uses lend themselves to a shared parking agreement, especially the senior 
housing and day care facilities ( which experience only intermittent or limited demand), 
we support the use of shared parking in the development.  The applicant has further  
responded to this by land banking some parking, and reducing the total number of 
parking spaces by twenty-nine (29) spaces across the development. 

 
17.  Innovative methods of stormwater management that enhance water quality shall be 

considered in the design of the stormwater system.  
 
 Stormwater generated by this development will be captured by an above-ground 

detention basin.  After stormwater is detained on site, it will then be discharged to the 
existing storm sewer along Long Lake Road.  The plan also makes limited use of a series 
of bio-swales throughout the property to lessen the impact on stormwater infiltration 
caused by the proposed project.  We would encourage the applicant to explore additional 
methodologies to enhance stormwater quality. 

 
18.  The proposed Planned Unit Development shall be in compliance with all applicable 

Federal, State and local laws and ordinances, and shall coordinate with existing public 
facilities.   

 
 The applicant has demonstrated throughout the process that the proposal meets with all 

applicable Federal, State and local laws and ordinances.  We defer to the City Engineer 
with regard to the site’s coordination with existing public facilities. 

 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS 
 
The underlying zoning for the entire site is R-1C, One Family Residential District.  While 
setbacks are not delineated on the site plan, our measurements indicate that the provided 
setbacks exceed the requirements for projects within the R-1C District, and also exceed the 
requirements for the B-2, Community Business District, and B-3, General Business District, 
districts under which the proposed nonresidential uses could conventionally be located.  
 
Items to be Addressed:  None.   
 
PARKING, LOADING 
 



Oasis at Centennial Park PUD 6-6-07 

10 

The proposal includes 265 parking spaces, which would serve approximately 31,000 square feet 
of retail, 6,900 square feet of office, a 30-child daycare, 4,000 square foot restaurant, and 20 
units of senior housing.  The site plan also shows 52 land banked spaces.  Required parking for 
these uses under conventional development approaches would be as follows.   
 
Proposed Use Calculation Required number of spaces 
Senior Living 0.65 spaces per unit plus one space 

per employee 
21 spaces (20 units and 8 
employees) 

Restaurant 1 space for every 35 square feet of 
gross floor area 

114 spaces (4,000 square feet) 

Retail 1 space for every 200 square feet 
of gross floor area 

155 spaces (31,000 square feet) 

Office 1 space for every 200 square feet 
of gross floor area 

35 spaces (6,900 square feet) 

Daycare 1 space for every 10 children plus 
1 space for every employee 

11 spaces (30 children and 8 
employees) 

TOTAL  336 spaces required under 
conventional zoning 

 
The Ordinance allows for the sharing of parking among mixed uses in a PUD.  The proposed 
reduction in overall required parking is 71 spaces, or approximately 21%. We consider this 
desirable since the proposed uses lend themselves to a shared parking agreement, especially the 
senior housing and day care facilities, which experience only intermittent or limited demand.  
 
The single proposed loading zone for the development was relocated from its previous location 
to the north of the Retail/Retail C building.  This is a more desirable location for loading for the 
central retail area.  Regarding Retail A building, loading/unloading space for each 
commercial/retail building will be accommodated directly behind he building.  Since loading 
will be sharing vehicular access space, there may be times where there are conflicts with patron 
use.  However, this is a small center and we expect the conflicts to be minimal. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION 
 
The plan shows three primary access points, one from Long Lake Road and two from John R 
Road.  These access points are appropriately situated opposite existing drives on both John R 
Road and Long Lake Road.  The site is arranged around a central drive that connects the single 
access drive on Long Lake Road with the south access drive on John R Road.   
 
We support the arrangement of the site around this primary drive, and recognize the applicant’s 
concept of locating the buildings around a central water feature.  Traffic calming features, such 
as relatively narrow roadways (20’), and raised pedestrian crossings have been added to help 
minimize cut-through traffic.  In addition, the applicant has banked parking spaces in the 
northwest corner, reducing pavement and minimizing the dominant appearance of parking.   
 
We consider the modifications to the design have been done in an acceptable manner.     

Items to be Addressed:   None.  



Oasis at Centennial Park PUD 6-6-07 

11 

 
SAFETY PATHS/SIDEWALKS 
 
A sidewalk and pathway plan has been provided.  A connected pathway and sidewalk system is 
proposed throughout the development which allows for full use of the proposed uses on foot.  
Furthermore, the proposed pathways connect the development to the adjacent Long Lake Village 
Subdivision by way of the existing sidewalks along Carr Drive.   
 
The overall compact layout of the site offers good walkability and pedestrian access, although 
the largest parking areas are located in remote locations relative to the main retail buildings 
along John R Road, consequently the walkways must cover significant distances to provide 
access.  The pedestrian pathway fully surrounds the proposed senior living facility and offers 
access to the planned open space in this area. 
 
As suggested in the previous review, the applicant has modified the pathway plan in several 
ways: 
1) Separate walkways from the bioswales,  
2) Move the loading zone near the café to provide direct access to the rear outside dining area, 

and  
3) Add additional crosswalks to offer access between parking areas and the proposed retail 

uses.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
LANDSCAPING 
 
Composition: The applicant is proposing a landscaping program which includes 

deciduous and evergreen plant material, a variety of shrubs, ornamentals, 
and perennials; however, specific quantities and sizes have not been 
identified at this time. 

 
Existing  
Vegetation: While little landscaping exists on the subject site, there are a number of 

smaller trees that are now proposed to remain.  The specific locations of 
these trees have identified on this set of plans.  A description of the trees 
also needs to be provided at the time of final site plan approval. 

 
Greenbelt: A minimum 10’ greenbelt is required along Long Lake Road and John R 

Road, and is provided in both locations.  
 
 For non-residential development, the Ordinance requires one tree per 

every thirty (30) linear feet of roadway frontage.  Long Lake Road will 
require 18 trees (519.75/30), and 19 are proposed.  John R Road will 
require 9 trees (269.59/30), and 11 are proposed. 

 
Residential  



Oasis at Centennial Park PUD 6-6-07 

12 

Screening: This plan does not indicate a wall between the commercial portions of the 
property and the residential portions. Given the integrated, mixed use 
design of this project, and its nature as a PUD, we do not feel that a screen 
wall is necessary and use of landscaping is more appropriate. 

   
Site  
Landscaping: Developments requesting PUD approval shall provide substantially more 

open space area than required for typical developments within the 
underlying zoning district.  As noted above, the site provides 40 percent 
open space including the water feature, and more than 31 percent open 
space not including the water feature. 

 
Details: Planting details have been provided.   
 
Refuse  
Container: Details of pedestrian trash receptacles are shown on the landscape plans, 

and locations and details of dumpsters throughout the development are 
also shown. Five dumpsters appear to be proposed for the entire 
development, two of which are located near the existing dumpster for the 
CVS store, and three of which are located along the south boundary of the 
site, between the day care facility and retail building “A.”  The design of 
the proposed dumpster enclosures is not provided.  

 
Items to be Addressed:  Describe nature of existing trees proposed to remain upon final 
approval.     
 
LIGHTING 
 
A lighting plan has not been provided as part of this submission, and the applicant has indicated 
by way of a note on the site plan drawing that the proposed decorative street lighting near the 
CVS site is still under discussion with the developers.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  Lighting information must be provided at the time of final site plan 
consideration. 
 
SIGNS 
 
Information about proposed signs has not been provided as part of this submission. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  Signage information must be provided at the time of final site plan 
consideration. 
 
FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS 
 
Conceptual floor plans and elevations have been provided for the proposed buildings.  The 
building style of the senior living facility is residential, and incorporates gable-end roofs, 
masonry construction, and dormers.  The proposed building style of the nonresidential portion is 



Oasis at Centennial Park PUD 6-6-07 

13 

far more contemporary, and incorporates limited masonry elements detailing predominantly 
glass and aluminum facades.  Proposed building heights are within the anticipated range for the 
area, and do not extend beyond a single story.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The proposed uses would provide benefit to the adjacent residences, provide an excellent 
transition of use, and would introduce an alternative housing style in the senior living component 
that would help diversify the City’s housing stock.  While the proposed uses within the PUD are 
not supported by the Master Plan, continuation of one-family, low density residential 
development for this site is unrealistic. 
 
Since the last submittal, the applicant has made significant revisions which address our 
outstanding comments.  Therefore, we recommend approval on the basis that the proposed uses 
are in keeping with the overall direction of development trends in the area and that the proposal 
provides positive elements that could not be achieved without application of the PUD option.   
 
 

 
 
  # 225-02-2702 
 
RKC: zb 
 
cc: Oasis at Centennial Park LLC, 48593 Hayes Road, Shelby Township, MI  48315 
 Fazal Khan & Associates, Inc., 43279 Schoenherr Road, Sterling Heights, MI  48313 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENTS 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (P.U.D. #6) – Proposed 

Oasis at Centennial Park, South side of Long Lake, West side of John R, Section 
14, Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Miller indicated City Management concurs with the recommendation of 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc.  He briefly reviewed the new approval 
procedure for planned unit development projects. 
 
Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., provided an updated report 
on the proposed development and addressed the revisions to the plan since the 
members last reviewed it.  Mr. Carlisle recommends approval of the Concept 
Development Plan.   
 
Discussed briefly were the dumpster location in relation to the café and the need 
for grease containers. 
 
Norman Hyman of 38500 Woodward Avenue, Bloomfield Hills, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  He introduced project team members Carol Thurber of 
Fazal Khan & Associates, Paul Landry of Landry + Newman Architects, and 
Stefano Mularoni, developer.  Mr. Hyman noted the location of dumpsters and 
grease containers would be addressed further during preliminary site plan 
preparation.  He said they tried to balance the uses and create a site plan with 
the least impact on the neighbors.   
 
Mr. Strat commended the petitioner on the proposed development.  He asked for 
clarification of the “pool” designations on the site plan.  
 
Ms. Thurber replied the “pool” designations refer to sedimentation forebays.  
 
Mr. Landry presented a rendering of the proposed development and reviewed the 
building materials. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Nancy-Street Merriweather of 1834 Wilmet Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. 
Merriweather spoke in opposition of the proposed development.  She addressed 
concerns with lighting, traffic and safety of school children, and indicated she 
would like to see the area stay residential.  
 
Peter Milosavlevski of 4843 John R, Troy, was present.  Mr. Milosavlevski spoke 
in opposition of the proposed development.  He explained that he and his sister 
were present tonight to speak on behalf of their mother who lives in the house 
adjacent to the proposed development.  They are owners of the Beer Barrel 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 

store.  Mr. Milosavlevski addressed concerns relating to noise, privacy and 
property values.   
 
Saśa Doll of 4843 John R, Troy, was present.  Ms. Doll spoke in opposition of the 
proposed development.  She spoke of the investment in rebuilding the home and 
her mother’s love of the back yard, pool and garden.  Ms. Doll addressed 
concerns with property values, noise and traffic. 
 
Chair Schultz clarified that the development proposes to build one-story buildings 
only, and explained that the development cannot vary from the approved site 
plan.   
 
Mr. Strat emphasized the developer is proposing to provide landscaping far 
above what is required.   
 
Ms. Troshynski said the petitioner would most likely address any lighting 
concerns since it has been brought to their attention.  
 
Roberta Burgin of 1872 E. Long Lake Road, Troy, was present.  Ms. Burgin 
spoke in opposition of the proposed development.  She addressed concerns with 
the location of the proposed restaurant in relation to their home, traffic, and 
existing retail vacancies and child care facilities in the neighborhood.   
 
Mark Weir of 4867 John R, Troy, was present.  Mr. Weir is the owner of one of 
the properties to be developed.  He indicated his home and the three properties 
to the north are in disrepair.  Mr. Weir believes the proposed development is 
good and would benefit the City. 
 
Mike Burgin of 1872 E. Long Lake Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. Burgin spoke in 
opposition of the proposed development.  He spoke of the potential to rebuild the 
homes in the area and maintain the area as residential.  Mr. Burgin addressed 
concerns relating to traffic and the proposed restaurant location in relation to his 
home. 
 
Mr. Strat asked the orientation of the Burgin garage.  
 
Mr. Burgin replied their garage is attached to the house and would face the 
project.  
 
Scott Berry of 1881 Carr, Troy, was present.  Mr. Berry spoke in opposition of the 
proposed development.  His property is directly adjacent to the proposed 
development.  Mr. Berry addressed concerns relating to the investment in their 
home, the natural park-like setting, existing retail vacancies, traffic and property 
values.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 

There were brief comments on the relationship of the property owned by Mark 
Weir to 4843 John R.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Hyman said they met with the neighbors and two concerns were expressed:  
1) they did not want multi-story buildings; and 2) they did not want a through 
street to the residential.  Mr. Hyman said the proposed development has one-
story buildings only, and there is no street connection to any residential.  He said 
property values would most likely increase should the development go forward.  
He also indicated the subject area would not be conducive to single family 
residential development. 
 
Ms. Kerwin asked the petitioner to address public comments expressed tonight 
on the 1872 Long Lake residence in relation to the proposal, the park-like setting 
on Carr Drive, and the number of stories proposed for the senior housing.   
 
Mr. Hyman said the garage of the 1872 Long Lake residence would face 
landbanked parking.  The landbanked parking would be maintained with grass, 
shrubs and trees for potential parking should it be needed in the future.  Mr. 
Hyman said they tried their best to minimize the visual impact of the proposed 
development to the surrounding residential by providing a water feature and 
landscaping that far exceeds the open space requirements of the ordinance.  Mr. 
Hyman addressed the greenhouse elderly housing that is a one-story building, 
and submitted a New York Times article titled “Rethinking Old Age”, dated May 
24, 2007, that talks about the revolutionary concept.  
 
Ms. Kerwin said it appears the residents do not have the same perception of the 
proposed development as the members do, and encouraged the petitioner to 
provide the neighbors with the same information and renderings that have been 
provided to the members.   
 
Mr. Hyman said they would be happy to meet with the neighbors at any time.  
 
Mr. Strat said the concerns expressed tonight by the neighbors are valid, and it is 
the responsibility of the members to protect their properties.  He indicated he 
would scrutinize the landscape plan to assure surrounding properties are 
protected.   
 
Mr. Littman questioned the continuation of the stockade fence north of Carr. 
 
Ms. Thurber explained the fence is an existing fence and is part of the 
topographical survey. 
 
Mr. Vleck addressed the impact to the neighbors should single family residential 
go in the area versus the proposed planned unit development project.  He 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 

brought to the public’s attention the developer is not developing to the maximum 
and the proposed 31% open space is unprecedented in the City of Troy.  Mr. 
Vleck said the walkability resulting from the proposed development would be an 
asset to the surrounding residential.  Mr. Vleck said he speaks from personal 
experience, noting that he lives near two planned unit development projects.   
 
Mr. Strat agreed with Mr. Vleck’s comments and noted further that should the 
area be developed as residential, Carr Drive would open up and the residents 
would be dealing with drive-through traffic. 
 
Chair Schultz said the density of development would be appreciably higher with 
residential and agreed the 30+% of open space would be an asset to the 
surrounding neighbors. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-101 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed a Concept Development Plan for 
a Planned Unit Development, pursuant to Article 35.50.01, as requested by Oasis 
at Centennial Park, LLC for the Oasis at Centennial Park Planned Unit 
Development (PUD 6), located on the south side of Long Lake Road and west side 
of John R Road, Section 14, within the R-1C zoning district, being approximately 
9.34 acres in size; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s Planning Consultant Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman 
Associates, Inc. prepared a memorandum dated June 6, 2007 that recommends 
Concept Development Plan approval of Oasis at Centennial Park Planned Unit 
Development; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed PUD meets the Standards for Approval set forth in 
Article 35.30.00; and   
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission recommends that 
Concept Development Plan Approval for Oasis at Centennial Park Planned Unit 
Development be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Schultz briefly addressed the procedure for the City Council public hearing.   

 





 
 
 
 
 

The Oasis at Centennial Park   
Preliminary PUD Plans 

are included with Council agenda packets 
and available for viewing at the 

City Clerk’s Office and the Troy Public Library 



 1

 
 
 
DATE: August 14, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing - Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: 

ZOTA 230) – Articles X and XVIII – Wireless Communication Towers on School 
Property in the R-1A through R-1E One Family Residential and C-F Community 
Facilities Districts 

 
 
Background: 
 
• A public hearing is scheduled for the September 10, 2007 City Council meeting. 
 
• The Planning Commission held a public hearing for this item at the July 10, 2007 Regular 

meeting and recommended approval of ZOTA 230.  
 
• The amendment will permit freestanding towers and antennas on public school and City 

park sites in the R-1A through R-1E and C-F zoning districts.  Additionally, it reduces the 
required setback from five (5) times the height of the tower to two (2) times the height of 
the tower. 

 
• Mike Adamczyk, Assistant Superintendent of the Troy School District, requested a text 

amendment that would permit wireless communication towers on school property.  The 
Planning Commission determined that the same standard should apply to City parks.   

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
• The amendment could open potential revenue streams for school districts and the City of 

Troy.  
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
• City Council has the authority to amend the Zoning Ordinance. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01d



 2

Policy Considerations: 
 
• The proposed amendment is consistent with City Council Goal I (Enhance the livability and 

safety of the community) and Goal III (Retain and attract investment while encouraging 
redevelopment). 

 
 
Options: 
 
• City Council can approve, deny or modify the proposed text amendment. 
 
• No action until public hearing on September 10, 2007. 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Draft ZOTA 230 City Council Public Hearing Draft. 
2. Minutes from July 10, 2007 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
 

Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 

G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 230 Cell Towers on School Property\Announce CC Public Hearing 08 20 07.doc 
 
 



 1

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 230) 
 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 39  

OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Amendment to Chapter 39 
 
Chapter 39 of the City of Troy Code is amended by amending Section X (R-IA THROUGH R-
1E ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS) and Section XVIII (C-F COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES) to read as follows: 
 
10.30.08 Utility and public service buildings and uses (without storage yards) when, in the 

opinion of the Planning Commission, said buildings and uses: 
 
  A. Maintain the residential character of the area, and,  
 
  B. Are located so as not to hinder the natural or presumed development of the 

area, or detract from the value of existing development; and, 
 
  C.  Do not constitute a safety or health hazard, a nuisance, or have a noxious 

effect on the surrounding residential area either due to appearance or 
operations; and, 

 
  D. Operating requirements necessitate the location of such uses and buildings 

within the District to serve the immediate vicinity. 
 

  Such buildings and uses shall be developed according to the following 
standards: 

 
  E. All proposed uses and facilities shall be contained within masonry buildings 

and structures similar to or compatible with buildings in the adjacent 
residential areas. 

 
   (Rev. 10-05-98) 
 
  F. Said structures and uses shall be located no closer than eighty (80) feet from 

any property line abutting a public right-of-way or other residentially zoned 
land, except as otherwise provided in this Section. 

 
   (Rev. 10-05-98) 



 2

 
-------- G.  A landscaped berm at least five (5) feet in height shall be required in 

all yards abutting Residential Districts and/or public rights-of-way. 
Said berms shall be landscaped with a minimum of a double row, ten 
(1) feet apart, of upright coniferous evergreens (pine or spruce 
species, as acceptable to the Department of Parks and Recreation), 
five (5) to six (6) feet in height, twenty (20) feet on center, staggered 
ten (10) feet on center. All required yards shall be further landscaped 
in grass as a minimum. The nature of other screening, fencing, etc., in 
addition to the aforementioned berms, shall be subject to the approval 
of the Planning Commission. 

 
    (Rev. 10-05-98) 

 
  H. Overhead transmission lines and tower structures supporting such 

lines are expressly prohibited from such sites. All lines serving such 
sites shall be underground. 

 
    (Rev. 10-05-98) 
 
   I. Freestanding tower structures and antennas may be permitted only 

on sites which are developed or otherwise committed for use other 
than the construction of one-family dwellings, and shall not be 
permitted on developed City park and public school sites.  

 
    1. The setback for a freestanding tower structure, from an 

abutting residentially zoned or used parcel, shall be at 
least equal to two (2) five (5) times the height of the 
structure. This setback requirement shall not apply to 
sites on which antenna tower structures were 
constructed prior to July 1, 1998. 

 
    2. Actions to approve the construction or placement of 

freestanding tower structures and antennas shall be 
conditioned upon submittal by the applicant of financial 
assurances, in a form acceptable to the City Manager, 
in order to assure that the subject facilities will be 
removed from the site within one (1) year of the date 
that their use ceases. 

 
    (Rev. 10-05-98) 
 
   J. In order to maximize the efficiency of the provision of utility 

services, while also minimizing the impact of such facilities on 
the total community, collocation, or the provision of more than 
one utility facility at a single location, may be required by the 
Planning Commission. In this regard, the applicant may be 
required to provide information regarding the feasibility of 



 3

collocation at proposed sites. 
 

    1. In the case of freestanding tower structures and 
antennas, variations from this collocation direction shall 
be considered only in conjunction with a report from an 
independent qualified and licensed professional 
engineer, indicating reasons why collocation is 
physically or technically not feasible. 

 
  Nothing in these regulations shall be construed to prevent the 

construction, installation and operation of necessary utility and public 
service buildings and uses within the Residential Districts. These 
provisions are not, however, intended to include power-generating 
facilities, bulk power and fuel stations, or other large scale facilities 
which, by their nature and service area, could reasonably be located 
in Non-Residential Districts. 

 
  (Rev. 10-05-98) 
 
 
18.25.02 Publicly-owned service buildings, public utility buildings, telephone 

exchange buildings, electric transformer stations and sub-stations, gas 
regulator stations, and water and sewage pumping stations, without storage 
yards.  

 
  A. Said structures and uses shall be located no closer than eighty (80) 

feet from any property line abutting a public right-of-way or 
residentially zoned land, except as otherwise provided in this 
Section. 

 
  B. Overhead transmission lines and tower structures supporting such 

lines are expressly prohibited from such sites. All lines serving such 
sites shall be underground. 

 
C. In order to maximize the efficiency of the provision of utility services, 

while also minimizing the impact of such facilities on the total 
community, collocation, or the provision of more than one utility 
facility at a single location, may be required by the Planning 
Commission. In this regard, the applicant may be required to provide 
information regarding the feasibility of collocation at proposed sites.  

 
   1. Applications for the placement of freestanding tower 

structures and antennas under this Section, which do not 
involve collocation, shall be considered only in conjunction 
with a report from an independent qualified and licensed 
professional engineer, indicating reasons why collocation is 
physically or technically not feasible. 

 



 4

   D. Freestanding tower structures and antennas may be permitted 
only on sites which are developed or otherwise committed for 
use other than the construction of one-family dwellings, and 
shall not be permitted on developed City park and public 
school sites.  

 
   E. The setback for a freestanding communications antenna 

tower structure, from an abutting residentially zoned or used 
parcel, shall be at least equal two (2) five (5) times the height 
of the structure. This setback requirement shall not apply to 
sites on which antenna tower structures were constructed 
prior to July 1, 1998. 

 
   F. Actions to approve the placement of freestanding tower 

structures and antennas under this Section shall be 
conditioned upon submittal, by the applicant, of financial 
assurances in a form acceptable to the City Manager, in order 
to assure that the subject facilities will be removed from the 
site within one (1) year of the date that their use ceases. 

 
  (Rev. 07-10-00) 
 
 

Section 2.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 

 
 

Section 3.  Severability Clause 
 

Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

 
 



 5

Section 4.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon publication, 
whichever shall later occur. 

 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a 
regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ 
day of _____________, 2007. 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 230 Cell Towers on School Property\ZOTA 230 06 20 07.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 230) – Freestanding Tower 
Structures and Antennas in Parks and on School Property 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the revisions made to the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment relating to wireless communication towers on school property and 
City park sites.   
 
A brief discussion followed.   
 
Ms. Lancaster cited unpublished case law that prompted the proposed ordinance 
text amendment.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-120 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article X (R-IA THROUGH R-1E ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICTS) pertaining to permitting freestanding tower structures and antennas 
in parks and on school property subject to Special Use Approval, and Article 
XVIII (C-F COMMUNITY FACILITIES), pertaining to permitting freestanding 
tower structures and antennas in parks and on school property subject to Special 
Conditions, be amended as printed on the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment.  
 
Yes: Hutson, Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Troshynski 
No: Vleck 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck supports the ordinance amendment but would prefer the fall zone to be 
five times the height of the structure.  He believes a bigger fall zone would give 
the City a stronger public stance should there be objections to a proposed 
structure. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

Ms. Kerwin said the text amendment would be helpful and is responsive to many 
objections voiced by the residents.  
 
Ms. Lancaster confirmed that requests for freestanding tower structures in parks 
or on school property would be required to go through the special use approval 
process.   
 
Chair Schultz stated that City Council would have final action on the proposed 
zoning ordinance text amendment. 
 

 
 



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

August 20, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 

H-1 Charter Revision Committee Referral – 2007-08 Property Tax 
Reduction Requested by Council Member Martin Howrylak   
  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the Charter Revision 
Committee to draft ballot language for City Council consideration to amend 
Section 9.16 of the City Charter to reduce the property tax limit to that which is 
being levied in fiscal year 2007-08. 

 

campbellld
Text Box
H-01



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

August 20, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-01



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – FINAL MINUTES June 5, 2007 

Call to Order 
 
The regular meeting was called to order at 7:08 pm in Conference Room C at 
Troy City Hall 
 
Roll Call 
 Present:  Mayada Fakhouri  Lulu Guo, student 

Reuben Ellis  Helen Yang, student  
Grigore Buia  Tony Haddad  
Gladson Remos Cindy Stewart, Staff Liaison  

 
 Absent: Anju Brodbine 
   Kelly Jones 
   Michelle Haight 
 
 Guests: Karen Yelder 
   Sushma Shrestha    
 
 
Approval of Minutes  
 
Moved by Gladson Remos seconded by Mayada Fakhouri  
that the minutes of May 7, 2007 be approved with one change -  Mayada 
Fakhouri was not at the Troy School District meeting.  Approved unanimously. 
 
New Business 
 

a. Report on Healing Racism:  tabled until July meeting 
 

b. Report on meeting with school district: 
 

Attending the meeting with the school district were:  Michelle Haight, 
Anju Brodbine, Padma Kuppa, Rev. Rich Peacock, Jan Staton, Reema 
Butt, Tim McAvoy, Dr. Fowler, Michael Silverstein, Hailu Robele, Dr. 
Steve Matthews, Cindy Stewart and JesPal Elan.  The following topics 
were covered: 
 
Staff Diversity Training – Such training is past due in the district.  
Training will be offered in 2007-08 for new teachers and mentor 
teachers, and tenured teachers later.  Representatives from Oakland 
Schools have met with Steve Matthews.  Diversity training will be a 
required part of the new teacher orientation.  It will also be a required 
subject in staff meetings, to alleviate the need for substitute teachers.   
 
Student LINC Project – 100 kids participated in 2005-06.  The bottom 
line of the project evaluation was that it needs to be stronger.  In the 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – FINAL MINUTES June 5, 2007 

2006-07 school year, 50 students participated.  They will work with 
mentors/ombudsmen to continue the training.  Kids will create goals for 
their schools and with help from Michigan Roundtable Mentors will 
implement goals. 
 
Resources – Unstructured activities related to diversity and cultural 
awareness:  calendar/fairs (Hamilton), cultural community (Barnard) 
and clubs at the middle and high schools.  Structured activities include 
curriculum guidelines and content review.  Dr. Fowler challenged the 
community to come to schools if a book is incorrect or they have a 
problem with it.   
 
Hiring a diverse population – Very difficult, they would love for more 
people to apply for jobs.  Until a diverse staff is in place, training is 
critical. 
 
TIG – Religious holiday education and policies.  Room to review. 
 
EIA Collaboration – 
A. Diversity Training 
B. Bridging the Racial Divide 
C. Teaching Tolerance 
D. EIAB as liaison 
E. Cultural Diversity Connection newsletter 
 
How to incorporate diversity in elementary schools?  Encourage during 
“all about me” section sharing culture. 
 
Help with translations of website and brochures.  
 
Very difficult to be sure info on web is accurate. 
 
Any parent can review books at school libraries. 
 

c. Bridging the Racial Divide was tabled.  Cindy passed out comments 
from students who attended. 
 

d. Tony Haddad made a motion to change the July meeting from July 3 to 
July 10.  The motion was seconded by Reuben Ellis.  Approved 
unanimously. 

 
 
Old Business 
  

A. Recommendations regarding board vacancies and absences. 
 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – FINAL MINUTES June 5, 2007 

Gladson suggested the following Recommendations to be an advisor & 
Application:  

 
1. Must be a US citizen  
2. Must be a resident of Troy for a minimum period of two years 
3. To be an advisor to a certain ethnic group, the person should: 

a. Belong to a certain ethnic group which does not have more 
than two representatives on the board  

b. Be currently involved with activities of the ethnic group they 
are representing 

c. Preferably be someone who migrated to the US and has a 
good understanding of the ethnic group’s culture they are 
representing 

d. Have leadership qualities and be a team player 
 

4. There must be an equal number of males and females in the advisory 
group. Gender selection is necessary so views of both gender 
perspectives can be shared 

5. Must attend minimum two board meetings 
 

Application for Ethnic Advisory Group 
 

Date:  
 
Name of Person: 
 
Ethnic group representing: 
 
US citizen since: 
 
Troy resident since: 
 
List current ethnic activities: 
 
Other activities: 
 
Briefly state why you would like to be part of the Ethnic Advisory Group. 
 
Signature 
 
Recommended by Board member:   
 
Remarks by Board member:          
 
Yes Recommendation              No Recommendation  

 
 
The EIA Members voted to postpone this topic to the July meeting. 
 
 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – FINAL MINUTES June 5, 2007 

B. Update on Troy Daze – Ethnicity 
 
Applications have been mailed out and we are waiting for returns.  Need 
volunteers to call groups.  Would we charge a school group?  Board said 
no.   Board needs to commit to volunteering at the Troy Daze Ethnicity 
Tent.  Cindy will bring a schedule to the next meeting. 
 
C. Translation of Brochures 
 
Cindy Stewart is waiting for quotes to translate brochures. 

 
 
Member Comment 
 
Tony Haddad voiced a concern with students at the High School speaking 
their language at school and using it to hurt others or using it for Social 
and/or for studying.  Some Staff at school tell students they can only 
speak English.  Is this right?  Reuben Ellis said they would have a problem 
if staff told kids they can not speak their own language.  There just needs 
to be more diversity training.  This is a “freedom of speech” issue.  If 
students are told not to speak their own language, they should go to their 
principal or their parents should to talk to the principal or Dr. Fowler.  We 
can bring this up the next time we meet with Dr. Fowler and ask about the 
school policy.  Cindy will call Tim McAvoy and ask what the school policy 
is regarding students speaking languages other than English during 
school. 
 
Helen will be at a summer program at Michigan State University 
researching environmental science. 
 
Lulu will be at a summer program at Harvard researching molecular 
biology pharmacology. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Karen Yelder is working with Michelle Haight dealing with Athens High 
School staff.  One essay assigned to Karen’s daughter was very 
insensitive to African Americans.  This, along with some literature they feel 
is insensitive, has been brought to the attention of Tim McAvoy and the 
Athens principals.  They’re also working on finding individuals from 
different cultures to apply as teachers.  There are five positions available 
at Athens.  Karen is finding applicants to turn into John Toma, Athens 
Principal.  The school district is serious about finding teachers from other 
cultures.  
 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – FINAL MINUTES June 5, 2007 

Sushma Shrestha, from Nepal, is a Troy resident for nine years with sons 
in kindergarten and sixth grade. 

 
 Adjournment 
 
 Motion to adjourn by Reuben Ellis, seconded by Gladson Remos. 
 Meeting is adjourned at 8:04 pm. 
 
 Next meeting: July 10 at 7 pm. 
 
 

______________________________ 
Mayada Fakhouri, EIA Board Member 

 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, EIA Recording Secretary 

 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
JUNE 6, 2007 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, June 6, 2007, in the second floor Conference Room C at City Hall.  
Buchanan called the meeting to order at  
7:10 p.m.           
 
 
Present:  C. Buchanan, member K. Clark, member   
  A. Done, member  M. Freliga, member  
  C. Geier, member  P. Hammond, member 
  G. Hyun, student  P. Manetta, member 
  K. Mayer, alternate  D. Pietron, member 
  S. Werpetinski, member    
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
    
 
Absent: S. Murphy, alternate  EA 
   C. Weidman, student  UA 
 
 
ITEM III – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF MAY 2, 2007 
Werpetinski made a motion that the minutes of May 2, 2007 be approved.  Supported 
by Pietron; all voted in favor.  Werpetinski moved to excuse Murphy, Done seconded.  
All supported. 
 
 
ITEM IV – SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS 
Mike Harris, Executive Director for the Paralyzed Veterans of America attended our 
meeting.  He has organized a disabilities advisory board in Westland, patterned after 
Troy and Dearborn, but with little success.  Mike allocates much of his time negotiating 
ADA compliance with building owners, attorneys and the courts.   Mike will provide 
standard letters he uses for this purpose.  He also shared a guide from the Department 
of Justice for business owners explaining in simple terms exactly what is necessary to 
become ADA compliant.  Additionally, he brought a book on design changes to make 
homes accessible for the newly injured. 
 
 
ITEM V – UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Pietron made a motion to have nominations for the one year position of Chairperson.  
Pietron nominated Done, supported by Manetta.  Done accepted the nomination.  Done 
then nominated Buchanan.  Clark motioned to vote in August, supported by Hammond.   
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
JUNE 6, 2007 

 2

The new description for this Committee’s member requirements will become an agenda 
item for Council Meeting; this will be followed by a resolution to change the current 
wording.  Werpetinski reported that Council is considering the Committee’s suggestion 
for a resolution to revise the definition of membership as explained in our May 18 letter. 
 
Werpetinski reported that she was contacted by the Director of Sales and Customer 
Service for the Troy Post Office after writing a letter with accessibility concerns.   She is 
currently waiting for a written response. 
 
Done will contact Cindy Stewart regarding adding identification of services for persons 
with disabilities in the index of Troy Today.  
 

 
ITEM VI – NEW BUSINESS 
New members Mary Freliga and Kristin Mayer were welcomed into the Committee.  
Buchanan explained what this Committee has accomplished since its inception. 
 
Werpetinski motioned to send a thank you letter to Mike Harris for attending our 
meeting; Done seconded.  All supported. 
 
Werpetinski motioned to send a commendation letter to Val Pfeifer, Troy High.  Pietron 
seconded.  All supported. 
 
Werpetinski will contact preschool teachers participating in programs at the Community 
Center to remind parents not park on east side of the lot during high traffic times.  This 
would free up space for persons with disabilities and seniors. 
 
Werpetinski made a motion that when new members are appointed in to this Committee 
that Grusnick send a welcome letter along with a brochure, agenda, and member roster 
and possibly minutes from previous meetings.  Werpetinski will draft a letter to be 
approved by this committee.  Done motioned that the welcome packet subject be tabled 
until our August meeting, Manetta seconded.  All supported. 
 
Done reported that a new development located on the K-Mart headquarters property 
has been proposed and  will begin as early as 2008.  Done will contact Ron Figlan, 
Planning Dept., to offer the Committee’s assistance on ADA compliance issues.    
 
 
ITEM VII – REPORTS 
Werpetinski that Kenneth Morrell is suing Troy and the BP gas station at Maple and 
Crooks.  Mr. Morrell is a person with disabilities who requested to have his gas pumped 
and was denied. 
 
Werpetinski reported that Leadership Troy will have a committee to work with 
wheelchair accessibility and lighting issues for passive walkways.  Contact Carol 
Anderson for more details. 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
JUNE 6, 2007 

 3

 
    
ITEM VIII – PUBLIC COMMENT 
None reported. 
 
 
ITEM IX – MEMBER COMMENT 
Hammond reported that Hooters has made several accessibility improvements. 
 
Werpetinski reported that there will be an Expo at the Troy Marriott with vendors and 
workshops on Planning for the Future on June 11 from 8:30 a.m. to 1:00 p.m.  This is 
geared to persons with disabilities or their advocates. 
 
Werpetinski reported that she is researching the usage of HUD money to repair private 
walkways in a senior community located in Troy. 
 
Grusnick reported that Loraine Campbell, Musuem Director, has asked for 2 to 3 
volunteers to contact her to conduct sensitivity training for her staff.  Manetta, Clark, 
Werpetinski and Mayer volunteered.  It was decided to have Clark make the initial 
contact. 
 
Buchanan mentioned that since October is Disabilities Awareness Month that perhaps a 
display of vintage equipment such as wheelchairs, crutches, etc. be displayed at the 
Museum.  Clark will check with Loraine Campbell and report her findings to this 
Committee. 
 
 
ITEM X – ADJOURNMENT 
Done made a motion to adjourn at 9:27 p.m.  Supported by Manetta.   All voted in favor. 
 
 
 
                                                               _______________________________ 
                                  Cynthia Buchanan 
              Interim Chairperson 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
JUNE 6, 2007 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, June 6, 2007, in the second floor Conference Room C at City Hall.  
Buchanan called the meeting to order at  
7:10 p.m.           
 
 
Present:  C. Buchanan, member K. Clark, member   
  A. Done, member  M. Freliga, member  
  C. Geier, member  P. Hammond, member 
  G. Hyun, student  P. Manetta, member 
  K. Mayer, alternate  D. Pietron, member 
  S. Werpetinski, member    
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
    
 
Absent: S. Murphy, alternate  EA 
   C. Weidman, student  UA 
 
 
ITEM III – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF MAY 2, 2007 
Werpetinski made a motion that the minutes of May 2, 2007 be approved.  Supported 
by Pietron; all voted in favor.  Werpetinski moved to excuse Murphy, Done seconded.  
All supported. 
 
 
ITEM IV – SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS 
Mike Harris, Executive Director for the Paralyzed Veterans of America attended our 
meeting.  He has organized a disabilities advisory board in Westland, patterned after 
Troy and Dearborn, but with little success.  Mike allocates much of his time negotiating 
ADA compliance with building owners, attorneys and the courts.   Mike will provide 
standard letters he uses for this purpose.  He also shared a guide from the Department 
of Justice for business owners explaining in simple terms exactly what is necessary to 
become ADA compliant.  Additionally, he brought a book on design changes to make 
homes accessible for the newly injured. 
 
 
ITEM V – UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Pietron made a motion to have nominations for the one year position of Chairperson.  
Pietron nominated Done, supported by Manetta.  Done accepted the nomination.  Done 
then nominated Buchanan.  Clark motioned to vote in August, supported by Hammond.   
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
JUNE 6, 2007 

 2

The new description for this Committee’s member requirements will become an agenda 
item for Council Meeting; this will be followed by a resolution to change the current 
wording.  Werpetinski reported that Council is considering the Committee’s suggestion 
for a resolution to revise the definition of membership as explained in our May 18 letter. 
 
Werpetinski reported that she was contacted by the Director of Sales and Customer 
Service for the Troy Post Office after writing a letter with accessibility concerns.   She is 
currently waiting for a written response. 
 
Done will contact Cindy Stewart regarding adding identification of services for persons 
with disabilities in the index of Troy Today.  
 

 
ITEM VI – NEW BUSINESS 
New members Mary Freliga and Kristin Mayer were welcomed into the Committee.  
Buchanan explained what this Committee has accomplished since its inception. 
 
Werpetinski motioned to send a thank you letter to Mike Harris for attending our 
meeting; Done seconded.  All supported. 
 
Werpetinski motioned to send a commendation letter to Val Pfeifer, Troy High.  Pietron 
seconded.  All supported. 
 
Werpetinski will contact preschool teachers participating in programs at the Community 
Center to remind parents not park on east side of the lot during high traffic times.  This 
would free up space for persons with disabilities and seniors. 
 
Werpetinski made a motion that when new members are appointed in to this Committee 
that Grusnick send a welcome letter along with a brochure, agenda, and member roster 
and possibly minutes from previous meetings.  Werpetinski will draft a letter to be 
approved by this committee.  Done motioned that the welcome packet subject be tabled 
until our August meeting, Manetta seconded.  All supported. 
 
Done reported that a new development located on the K-Mart headquarters property 
has been proposed and  will begin as early as 2008.  Done will contact Ron Figlan, 
Planning Dept., to offer the Committee’s assistance on ADA compliance issues.    
 
 
ITEM VII – REPORTS 
Werpetinski that Kenneth Morrell is suing Troy and the BP gas station at Maple and 
Crooks.  Mr. Morrell is a person with disabilities who requested to have his gas pumped 
and was denied. 
 
Werpetinski reported that Leadership Troy will have a committee to work with 
wheelchair accessibility and lighting issues for passive walkways.  Contact Carol 
Anderson for more details. 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
JUNE 6, 2007 

 3

 
    
ITEM VIII – PUBLIC COMMENT 
None reported. 
 
 
ITEM IX – MEMBER COMMENT 
Hammond reported that Hooters has made several accessibility improvements. 
 
Werpetinski reported that there will be an Expo at the Troy Marriott with vendors and 
workshops on Planning for the Future on June 11 from 8:30 a.m. to 1:00 p.m.  This is 
geared to persons with disabilities or their advocates. 
 
Werpetinski reported that she is researching the usage of HUD money to repair private 
walkways in a senior community located in Troy. 
 
Grusnick reported that Loraine Campbell, Musuem Director, has asked for 2 to 3 
volunteers to contact her to conduct sensitivity training for her staff.  Manetta, Clark, 
Werpetinski and Mayer volunteered.  It was decided to have Clark make the initial 
contact. 
 
Buchanan mentioned that since October is Disabilities Awareness Month that perhaps a 
display of vintage equipment such as wheelchairs, crutches, etc. be displayed at the 
Museum.  Clark will check with Loraine Campbell and report her findings to this 
Committee. 
 
 
ITEM X – ADJOURNMENT 
Done made a motion to adjourn at 9:27 p.m.  Supported by Manetta.   All voted in favor. 
 
 
 
                                                               _______________________________ 
                                  Cynthia Buchanan 
              Interim Chairperson 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



 1 

LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD - FINAL June 14, 2007 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held on Thursday, June 14, 2007 at 
the Office of the Library Director.  Kul Gauri, Chairman, called the meeting to order at 
7:35 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Kul B. Gauri 
   Lynne Gregory 
   Nancy Wheeler 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
           
   Cathleen Russ, Library Director 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given 
 
Resolution #LB-2007-06-01 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Gregory 
 
RESOLVED, That Heather Eisenbacher, Arthi Krishna and Shruthi Subramanian 
be excused. 
 
Yes:  4—Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #LB-2007-06-02 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Wheeler 
 
RESOLVED, That Minutes of May 10, 2007 be approved. 
 
Yes: 4—Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Reviewed Agenda entries 
 
Resolution #LB-2007-06-03 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agenda be approved. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



 2 

Yes: 4—Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS 
There were no Postponed items. 
 
NEW BUSINESS. 
Report on Trustee Association Dinner of June 13, 2007 
Lynne Gregory, Nancy Wheeler and Cathleen Russ attended the Public Library Trustee 
Association of Oakland County Annual Dinner and Meeting on Wednesday, June 13, 
2007. Russ gave a brief report about the event, including the address given by State 
Librarian Nancy Robertson. Libraries will receive their second State Aid check this year, 
but State Aid for FY 2008 is still in question. The State Librarian also discussed the 
proposed consolidation of library cooperatives throughout the State of Michigan. A 
question also came up about changes to the Personal Property Tax, and how that 
would affect libraries. It is always helpful to have the support of library trustees, who can 
often do more good and lobby more freely than library directors and library employees.  
 
OLD BUSINESS 
Library Facility Discussion 
Gauri, Gregory and Russ met with Assistant City Manager John Lamerato and Friends 
of the TPL representatives Maria Hunciag and Mary Kerwin, to discuss next steps in 
investigating the possibility of a new or expanded TPL. Previous approval had been 
granted by City Council to proceed with a needs assessment/feasibility study. These 
studies will show what the options are, and how much they will cost. Russ is working on 
putting together a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) to send to consultants.  
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
Director’s Report. 
Russ reported on her first two weeks at the library. She is very happy to be back at the 
TPL and is enjoying the job immensely. She will be attending the American Library 
Association conference Friday, June 22 to Wednesday, June 27.   Due to progress with 
the RFQ, Russ requested that the Library Advisory Board schedule a meeting in July 
and also in August. Russ will advise the board members if a meeting is or is not 
necessary, with at least one week’s notice.  
 
Board Member’s Comments 
Gauri shared a newspaper article about the proposed new Novi Public Library.  
Zembrzuski asked that it be noted that she had nothing to say this time! 
 
Student Representative’s Comments 
No comments. 
 
Suburban Library Cooperative. 
Gregory informed the board members that Kristen Valyi-Hax is the interim director of the 
Suburban Library Cooperative. Interviews for the director position were scheduled for 



 3 

this afternoon. The cooperative has also hired a new software support specialist 
(Charlie), who replaces Lissa Potter. The SLC Board approved the purchase of the new 
Director’s Station at the last board meeting, as the old module was underconfigured. 
The board also approved the purchase of an authority processing system for the 
automation system. This system will aid in cross-referencing dual references, such as 
Mark Twain and Samuel Clemens. Gregory distributed a document created by a former 
trustee, which explains how a library cooperative works, and answers frequently asked 
questions about library cooperatives. The trustees also discussed the need for Trustee 
Orientation materials for new trustees.  
 
Friends of the Troy Public Library. 
Julie Sigler from the Friends Board told the trustees that the Friends Board meets the 
second Monday of every month, at 9:30 a.m. This is a change from the previous 
meeting schedule. Also, the Friends Board does not meet in July, August or December. 
The Friends are purchasing a laptop, working on putting together a volunteer brochure, 
and have created coupons for the Book Shop and Gift Shop. Also, at the annual 
meeting in May, the Friends’ members re-elected board members to all the positions.  
Russ told the board members about the Friends’ new website (in demo stage currently) 
and showed them the website on her computer. The trustees were complimentary to the 
new website.  
 
Gifts. 
None. 
 
Informational Items. 
June TPL Calendar. 
 
Contacts and Correspondence.    
21 written comments from the public were reviewed. 
 
Public Participation.   
There was no public participation. 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 8:45 P.M. 
 
The next meeting is scheduled for July 12, 2007 at 7:30 p.m. 
 

 
 
 

      _____________________________________ 
Kul Gauri 
Chairman 
 
 

Cathleen Russ 
Recording Secretary 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES JULY 10, 2007  
 

TROY ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD 
TUESDAY, JULY 10, 2007 

TROY CITY HALL - CONFERENCE ROOM C 
 
I. Call to Order 7:06 p.m. 
 
II. Roll Call: 
 

Present:  
Michelle Haight 
Kelly Jones 
Gladson Remos 
Grigore Buia (7:20) 
Mayada Fakhouri 
 Cindy Stewart, City Liaison 
Tony Haddad 
Reuben Ellis (left at 8:35p) 
 
Absent 
Helen Yang  Hailu Robele 
Lulu Guo  Anju Brodbine 
 
Intro: 
 

III. Approval of Minutes – June 5, 2007 
Motion by Reuben Ellis to approve the June 5, 2007 minutes, seconded by 
Gladson Remos.   Approved unanimously with changes to 1st sentence under 
member comment…add: using it for social and/or studying.  Plus pg 3...    
Gladson suggested the following Recommendations to be an advisor & 
Application:  

 
1. Must be a US citizen& a registered voter 
2. Must be a resident of Troy for a minimum period of two years 
3. To be an advisor to a certain ethnic group, the person should: 

a. Belong to a certain ethnic group which does not have more than two 
representatives on the board  

b. Be currently involved with activities of the ethnic group they are 
representing 

c. Preferably be someone who migrated to the US and has a good 
understanding of the ethnic group’s culture they are representing 

d. Have leadership qualities and be a team player 
 

4. There must be an equal number of males and females in the advisory group. 
Gender selection is necessary so views of both gender perspectives can be 
shared 
 

5. Must attend minimum two board meetings 
 

 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES JULY 10, 2007  
Application for Ethnic Advisory Group 
 
Date:  
 
Name of Person: 
 
Ethnic group representing: 
 
US citizen since: 
 
Troy resident since: 
 
List current ethnic activities: 
 
Other activities: 
 
Briefly state why you would like to be part of the Ethnic Advisory Group. 
 
Signature 
 
Recommended by Board member:   
 
Remarks by Board member:          
 
Yes Recommendation              No Recommendation  
 
 

IV. Correspondence / Articles  
“Unlock Life’s Touchiest Lessons – Rochelle Riley, Detroit Free Press July 8, 
2007. 
 

 
V. New Business  

a. Report on Healing Racism Workshop - Tabled to August meeting. 
  
b. Bridging the Racial Divide (May session) Update:  Michelle gave a report on 

the May 22nd session at Walsh College.  There will be another – the final 
segment in the fall.  This is very relevant to our Ethnic Issues Advisory Board, 
but our attendance has been poor.  Why is the Board not engaged in this?  
Reuben: We need diverse groups to attend, but who is the governing body?  
MI Roundtable is facilitating this program.  Where is the power – it should not 
be exclusive.  Michelle said it is backed by Emory King.  Is it just a black and 
white issue?  There are also problems related to Arabic Nations.   But a 
solution must start somewhere.  Largest polarization is black and white in SE 
Michigan.  Kelly – why can’t we attend to learn and grow?  Gladson – I felt 
there was nothing to learn.  I’d participate if there was something to learn.  
Reuben – Black and white is not the issue, it is racism.  Michelle – Then 
Gladson you should be there to give your opinions.  Reuben - I did enjoy our 
diversity training we had here at City Hall.  Why don’t they want feedback said 
Gladson?  Michelle said there are opportunities to provide feedback.  It looks 
bad to have no representation from our Board attend. 

 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES JULY 10, 2007  
 
Michelle asked is there something we as a Board should attend?  If it is not of 
interest, we should step back and let some other groups host this.  Kelly is willing 
to attend and be involved.  It is great when more students attend and give their 
opinions.  Reuben said he might have to take his time rather than speak his 
convictions at the beginning.  He gives as much input, using discretion, balanced 
thinking.   Michelle said we should revisit the point Kelly made about getting more 
students involved, and obtaining their opinions.  We must teach history so that 
history does not repeat itself 
 
Motion by Mayada Fakhouri that the Ethnic Issues Advisory Board host the 4th 
Bridging the Racial Divide in the fall 2007.  Seconded by Michelle Haight.  
Approved unanimously. 
 
Michelle is asking for someone else to be co-coordinator with Barbara Ford to 
help with the school districts & specifically high school principals re: students 
attending. 
 
Flyers will be sent to churches and community groups. 
 
Co-coordinator will also book a room (Walsh College or Community Center) once 
we know the date.  Attendance is approximately 50 – 75 
 
Kelly said we should wait until August and see if we have a date for the event.  
It’s hard to commit if we don’t have a date.  Michelle will call MI Roundtable and 
see if they will give her an idea of the date. 

 
 
VI. Old Business  
 

a. Recommendations re: Board vacancies and absences –  
 
Gladson will email Cindy and she will make hard copies for August meeting. 
 
Kelly would not agree to item C 
“Preferably be someone who migrated to the U.S. and has a good 
understanding of the ethnic group’s culture they are representing.” 
 
Kelly – We should accept anyone representing Troy.  Michelle – I agree with 
Kelly.  It would be on asset, but the person should also be familiar with our 
country and city. 
 
Reuben – you can’t make that a concrete rule, but it would be a plus.  They 
would have a pure understanding of their culture. 
 
Michelle – it’s more important they are involved.  
 
Kelly – but we aren’t picking them, Council will pick them. 
 
 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES JULY 10, 2007  
 
Michelle – I agree they should have a good understanding of their ethnic 
group’s culture but also are involved in community activities. 
 
Change b to: Be currently involved with community activities and/or activities 
from ethnic group they represent. 
 
Michelle still has a concern with 3 C (migrated to the US) 
 
Change c to: Has a good understanding of the ethnic group’s culture they are 
representing. 
 
Board agrees that d. is OK 
 
#4   To promote equal representation gender equality should be considered. 
 
#5   Must attend a minimum of two board meetings prior to recommendation. 
 
Board would like to see any applications that are turned into the city clerk’s 
office. 
 

 
b.  Troy Daze – Ethnicity 

 
Booths committed to date (applications & checks in) are: 
Filipino American Community Council 
Finnish Center Association 
All Nations Lutheran Church—Pakistan 
Troy High School Chinese Club 
Council of Asian Pacific Americans (2) 
 
Verbal commitments: 
Polish 
India (Malini) 
St. George Orthodox Church- Middle East 
Arab American Council (1 day) 
 
Cindy will send application to Ukrainian Cultural Center & North American  
Indians. 
 
Michelle will contact Malini (India). 
 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board Table – Musical instruments from around the 
world.  Kelly has this email for people to send her information re: EthniCity - 
troyethnicity@yahoo.com 
 
Cindy will email Troy Daze schedule to: EIA Board re: Fri/Sat/Sun for 
members to volunteer for Ethnicity.  Kelly suggests the Board members wear 
Ethnic dress if they have it. 
 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES JULY 10, 2007  
 
We also need a world map for people to mark where their ancestors came 
from.  Idea to purchase small American Flags (500 -1,000) to hand out at the 
end of the tent.  Idea for interactive coloring pages for the kids.  Mayada and 
Michelle will coordinate poster contest. 
 
c. Translation of City Brochures – waiting for information and costs. 

 
 
VII. Staff Reports – We received $350 as co-host of Bridging the Racial Divide and  

the Troy Community Coalition also received $350. 
 
 

VIII. Member comment – 
 
Gladson wondered how the Troy School District is recruiting teachers from 
diverse backgrounds. You cannot ask a person’s ethnic background on an 
application. 
 
Michelle shared that Tim McAvoy said they are actively pursuing teachers with 
diverse backgrounds.  Dr. Fowler recently returned from a trip to China where 
the county is also recruiting for classes in the elementary schools. 
 
Michelle will call members who have not been in attendance.  
 
Gladson - we need to appoint a Vice Chair in case the chairperson is not in 
attendance.  This will be on the August meeting agenda. 
 
 

 
IX. Adjournment  

 
 Motion to adjourn by Gladson Remos seconded by Kelly Jones. 
 Meeting adjourned at 9 pm.     

 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
Michelle Haight, EIA Chair 

 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, EIA Recording Secretary 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – Final July 11, 2007 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, July 11, 2007, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI.   
The meeting was called to order at 12:10 p.m. 
 

 
TRUSTEES PRESENT:  Nancy Bowren 
     Mark Calice 
     Michael Geise 
     Thomas Houghton, Chair 
     Martin Howrylak 
     John M. Lamerato 
     William R. Need (Ex-Officio) 
     Phillip L. Nelson 
 
ALSO PRESENT:   Steve Gasper, UBS Financial 
 
   
 
MINUTES 
 
Resolution # ER – 2007 – 07 -  24 
Moved by Bowren   
Seconded by Geise 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the June 13, 2007 meeting be approved. 
 
Yeas:  All  7 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – RETIREMENT REQUEST 
 
Resolution # ER – 2007 – 07 -  25 
Moved by Lamerato   
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
RESOLVED, That the retirement request of Dan Michalec, DB, 5/31/07, 34 years, 8 
months be approved.   
 
Yeas:  All  7 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – ASSET ALLOCATION ANALYSIS 
 
Steve Gasper, of UBS Financial, reviewed our current asset allocation compared to market 
projections for 5 to 8 years in the future. 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – Final July 11, 2007 
 
 

 2

DECEMBER 31, 2006 ACTUARIAL VALUATION 
 
Gabriel, Roeder, Smith & Company will be present at the August meeting to review the 
12/31/06 Actuarial Report. 
 
INVESTMENTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2007 – 07 - 26 
Moved by Nelson 
Seconded by Houghton 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board sell the following investments: 
 
Sell: 10,000 Abercrombie calls @ 75; 
 Omnicare; 
 Websense; 
 15,000 Amgen; 
 First Data at 33.50 and 
 10,000 Amgen calls @60. 
 
Yeas:  All 7 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
 
The next meeting is August 8, 2007 at 12:00 p.m. at City Hall, Conference Room C, 
500 W Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:15 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Thomas Houghton, Chairman 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
John M. Lamerato, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\2007\7-11-07 Minutes_Final.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JULY 24, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on July 24, 2007 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Lawrence Littman 
Mary Kerwin Thomas Strat 
Robert Schultz Mark J. Vleck 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark M. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Jonathan Shin, Student Representative 
Joel Cortright, Student Representative 
Richard Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Chair Schultz introduced and the members welcomed Joel Cortright as the new 
student representative.   
 
Chair Schultz made a statement regarding the importance of reading complete 
resolutions, taking roll call votes and summarizing reports.  He indicated that while 
many Planning Commissioners might find this tedious, others would find it 
informative and it would be easier for television viewers to follow the meeting.  
 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-121 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as submitted. 
 
Yes:  All present (6) 
No:   None 
Absent:  Littman, Strat, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JULY 24, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-122 
 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the July 10, 2007 Special/Study meeting 
and the July 10, 2007 Regular meeting as published. 
 
Yes:  All present (6) 
No:   None 
Absent:  Littman, Strat, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 

There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 
5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 

Mr. Wright presented a report on the July 17, 2007 Board of Zoning Appeals 
meeting.   

 
 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 

Mr. Miller reported that there was no DDA meeting in July. 
 
 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 

Mr. Miller presented the Planning and Zoning Report.  The zoning ordinance text 
amendment and licensing ordinance relating to Adult Business Use were both 
adopted by City Council.   
 
Mr. Miller reminded the Planning Commission that there is a Special/Study meeting 
scheduled for next Tuesday, July 31, 2007 at 7:30 p.m. 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JULY 24, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
 
8. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (P.U.D. #9) – Proposed The Pavilions of Troy 

Planned Unit Development, Northwest corner of Big Beaver and Coolidge, Section 
19, Currently Zoned O-S-C (Office-Service-Commercial), O-M (Office Mid-rise) and 
P-1 (Vehicular Parking) Districts 
 
The City’s Planning Consultant, Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, 
Inc., summarized his report on the Pavilions of Troy PUD, dated July 19, 2007.  The 
report was a continuation of the original Concept Development Plan (CDP) review, 
dated July 3, 2007. 
 
Hunter Richardson and Richard Rattner, representatives of the development team, 
responded point-by-point to concerns brought up by City Management during the 
review process.  
 
The Planning Commission discussed the following issues as relates to the proposed 
PUD.   

o Consideration of public transit. 
o Sustainable design. 
o Traffic impact. 
o Additional need for police and fire protection. 
o Treatment of Phase 1. 
o Potential bridge connection with Somerset Collection. 
o Expansion of parking during future phases if needed. 

 
There was general discussion about the various issues. 
 
Mr. Miller explained the PUD review and approval process.  Specifically, he 
summarized the information required for the three levels of PUD Approval:  Concept 
Development Plan (CDP), Preliminary Development Plan (PDP) and Final Approval. 
 
Ms. Troshynski described performance standards in the Farmington Hills Zoning 
Ordinance and suggested considering similar standards in the Troy Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 

 
STUDY ITEMS 

 
9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-B) – Article 04.20.00 and 

Article 40.66.00, Commercial Vehicle Definitions and Outdoor Parking of 
Commercial Vehicles in Residential Districts 
 
Mr. Miller presented two versions of ZOTA 215-B.  All Planning Commissioners in 
attendance supported the more restrictive of the two versions that would require 
commercial vehicles to be stored indoors.  Furthermore, the Planning Commission 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JULY 24, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

agreed to eliminate the specific appeal process and standards for commercial 
vehicles.  
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
Robert Arking, 4705 Stoddard, Troy, addressed ZOTA 215-B.  Mr. Arking prefers 
the more restrictive version.  He said commercial vehicle owners tend to park their 
vehicles in the wrong spot, and indicated this decreases property values, which is 
not in the public interest. 
 
Tom Krent, 3184 Alpine, Troy, addressed ZOTA 215-B.  Mr. Krent thanked the 
Planning Commission for handling the commercial vehicle issue in a clear, concise 
manner.  He said the elimination of the commercial vehicle appeals process is a 
good way to remove infighting between neighbors. 

 
11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 
Mr. Wright announced he would not be attending the next two Planning Commission 
meetings. 
 
Mr. Hutson thanked Mr. Miller for explaining the PUD process. 
 
Mr. Miller informed members that the August Regular meeting would be observed 
by Zucker Systems, the consultant hired by the City to review the development 
approval permit process.   

 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:30 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Draft\07-24-07 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 24, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on July 24, 2007 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Lawrence Littman 
Mary Kerwin Thomas Strat 
Robert Schultz Mark J. Vleck 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark M. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Jonathan Shin, Student Representative 
Joel Cortright, Student Representative 
Richard Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Chair Schultz introduced and the members welcomed Joel Cortright as the new 
student representative.   
 
Chair Schultz made a statement regarding the importance of reading complete 
resolutions, taking roll call votes and summarizing reports.  He indicated that while 
many Planning Commissioners might find this tedious, others would find it 
informative and it would be easier for television viewers to follow the meeting.  
 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-121 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as submitted. 
 
Yes:  All present (6) 
No:   None 
Absent:  Littman, Strat, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 24, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-122 
 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the July 10, 2007 Special/Study meeting 
and the July 10, 2007 Regular meeting as published. 
 
Yes:  All present (6) 
No:   None 
Absent:  Littman, Strat, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 

There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 
5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 

Mr. Wright presented a report on the July 17, 2007 Board of Zoning Appeals 
meeting.   

 
 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 

Mr. Miller reported that there was no DDA meeting in July. 
 
 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 

Mr. Miller presented the Planning and Zoning Report.  The zoning ordinance text 
amendment and licensing ordinance relating to Adult Business Use were both 
adopted by City Council.   
 
Mr. Miller reminded the Planning Commission that there is a Special/Study meeting 
scheduled for next Tuesday, July 31, 2007 at 7:30 p.m. 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 24, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
 
8. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (P.U.D. #9) – Proposed The Pavilions of Troy 

Planned Unit Development, Northwest corner of Big Beaver and Coolidge, Section 
19, Currently Zoned O-S-C (Office-Service-Commercial), O-M (Office Mid-rise) and 
P-1 (Vehicular Parking) Districts 
 
The City’s Planning Consultant, Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, 
Inc., summarized his report on the Pavilions of Troy PUD, dated July 19, 2007.  The 
report was a continuation of the original Concept Development Plan (CDP) review, 
dated July 3, 2007. 
 
Hunter Richardson and Richard Rattner, representatives of the development team, 
responded point-by-point to concerns brought up by City Management during the 
review process.  
 
The Planning Commission discussed the following issues as relates to the proposed 
PUD.   

o Consideration of public transit. 
o Sustainable design. 
o Traffic impact. 
o Additional need for police and fire protection. 
o Treatment of Phase 1. 
o Potential bridge connection with Somerset Collection. 
o Expansion of parking during future phases if needed. 

 
There was general discussion about the various issues. 
 
Mr. Miller explained the PUD review and approval process.  Specifically, he 
summarized the information required for the three levels of PUD Approval:  Concept 
Development Plan (CDP), Preliminary Development Plan (PDP) and Final Approval. 
 
Ms. Troshynski described performance standards in the Farmington Hills Zoning 
Ordinance and suggested considering similar standards in the Troy Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 

 
STUDY ITEMS 

 
9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-B) – Article 04.20.00 and 

Article 40.66.00, Commercial Vehicle Definitions and Outdoor Parking of 
Commercial Vehicles in Residential Districts 
 
Mr. Miller presented two versions of ZOTA 215-B.  All Planning Commissioners in 
attendance supported the more restrictive of the two versions that would require 
commercial vehicles to be stored indoors.  Furthermore, the Planning Commission 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 24, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

agreed to eliminate the specific appeal process and standards for commercial 
vehicles.  
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
Robert Arking, 4705 Stoddard, Troy, addressed ZOTA 215-B.  Mr. Arking prefers 
the more restrictive version.  He said commercial vehicle owners tend to park their 
vehicles in the wrong spot, and indicated this decreases property values, which is 
not in the public interest. 
 
Tom Krent, 3184 Alpine, Troy, addressed ZOTA 215-B.  Mr. Krent thanked the 
Planning Commission for handling the commercial vehicle issue in a clear, concise 
manner.  He said the elimination of the commercial vehicle appeals process is a 
good way to remove infighting between neighbors. 

 
11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 
Mr. Wright announced he would not be attending the next two Planning Commission 
meetings. 
 
Mr. Hutson thanked Mr. Miller for explaining the PUD process. 
 
Mr. Miller informed members that the August Regular meeting would be observed 
by Zucker Systems, the consultant hired by the City to review the development 
approval permit process.   

 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:30 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Final\07-24-07 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JULY 31, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on July 31, 2007 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Thomas Strat 
Mary Kerwin Wayne Wright 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Mark J. Vleck 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Richard K. Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
David Scurto, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Spalding Clark, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Zack Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-123 
Moved by: Troshynski 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Strat and Wright are excused from attendance at this 
meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Strat, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-124 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as submitted. 
 
Yes:  All present (7) 
Absent:  Strat, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JULY 31, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items Not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 

STUDY ITEMS 
 

4. CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the role of the Planning Commission and emphasized their 
ownership of the Master Plan document.  He indicated that any of the Master Plan 
material could be provided to them in digital form if desired.   
 
Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., introduced the 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates team assigned to the City’s Master Plan task.  He 
gave a brief background of each individual.  Present were David Scurto, Spalding 
Clark and Zack Branigan.  Sally Elmiger was not present. 
 
The first three chapters were discussed.  Mr. Carlisle addressed the roles of the 
Smart Growth Readiness Assessment Tool (SGRAT) and the City’s Vision 2020 
document in the preparation of the Master Plan, and asked for direction and input 
from the members.     
 
Chapter 1 – Introduction (Discussion led by Richard Carlisle) 
 

Points discussed: 
• Comprehensive, policy-rich plan. 
• Relation of finished product with existing Future Land Use Plan map.  
 
Direction from members: 
 Redefine “regional leader for transit”.  

 
Chapter 2 – Troy’s Context:  From Local to Global (Discussion led by Zack Branigan) 
 

Points discussed: 
• Smart Growth Readiness Assessment Tool (SGRAT), City’s Vision 2020 and 

survey responses. 
• Format, color and design theme. 
• Competition among communities; i.e., quality of life. 
• City’s positive resources such as SEMCOG. 
• Transportation and environment – niche areas in which City can excel. 
• Sustainable development – a “broader” concept of sustainability. 
 
Direction from members: 
 Discretionary use of SGRAT and survey results. 
 Focus on art (public art, fine arts, cultural assets). 

 
Chapter 3 – A Place to Learn and Play; The Continued Enhancement of Troy 
(Discussion led by Zack Branigan) 
 

Points discussed: 
• Philosophy of learning. 
• Role of educational and cultural institutions. 
• Quality of life, the knowledge economy and the creative class. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JULY 31, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Direction from members: 
 Place emphasis on cultural assets, schools, public art, and performing arts 

center.  
 
 
Mr. Littman distributed two articles from USA Today relating to pedestrian 
transportation.   
 
Mr. Miller addressed information that would be available on the City’s website; 
i.e., SGRAT findings, reports, conceptual outline, glossary of terms, draft 
chapters, etc. 
 
Mr. Carlisle thanked the members for their input. 

 
___________ 

 
Chair Schultz requested a recess at 8:55 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:05 p.m. 

___________ 
 

 
5. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 232) – Big Beaver 

Development Code 
 
Mr. Miller asked for direction on the approach to work on the Big Beaver 
Development Code and addressed its relation to the existing Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Carlisle addressed the enormous task before the members, the language 
challenge and a timeline for the finished product. 
 
Suggestions from members: 
 More lead-time in delivery of meeting material. 
 Give a heads-up on agendas that contain substantial items. 
 Provide an executive summary. 
 Review one topic per study session. 
 Inform members of responsibilities. 

 
David Scurto of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., addressed: 
• Boundaries – intent to re-define.  
• Design standards. 
• Incentive program. 
• Hybrid codes. 
• Smartzone. 
• Public investment. 
• Administrative procedure and appeal process. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JULY 31, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Direction from members: 
 Provide pros and cons, economic reasoning and maps for re-defined 

boundaries. 
 Provide comparisons of boundaries in relation to design standards. 
 Create a new body for appeal process. 
 Create design standards under one cover with two distinct sections for Zoning 

Ordinance and graphic guidelines. 
 Create user-friendly, active on-line links for design standards. 

 
Mr. Miller discussed the intent and procedure that Zucker Systems is taking on its 
review of the City’s development/permit approval process.   
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

6. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

7. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Littman thanked everyone for his birthday celebration. 
 
Ms. Kerwin announced a fundraiser for the Boys and Girls Club.   
 
Mr. Vleck addressed his interest in working on the Big Beaver Development Code.  
 
Chair Schultz thanked all for a good meeting.  
 
 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:13 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Draft\07-31-07 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 31, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on July 31, 2007 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Thomas Strat 
Mary Kerwin Wayne Wright 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Mark J. Vleck 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Richard K. Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
David Scurto, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Spalding Clark, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Zack Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-123 
Moved by: Troshynski 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Strat and Wright are excused from attendance at this 
meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Strat, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-124 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as submitted. 
 
Yes:  All present (7) 
Absent:  Strat, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 31, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items Not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 

STUDY ITEMS 
 

4. CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the role of the Planning Commission and emphasized their 
ownership of the Master Plan document.  He indicated that any of the Master Plan 
material could be provided to them in digital form if desired.   
 
Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., introduced the 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates team assigned to the City’s Master Plan task.  He 
gave a brief background of each individual.  Present were David Scurto, Spalding 
Clark and Zack Branigan.  Sally Elmiger was not present. 
 
The first three chapters were discussed.  Mr. Carlisle addressed the roles of the 
Smart Growth Readiness Assessment Tool (SGRAT) and the City’s Vision 2020 
document in the preparation of the Master Plan, and asked for direction and input 
from the members.     
 
Chapter 1 – Introduction (Discussion led by Richard Carlisle) 
 

Points discussed: 
• Comprehensive, policy-rich plan. 
• Relation of finished product with existing Future Land Use Plan map.  
 
Direction from members: 
 Redefine “regional leader for transit”.  

 
Chapter 2 – Troy’s Context:  From Local to Global (Discussion led by Zack Branigan) 
 

Points discussed: 
• Smart Growth Readiness Assessment Tool (SGRAT), City’s Vision 2020 and 

survey responses. 
• Format, color and design theme. 
• Competition among communities; i.e., quality of life. 
• City’s positive resources such as SEMCOG. 
• Transportation and environment – niche areas in which City can excel. 
• Sustainable development – a “broader” concept of sustainability. 
 
Direction from members: 
 Discretionary use of SGRAT and survey results. 
 Focus on art (public art, fine arts, cultural assets). 

 
Chapter 3 – A Place to Learn and Play; The Continued Enhancement of Troy 
(Discussion led by Zack Branigan) 
 

Points discussed: 
• Philosophy of learning. 
• Role of educational and cultural institutions. 
• Quality of life, the knowledge economy and the creative class. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 31, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Direction from members: 
 Place emphasis on cultural assets, schools, public art, and performing arts 

center.  
 
 
Mr. Littman distributed two articles from USA Today relating to pedestrian 
transportation.   
 
Mr. Miller addressed information that would be available on the City’s website; 
i.e., SGRAT findings, reports, conceptual outline, glossary of terms, draft 
chapters, etc. 
 
Mr. Carlisle thanked the members for their input. 

 
___________ 

 
Chair Schultz requested a recess at 8:55 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:05 p.m. 

___________ 
 

 
5. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 232) – Big Beaver 

Development Code 
 
Mr. Miller asked for direction on the approach to work on the Big Beaver 
Development Code and addressed its relation to the existing Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Carlisle addressed the enormous task before the members, the language 
challenge and a timeline for the finished product. 
 
Suggestions from members: 
 More lead-time in delivery of meeting material. 
 Give a heads-up on agendas that contain substantial items. 
 Provide an executive summary. 
 Review one topic per study session. 
 Inform members of responsibilities. 

 
David Scurto of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., addressed: 
• Boundaries – intent to re-define.  
• Design standards. 
• Incentive program. 
• Hybrid codes. 
• Smartzone. 
• Public investment. 
• Administrative procedure and appeal process. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 31, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Direction from members: 
 Provide pros and cons, economic reasoning and maps for re-defined 

boundaries. 
 Provide comparisons of boundaries in relation to design standards. 
 Create a new body for appeal process. 
 Create design standards under one cover with two distinct sections for Zoning 

Ordinance and graphic guidelines. 
 Create user-friendly, active on-line links for design standards. 

 
Mr. Miller discussed the intent and procedure that Zucker Systems is taking on its 
review of the City’s development/permit approval process.   
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

6. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

7. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Littman thanked everyone for his birthday celebration. 
 
Ms. Kerwin announced a fundraiser for the Boys and Girls Club.   
 
Mr. Vleck addressed his interest in working on the Big Beaver Development Code.  
 
Chair Schultz thanked all for a good meeting.  
 
 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:13 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Final\07-31-07 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                              AUGUST 1, 2007 

1 
 

The Vice-Chairman, William Nelson, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:35 A.M. on Wednesday, August 1, 2007 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Rick Kessler 
   Bill Nelson 
   Tim Richnak 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ABSENT:  Ted Dziurman 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF JULY 11, 2007 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of July 11, 2007 as written. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Kessler, Nelson, Richnak, Zuazo 
Absent: 1 – Dziurman 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  JANIS P. HANNAN, 6337 EMERALD LAKE 
DRIVE, for relief of the Section R-305 of the 2003 Michigan Residential Code to 
maintain a dropped ceiling height in the basement of 78 ½”, where 84” is required. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the 2003 Michigan 
Residential Code to maintain a basement ceiling height of 78 ½”.  Section R-305 of the 
2003 Michigan Residential Code requires a ceiling height of 84”.  The home in question 
was damaged by water from a broken water pipe.  The damage was such that the 
ceilings and interior finishes in the basement needed to be replaced.  Field inspections 
of the work show that the height of the dropped ceiling is at 78 ½” 
 
Mr. Stimac also stated that field inspections have been made and based on those 
inspections it has been determined that the height of the floor joists is approximately 
85”. 
 
Roy Rockensuess the Contractor for Janis Hannan, and Ms. Hannan were present.  Mr. 
Rockensuess stated that any type of dropped ceiling would bring the height of the 
ceiling down about 6”.  Most of the floor joists were set at a height of 7’, which makes it 
difficult to meet the 84” ceiling height requirement. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                              AUGUST 1, 2007 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked what material the original ceiling was made of. 
 
Ms. Hannan said that everything is exactly the same.   
 
Mr. Kessler asked why the ceiling was not dry walled. 
 
Mr. Rockensuess stated that there are gas lines and plumbing lines in the ceiling.  
Eventually the homeowner would like to add a bathroom downstairs and a dropped 
ceiling will give them access to the water pipes. 
 
Mr. Hannan said that originally she was appealing this height restriction for her mother 
who recently passed away.  She had lived at this address for forty-five years and Ms. 
Hannan thought this would be the best way to fix the water damage. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the existing soffit under the beam was an issue. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that based on inspections, it does not appear that the soffit has been 
modified. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant Janis P. Hannan, 6337 Emerald Lake Drive, relief of Section R-305 of 
the 2003 Michigan Residential Code to maintain a dropped ceiling height in the 
basement of 78 ½” where 84” is required. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Nelson, Richnak, Zuazo, Kessler 
Absent: 1 – Dziurman 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:41 A.M. 
 
 
              
      William Nelson, Vice-Chairman 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 



DATE:        August 1, 2007
TO:            Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager
FROM:       Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued during the Month of July 2007

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Add/Alter 6 $325,250.00 $3,009.00

Sub Total 6 $325,250.00 $3,009.00

COMMERCIAL
Tenant Completion 2 $152,245.00 $1,361.00
Add/Alter 17 $3,299,321.00 $24,807.00
Wreck 2 $0.00 $200.00

Sub Total 21 $3,451,566.00 $26,368.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 4 $1,005,962.00 $7,629.00
Add/Alter 31 $633,840.00 $7,769.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 8 $44,220.00 $930.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 4 $11,699.00 $320.00
Repair 2 $16,100.00 $305.00
Wreck 1 $0.00 $50.00

Sub Total 50 $1,711,821.00 $17,003.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
Add/Alter 8 $28,100.00 $674.00

Sub Total 8 $28,100.00 $674.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 1 $194,000.00 $1,503.00

Sub Total 1 $194,000.00 $1,503.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Satellite/Antennas 2 $45,000.00 $605.00
Signs 30 $0.00 $3,030.00
Fences 16 $0.00 $240.00

Sub Total 48 $45,000.00 $3,875.00

TOTAL 134 $5,755,737.00 $52,432.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF JULY 2007
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 137 $1,370.00
Cert. of Occupancy 30 $1,894.10
Plan Review 77 $3,687.50
Microfilm 29 $283.00
Building Permits 134 $52,432.00
Electrical Permits 271 $13,058.00
Heating Permits 194 $6,890.00
Air Cond. Permits 76 $2,880.00
Refrigeration Permits 1 $50.00
Plumbing Permits 103 $7,433.00
Storm Sewer Permits 16 $737.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 8 $246.00
Sewer Taps 3 $22,042.79

TOTAL 1079 $113,003.39

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF JULY 2007
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 23 $115.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 29 $435.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 35 $35.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 6 $60.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 2 $30.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 3 $30.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 21 $210.00

TOTAL 25 $915.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2006 2006 2007 2007

JANUARY 116 $7,273,163.00 119 $7,595,008.00

FEBRUARY 94 $6,659,691.00 101 $8,056,092.00

MARCH 127 $5,629,425.00 135 $9,204,932.00

APRIL 174 $5,766,996.00 140 $4,844,929.00

MAY 216 $11,290,598.00 170 $11,201,261.00

JUNE 218 $10,681,352.00 183 $6,057,272.00

JULY 198 $11,269,902.00 134 $5,755,737.00

AUGUST 150 $14,170,725.00 0 $0.00

SEPTEMBER 161 $12,827,192.00 0 $0.00

OCTOBER 134 $10,733,680.00 0 $0.00

NOVEMBER 111 $6,690,950.00 0 $0.00

DECEMBER 94 $10,508,219.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 1793 $113,501,893.00 982 $52,715,231.00



2004 2004

6 5 9 6 7
20
30
40
50
60

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2007

6 5 3
9 6 7 4

0
10

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
…

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r



Aug 1, 2007 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF JULY 2007Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter REWOLD, FRANK & SON INC 150 STEPHENSON  1,350,000
Commercial, Add/Alter COLUMBIA CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 370 W FOURTEEN MILE  566,282
Commercial, Add/Alter TRI NORTH BUILDERS 2800 W BIG BEAVER T-235  160,289
Commercial, Add/Alter HEXAGON GENERAL CONTR. INC 4972 JOHN R  129,750
Commercial, Add/Alter L & M CONSTRUCTION 2800 W BIG BEAVER W-314  295,000
Commercial, Add/Alter SACHSE CONSTRUCTION 2401 W BIG BEAVER 200  370,000

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  2,871,321

Commercial, Tenant Completion STELLAR BUILDING & DEVELOPMENT INC 1325 COOLIDGE  112,245

Commercial, Tenant CompletionTotal  112,245

Industrial, Add/Alter REB CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 528 ROBBINS  200,000

Industrial, Add/AlterTotal  200,000

Inst./Hosp., Add/Alter CONTRACTING RESOURCE, INC 44201 DEQUINDRE CARDIAC  194,000

Inst./Hosp., Add/AlterTotal  194,000

Total Valuation:  3,377,566Records  10



 

 
 
July 30, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
    Wendell Moore, Research & Technology Administrator 
 
SUBJECT:   2007 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service Report 
 
 
Background: 
 

 Each quarter the police department publishes a year-to-date report comparing current year calls 
for police service, criminal offenses, clearance rates, traffic crashes and citations issued to the 
same time period of previous year.   

 A spreadsheet detailing the mid-year comparison is attached. 

 The report’s format complies with the National Incident Based Reporting System.  All offenses 
within an incident are reported.   

 Overall, Group A Crime decreased 13.5% (249 incidents) from the 2006 level.   

 Within Group A, the following categories show significant variations from 2006 levels: 
 Breaking and Entering: Down 7.3% (10 incidents) 
 Motor Vehicle Theft: Down 23.9% (21 incidents) 
 Robbery: Down 36.4% (4 incidents)  
 Larceny:  Down 18.1% (140 incidents) 
 Counterfeiting/Forgery: Down 75.0% (39 incidents) 
 Destruction/Damage to Property/Vandalism: Down 25.1% (56 incidents) 
 Drug Narcotics Offenses: Up 11.6% (11 incidents) 
 Fraud Offenses: Up 28.6% (22 incidents) 

 Group B Crime decreased 24.2% (228 incidents).  Significant variations from the 2006 levels 
occurred in the following:  
 Drunk Driving: Increased 10.6% (20 incidents) 

 Total incidents of crime (Group A & B combined) decreased by 17.1% (477 incidents).   

 Clearance rates (the percentage of offenses for which a perpetrator has been prosecuted, or 
positively identified but not prosecuted) continue to be high, 30.7% for Group A Crime, and 44.1% 
for Group B Crime.  In total, 35.2% of all reported crime has been cleared.   

 Arrests have decreased 11.1% (70 arrests) for Group A crime, which reflects the decrease in 
Group A Crime.  Group B Crime arrests increased 15.1% (89 arrests).  Overall, arrests increased 
by 1.6% (19 arrests).   

 Group C (non-criminal) calls for police service increased by 6.7% (1109 incidents).   

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02b



 2 

 Alarms (Burglary, Robbery, Medical, etc.) continue to decrease and are down 7.8% (155 alarms) 
from 2006 levels. 

 Overall, year to date reportable traffic crashes increased by 9.5% (138 crashes) 
 Property Damage crashes increased 9.5% (114 crashes). 
 Injury crashes are up 9.8% (25 crashes). 
 Fatal crashes are down 33.3% (3 crashes in 2006, compared to 2 fatal crashes during the 

same time period in 2007). 

 Overall, crimes and non-criminal calls for police service (including fire calls) are up 3.5% (677 
crimes/calls for service). 

 Non-criminal calls for service comprised approximately 88% of the total calls for service occurring 
in the first six-months of 2007.  This is consistent with previous years. 

 Traffic citations issued increased by 5.9% (418 citations). 
 Hazardous traffic citations issued are up 12.3% (583 citations). 
 Non-hazardous traffic citations issued are down 7.3% (34 citations) 
 License/title/registration citations decreased 14.9% (226 citations).     
 Parking citations increased 24.9% (95 citations). 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 None 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 None 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 City of Troy Goal #1 - Enhance the livability and safety of the community.   
 
 
 



Troy Police Department

Midyear 2007/2006 Comparison
INCIDENTS OFFENSES ARRESTS CLEARANCES

Percent Percent Percent

Group A Crime Categories 2007 2006 Change 2007 2006 Change 2007 2006 Change 2007 Percent

Arson 3 0         + 3 0         + 1 0         + 0 0.0%

Assault Offenses 310 314 -1.3% 313 316 -0.9% 82 85 -3.5% 82 26.2%

Bribery 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0        NC 0 0.0%

Breaking and Entering 127 137 -7.3% 128 139 -7.9% 12 15 -20.0% 11 8.6%

Counterfeiting/Forgery 13 52 -75.0% 14 53 -73.6% 1 8 -15.7% 1 7.1%

Destruction/Damage/Vandalism 167 223 -25.1% 176 243 -27.6% 2 7 -71.4% 3 1.7%

Drug/Narcotic Offenses 106 95 11.6% 152 171 -11.1% 118 121 -2.5% 140 92.1%

Embezzlement 39 45 -13.3% 41 45 -8.9% 24 22 9.1% 14 34.1%

Extortion/Blackmail 1 0         + 1 0         + 0        NC 0 0.0%

Fraud Offenses 99 77 28.6% 103 90 14.4% 18 15 20.0% 13 12.6%

Gambling Offenses 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0        NC 0 0.0%

Homicide Offenses 1 1        NC 1 1        NC 1 0         + 1 100.0%

Kidnapping/Abduction 0 1         - 0 1         - 0        NC 0 0.0%

Larceny/Theft Offenses 635 775 -18.1% 646 783 -17.5% 274 325 -15.7% 233 36.1%

Motor Vehicle Theft 67 88 -23.9% 73 95 -23.2% 6 6        NC 6 8.2%

Pornography/Obscene Material 0 1         - 0 1         - 0 1         - 0 0.0%

Prostitution Offenses 0 3         - 0 3         - 0 3         - 0 0.0%

Robbery 7 11 -36.4% 7 11 -36.4% 7 0         + 2 28.6%

Sex Offenses, Forcible 17 11 54.5% 17 12 41.7% 4 4        NC 4 23.5%

Sex Offenses, Nonforcible 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0        NC 0 0.0%

Stolen Property Offenses 4 7 -42.9% 7 10 -30.0% 4 8 -50.0% 2 28.6%

Weapon Law Violations 5 9 -44.4% 7 14 -50.0% 6 10 -40.0% 7 100.0%

Group A Total 1,601 1,850 -13.5% 1,689 1,988 -15.0% 560 630 -11.1% 519 30.7%

Group B Crime Categories

Bad Checks 24 8 200.0% 26 8 225.0% 4 2 100.0% 3 0.0%

Curfew/Loitering/Vagrancy 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0.0%

Disorderly Conduct 57 118 -51.7% 63 124 -49.2% 14 6 133.3% 15 23.8%

Driving Under the Influence 209 189 10.6% 272 211 28.9% 222 195 13.8% 268 98.5%

Drunkenness 0 5         - 0 5         - 0 0        NC 0 0.0%

Family Offenses, Nonviolent 11 8 37.5% 13 9 44.4% 1 0         + 3 23.1%

Liquor Law Violations 64 42 52.4% 87 67 29.9% 101 90 12.2% 82 94.3%

Peeping Tom 0 3         - 0 3         - 0 2         - 0 0.0%

Runaway (Under 18) 2 8 -75.0% 2 8 -75.0% 0 0        NC 0 0.0%

Trespass of Real Property 6 13 -53.8% 7 13 -46.2% 1 1        NC 2 28.6%

All Other 342 549 -37.7% 389 581 -33.0% 336 294 14.3% 6 1.5%

Group B Total 715 943 -24.2% 859 1,029 -16.5% 679 590 15.1% 379 44.1%

Group A and B Total 2,316 2,793 -17.1% 2,548 3,017 -15.5% 1,239 1,220 1.6% 898 35.2%

Above data includes both completed and attempted offenses.

Y-T-DY-T-D Y-T-D Y-T-D



Troy Police Department
Midyear 2007/2006 Comparison
INCIDENTS OFFENSES ARRESTS CLEARANCES

Percent Percent Percent

Description 2007 2006 Change 2007 2006 Change 2007 2006 Change 2007 Percent

Alarms 1,837 1,992 -7.8% 1,837 1,992 -7.8% NA NA NA NA NA

All Other 15,784 14,520 8.7% 16,034 14,741 8.8% 317 432 -26.6% NA NA

Group C Miscellaneous Total 17,621 16,512 6.7% 17,871 16,733 6.8% 317 432 -26.6% NA NA

Group E Fire Total 58 13 346.2% 58 13 346.2% NA NA NA NA NA

Grand Totals 19,995 19,318 3.5% 20,477 19,763 3.6% 1,556 1,652 -5.8% 898 35.2%

Traffic Crashes and Citations

Reportable Traffic Crashes 2007 Alcohol Involved Crashes

Personal Injury 279 254 9.8% 28 Incidents--10.0% involved alcohol.

Property Damage 1,313 1,199 9.5% 5 Incidents--4% involved alcohol.

Fatal 2 3 -33.3% 1 Incidents--50.0% involved alcohol.

Total Reportable 1,594 1,456 9.5% 34 Incidents--2.1% of all reportable crashes involved alcohol.

Private Property Crashes 477 547 -12.8%

Crashes Grand Total 2,071 2,003 3.4%

Traffic Citations

Hazardous 5,306 4,723 12.3%

Non-hazardous 433 467 -7.3%

License, Title, Registration 1,292 1,518 -14.9%

Parking 476 381 24.9%

Traffic Citations Total 7,507 7,089 5.9%

Y-T-D Y-T-D Y-T-D Y-T-D



campbellld
Text Box
J-02c



















































































































 

 

              CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

August 14, 2007 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
 
SUBJECT:     Final Reporting - BidNet On-Line Auction – Generators, Televisions, 

Display Case, and Vehicles  - May/June 2007 
Background
 

 Resolution #2004-02-075 established the auction fee of 5% and provided approval to use 
Bidcorp, a partner of BidNet, with the provision that other on-line auction service options 
would be considered.  BidNet moved forward and implemented the on-line surplus auction 
service for the MITN System (Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network), which can be 
accessed through the City of Troy home web page. MITN is Purchasing’s official e-
procurement website used for posting bids, tabulations, quotations, and award information. 
It was a Purchasing goal that one e-procurement site would be operational for all functions. 

 
Financial Considerations
 

 In compliance with Resolution #2004-02-075, final reporting is being presented for 3 
generators, 8 televisions, and 9 vehicles, which were auctioned on-line through BidNet. 
The on-line auction for the generators, televisions, display case, and miscellaneous items 
was placed on the BidNet site on May 8, 2007 and closed on June 17, 2007.   The 9 
Vehicles were placed on the BidNet site on June 22, 2007 and closed on June 26, 2007, 
but only 2 vehicles were sold. 

 
Final sale amounts and fees are listed below:     
DESCRIPTION PROCEEDS   SUB-TOTAL NET INCOME
3 Generators, 8 TVs, Display Case, & Misc Items   $2,826.68  
2 Vehicles  (2 Ford Explorers)  $12,600.00  
                                                              SUB-TOTAL:      $15,426.68  
    

 FEES:   
Feature Items  (9 Vehicles @ $5.00 ea)                (-45.00)   
5% on Vehicles               (-630.00)   
5%  (3 Generators, 8 TVs, Display Case, etc.)              (-141.34)   
    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:         ($816.34)  
Sales Tax - +6% (Generators, TVs, etc):              $121.00   
Sales Tax (None on Vehicles):             0.00   
    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:           $121.00  
                                                      $14,731.34 

 
1 of 2 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02d



August 14, 2007 
 
 To: Phillip Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction – May/June 2007 
 
Legal Considerations
 
 Farmington Hills, Michigan was the lead agency for the bid process for an on-line 

auction website.  Resolution #2004-02-075. 
 
Policy Considerations
 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in the 

surplus auction process. (Goal II).  
 
Options
 
 To report final results of May/June 2007 Auctions to City management. 

 
 No action required 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:Agenda-Final Reporting-BidNet On-line Auction –May/June 07  
Prepared by Linda Bockstanz, Associate Buyer 
 

2 of 2 
 





 

 

              CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

August 14, 2007 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director  
 
SUBJECT:     Final Reporting - BidNet On-Line Auction – Computers, Stacking Chairs,  

File Cabinets, and Card Tables  - July 2007 
 
Background
 

 Resolution #2004-02-075 established the auction fee of 5% and provided approval to use 
Bidcorp, a partner of BidNet, with the provision that other on-line auction service options 
would be considered.  BidNet moved forward and implemented the on-line surplus auction 
service for the MITN System (Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network), which can be 
accessed through the City of Troy home web page.  MITN is Purchasing’s official e-
procurement website used for posting bids, tabulations, quotations, and award information. 
It was a Purchasing goal that one e-procurement site would be operational for all functions. 

 
Financial Considerations
 

 In compliance with Resolution #2004-02-075, final reporting is being presented for 31 
computer units, 2 sets of stacking chairs, 6 file Cabinets, and 2 card tables, which were 
auctioned on-line through BidNet on June 22, 2007 and closed on July 27, 2007.    

 
Final sale amounts and fees are listed below:     
DESCRIPTION PROCEEDS   SUB-TOTAL NET INCOME
31 Computers, Stacking Chairs, File Cabinets, etc   $823.52  
                                                              SUB-TOTAL:      $  823.52  
    

 FEES:   
5%  (Computers, Stacking Chairs, File Cabinets, etc.)                (-41.20)   
    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:          ($41.20)  
Sales Tax - +6% (Generators, TVs, etc):              $  49.41   
    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:           $ 49.41  
                                                      $     831.73 

 
 
 
 

1 of 2 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02e



 
August 14, 2007 
 
 To: Phillip Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction – July 2007 
 
Legal Considerations
 
 Farmington Hills, Michigan was the lead agency for the bid process for an on-line 

auction website.  Resolution #2004-02-075. 
 
Policy Considerations
 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in the 

surplus auction process. (Goal II).  
 
Options
 
 To report final results of July 2007 Auctions to City management. 

 
 No action required 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:Agenda-Final Reporting-BidNet On-line Auction –July 07  
Prepared by Linda Bockstanz, Associate Buyer 
 

2 of 2 
 





BRIEF SUMMARY OF PLAN PROVISIONS 
 

REGULAR RETIREMENT (no reduction factor for age) 
Eligibility - T.P.O.A., T.C.O.A. and T.F.S.O.A: 25 years of service; or age 60 with 10 years of service.  Classified or Exempt 
and General Clerical Members:  Age 50 with 27 years of service; or age 55 with 25 years of service; or age 60 with 10 years of 
service.  AFSCME members:  Age 50 with 27 years; or age 60 with 10 years of service.
Mandatory Retirement Age - None.
Annual Amount

 

Division Benefit Supplemental Benefit 
T.P.O.A. 2.80% * FAC to 25 years 

1.00% * FAC 26-30 years 
(75% max of FAC) 

T.C.O.A. 2.80% * FAC to 25 years 
1.00% * FAC 26-30 years 

(75% max of FAC) 

T.F.S.O.A. 2.25% * FAC * Service 0.25% * FAC * Service to age 62 
General AFSCME 2.25% * FAC * Service 0.25% * FAC * Service to age 62 
General Classified/Exempt 2.25% * FAC * Service 0.25% * FAC * Service to age 62 
General Clerical 2.25% * FAC * Service 0.25% * FAC * Service to age 62 

 

Type of Final Average Compensation - Highest 3 years out of last 10.  Some lump sums are included but payment of sick or 
vacation leave is not included.

EARLY RETIREMENT (age reduction factor used) 

Eligibility - Age 55 with 10 years of service. 
Annual Amount – Computed as regular retirement benefit but reduced by 1/2% for each month by which retirement 
precedes age 60. 

DEFERRED RETIREMENT (vested benefits) 

Eligibility - 10 years of service.  Benefit payable at age 60. 
Annual Amount – Same as regular retirement but based on credited service and final average compensation at 
termination. 

DUTY DISABILITY RETIREMENT 

Eligibility - No age or service requirement.  Workers’ compensation must be payable. 
Annual Amount – Same as regular retirement.  Upon termination of workers’ compensation the benefit is recomputed to 
grant service credit for the period in receipt of workers’ compensation.  Minimum benefit is based on 10 years of credited 
service (66-2/3% of final average compensation for non-command/exempt public safety members, while in receipt of 
workers’ compensation). 

NON-DUTY DISABILITY RETIREMENT 

Eligibility - 5 years of service (10 years for Exempt and Classified employees hired after 2/96; 10 years for MAP 
employees hired after 2/95). 
Annual Amount – Same as regular retirement, but with a minimum benefit based on 10 years of credited service. 

DUTY DEATH BEFORE RETIREMENT 

Eligibility - No age or service requirement. 
Annual Amount – Widow’s benefit equal to regular retirement benefit actuarially reduced in accordance with a 100% 
joint and survivor election.  Minimum benefit is 25% (50% for T.F.S.O.A, Command Officers and T.P.O.A.) of final 
average compensation.  If no widow, children under 18 share equally in 25% (50% for Command Officers and T.P.O.A.) 
of final average compensation. 

NON-DUTY DEATH BEFORE RETIREMENT 

Eligibility - 10 years service. 
Annual Amount – Same as regular retirement but reduced in accordance with a 100% joint and survivor election. 
AUTOMATIC DEATH BENEFIT AFTER RETIREMENT:  None. 
POST-RETIREMENT ADJUSTMENTS:  One time increases were granted in 1973, 1977, 1978, 1981, 1983, 1989 
and 1999. 
HEALTH INSURANCE PREMIUM SUBSIDY:  Post-retirement health insurance premiums are subsidized by the 
City as follows: 
T.C.O.A. – 4% per complete year, retired after 7/1/94; T.P.O.A. – 4% per complete year, retired after 2/20/1996; 
T.F.S.O.A.- 4% per complete year, retired after 1/1/99; AFSCME – 4% per complete year, retired after 1/1/01; 
Classified, Exempt, Clerical - $400/month or 4% per complete year, whichever is greater; Retirees from prior provisions 
- $400/month or 3% per complete year, whichever is greater. 
G: my documents\retirement board\retirement board of trustees rules & regs – rolls and reports\summary annual report to members 12-31-06.doc 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

SUMMARY ANNUAL REPORT TO MEMBERS 
DECEMBER 31, 2006 

 
Dear Retirement System Member: 
 
The Retirement System, which is managed by the Retirement Board, is designed 
to help you meet your financial needs should you become disabled, retire or die. 
 
The Retirement Board’s fiduciary responsibility to you is to supervise the general 
administration of the System and invest its assets. Under Act 485 of 1996 we are 
providing this Summary Annual Report. 
 
We have prepared this summary report to give you a brief overview of the 
Retirement System and how it operates. We hope you will find it useful and 
informative. However, a summary cannot cover all the details of the System, 
which is governed by the provisions of the City’s charter, the City’s retirement 
ordinance and the Retirement Board’s official rules and regulations. Additional 
information about the System and its financial operation is available in the City 
Manager’s office. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  

The Retirement Board Actuaries and Consultants 
City of Troy Retirement System  
 • Gabriel, Roeder, Smith & Company 
Martin F. Howrylak, City Council Member  
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager Auditors and Accountants 
John M. Lamerato, Finance Director  
Mark A. Calice, Citizen Trustee • Rehmann Robson 
Nancy Bowren, Trustee  
Michael Geise, Trustee   
Thomas Houghton, Trustee - Chair  
William R. Need, Ex-Officio  

SUMMARY RESULTS OF ACTUARIAL VALUATION 

System 
Retirement  

campbellld
Text Box
J-02f



 
Your retirement system’s financial objective is to establish and receive contributions 
which will remain approximately level from year to year and will not have to be increased 
for future generations of taxpayers. Contribution levels are expressed in terms of percents 
of the city’s active member payroll. 
 
To determine an appropriate Employer contribution level for the ensuing year and to 
gauge how the system’s funding is meeting this fundamental objective, an independent 
firm of actuaries and employee benefit consultants, Gabriel, Roeder, Smith & Company, 
conducts annual actuarial valuations. 
 
These valuations are based on your System’s past experience, information about current 
participation and financial markets, and assumptions concerning the System’s future 
demographic and economic activity.  The results of the December 31, 2006 valuation, 
based on the established funding objective, are summarized below:    
 

            

        Fiscal Year 2007/08 
Employer Contribution Rates 

As a Percentage of Active Member Payroll 
 

Stocks - 67% 

Corporate Bonds - 23% 

Government Bonds - 6%  
Cash - 4%    Member Contributions - Expressed as percentages of compensation: 

1.5% for clerical members, 3.0% for T.F.S.O.A, 1.5% for classified and exempt members, 
1.5% for AFSMCE, 4.0% for T.P.O.A and 4.0% for T.C.O.A. 
 

Funded Status*                                                                              $ Millions 
 

• Actuarial accrued liabilities $119.3 
• Applied assets (market related value) $132.2 
• % funded 110.8% 

 
Actuary’s Opinion 
It is the actuary’s opinion that the required contribution rate determined by the most recent 
actuarial valuation is sufficient to meet the system’s funding objective, presuming 
continued timely receipt of required contributions. 
 
*Percent funded is for pension benefits only.  The City adopted a Health Care Trust Plan 
to provide for retiree health care effective July 1, 2005. 

SUMMARY OF CURRENT ASSET INFORMATION 
 

 

   Revenues & Expenses 
 
 

 2006 
Fund Balance - January 1 $164,292,705 
  

  Revenues
 Member contributions $        308,887 
 Employer contributions 247,688 
 Investment income 14,764,828
 Total $   15,321,403 
  

  Expenses
 Benefit payments $    5,529,394 
 Refund of member contributions 57,875 
 Administrative expenses 32,382 
 Health Insurance Premiums       1,592,311
 Total $    7,211,962 
  
Fund Balance - December 31 $172,402,146 

 
 

Investments 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The rate of return on system assets for the year ended December 31, 2006 was 
9.2%, net after expenses. 

Contributions for General Public Safety Totals 
Normal Cost of Benefits    
   Total 15.39% 23.45%  
   Member portion   1.50  3.96      _____ 
   Employer portion 13.89% 19.49% 16.91% 
Amortization of Unfunded Liability    
    Retired Members and Beneficiaries   0.00 
    Active and Vested Terminated Members   (15.12)
Computed Employer Rate   1.79% 



campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

August 20, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 

 
Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other 
Organizations:  

J-4 No Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from 
Other Organizations  

campbellld
Text Box
J-04



1 8/16/2007 6:54 AMagenda

S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

August 2007
S M T W T F S

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30

September 2007August 2007
Ju

l 2
9 

- 
Au

g 
4

Jul 29 30 31 Aug 1 2 3 4
8:30am Building Code

7:00pm Persons with 

7:30pm City Council-S

Au
g 

5 
- 

11

5 6 7 8 9 10 11
7:30pm City Council M 7:30pm Historic Distri 12:00pm Employee's R

Au
g 

12
 -

 1
8

12 13 14 15 16 17 18
7:00pm Liquor Adviso 7:00pm Ethnic Issues

7:30pm Planning Com

7:30am DDA Meeting 7:00pm Parks & Recre

Au
g 

19
 -

 2
5

19 20 21 22 23 24 25
7:30pm City Council M 7:30pm BZA (Chambe

7:30pm Historic Distri

7:00pm Youth Counci

7:30pm Planning Com

Au
g 

26
 -

 S
ep

 1

26 27 28 29 30 31 Sep 1
7:00pm Troy Daze Ad

7:30pm Planning Com

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

campbellld
Text Box
J-05



2 8/16/2007 6:54 AMagenda

S M T W T F S
1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30

September 2007
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

October 2007September 2007
Au

g 
26

 -
 S

ep
 1

Aug 26 27 28 29 30 31 Sep 1

Se
p 

2 
- 

8

2 3 4 5 6 7 8
City Hall Closed 7:00pm Ethnic Issues

7:30pm Historic Distri

8:30am Building Code

7:00pm Persons with 

7:30pm Animal Contro

1:00pm Advisory Com

Se
p 

9 
- 

15

9 10 11 12 13 14 15
7:00pm Liquor Adviso

7:30pm City Council M

7:30pm Planning Com 12:00pm Employee's R

1:00pm Retiree Healt

7:30pm Library Adviso

Se
p 

16
 -

 2
2

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
7:30pm City Council M 7:30pm BZA (Chambe

7:30pm Historic Distri

7:30am DDA Meeting

7:30pm Traffic Comm

7:00pm Parks & Recre

Se
p 

23
 -

 2
9

23 24 25 26 27 28 29
7:30pm Planning Com

7:30pm Historical Com

7:00pm Youth Counci

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday



3 8/16/2007 6:54 AMagenda

S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13
14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

October 2007
S M T W T F S

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30

November 2007October 2007
Se

p 
30

 -
 O

ct
 6

Sep 30 Oct 1 2 3 4 5 6
7:30pm City Council M 7:00pm Ethnic Issues

7:30pm Planning Com

7:30pm Historic Distri

8:30am Building Code

7:00pm Persons with 

1:00pm Advisory Com

O
ct

 7
 -

 1
3

7 8 9 10 11 12 13
7:00pm Liquor Adviso 7:30pm Planning Com 12:00pm Employee's R 7:30pm Library Adviso

O
ct

 1
4 

- 
20

14 15 16 17 18 19 20
7:30pm City Council M 3:00pm BRA Meeting;

7:30pm BZA (Chambe

7:30pm Historic Distri

7:30am DDA Meeting

7:30pm Traffic Comm

7:00pm Parks & Recre

7:00pm Cable Advisor

O
ct

 2
1 

- 
27

21 22 23 24 25 26 27
7:00pm Troy Daze Ad

7:30pm Planning Com

7:30pm Historical Com

7:00pm Youth Counci

O
ct

 2
8 

- 
N

ov
 3

28 29 30 31 Nov 1 2 3
3:00pm LDFA Commit

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday



campbellld
Text Box
J-06





      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

August 20, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
  
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 

campbellld
Text Box
K-01



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

August 20, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested   

 

campbellld
Text Box
L-01


	AGENDA: August 20, 2007
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1  No Presentations

	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Request for Outdoor Seating Area in Excess of 20 Seats – Mitchell’s Ocean Club 2915 Coolidge (Proposed Address)

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Proposal to Refer Charter Revision – Section 6.2 – Vacancies in Elective Office to the Charter Revision Committee

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Submitted
	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Printing of City of Troy 2008 Calendar/Annual Report
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 7: Proprietary Maintenance Service Contract Bentley Systems, Inc.
	c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications – Troy Daze Electrical Services
	d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Purchase of Firearms Ammunition
	e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Sidewalk Replacement and Installation Program

	E-5 Resolution to Excuse Mayor Pro Tem Broomfield from the Special Joint City Council Meeting of Wednesday, August 1, 2007
	E-6 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Sanitary Sewer and Authorization of Payment for Easement and Temporary Construction and Grading Permit – Patricia Willard-Bonnici Revocable Intervivos Trust and William and Helen Yeyna – Section 6, ...
	E-7 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Water Main – Rochester Professional Building, LLC, Section 3, Sidwell #88-20-03-226-104
	E-8 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Public Utilities – 100 East Big Beaver, LLC, Section 27, Sidwell #88-20-27-101-060
	E-9 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Sidewalk – Troy Long Lake, LLC, Section 15, Sidwell #88-20-15-101-001
	E-10 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed and Five Permanent Easements for Athens Parc Site Condominium – Milano Development, Inc. Section 14, Sidwell #88-20-14-401-006
	E-11 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Storm Drain/Sewer – Norris and Brinda Perkins Reid, Section 4, Sidwell #88-20-04-380-010
	E-12 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Water Main – Suma Medical Properties, LLC – Section 23, Sidwell #88-20-23-401-018
	E-13 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed and Three Permanent Easements for Stone Haven Park Site Condominium – Mondrian Properties Stone Haven Development, LLC, Section 20, Sidwell #88-20-20-226-009, -080 and -135
	E-14 Winter Maintenance Agreement – Road Commission for Oakland County
	E-15 Request for Compensation for a Permanent Easement for Sanitary Sewer and Temporary Construction and Grading Permit – Amina R. Haque Revocable Trust, Section 6, Sidwell #88-20-06-328-008
	E-16 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #42 – Sidwell #88-20-02-279-069- John G. Pappageorge and Dianne Cristina Pappageorge
	E-17 Private Agreement for Clark Gas Station, Maple and Livernois – Project No. 05.916.3

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Downtown Development Authority b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Animal Control Appeal Board; Ethnic Issues Advisory Board; Historic Dist...
	F-2 Bid Waiver – Fire Department Hose Testing
	F-3 Designation of Voting Delegates at the Annual Meeting of the Michigan Municipal League
	F-4 Personnel Evaluation – City Manager Phillip L. Nelson
	F-5 Reconsideration of Resolution #2007-07-205 – Standard 2007 Annual Salary Update for Classified and Exempt Employees and Proposed Changes to Benefit Package and Personnel Rules & Regulations
	F-6 Emergency Purchase of Firearms Ammunition
	F-7 Amendments to Chapter 10 – Employees Retirement System
	F-8 Mobile Windshield Repair

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	Rezoning Application (File Number: Z-727) – Office Use, West Side of Rochester Road, South of De Etta – 6493 Rochester, Section 3 – R-1B to O-1 – September 10, 2007
	Concept Development Plan Approval – Big Beaver Place Planned Unit Development (PUD 8), North Side of Big Beaver, West of John R, Section 24 – Currently Zoned R-1D (One Family Residential) District – September 10, 2007
	Concept Development Plan Approval – The Oasis at Centennial Park Planned Unit Development (PUD 6), South Side of Long Lake and West Side of John R, Section 14 – Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District – September 10, 2007
	Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 230) – Articles X and XVIII – Wireless Communication Towers on School Property in the R-1A through R-1E (One Family Residential) and C-F (Community Facilities) Districts – September 10, 2007

	G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for Placement on the Agenda
	H-1 Charter Revision Committee Referral – 2007-08 Property Tax Reduction Requested by Council Member Martin Howrylak

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1 No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – June 5, 2007
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – June 6, 2007
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – June 6, 2007
	Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – July 10, 2007
	Library Advisory Board/Final – June 14, 2007
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – July 11, 2007
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – July 24, 2007
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – July 24, 2007
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – July 31, 2007
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – July 31, 2007
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – August 1, 2007

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of July, 2007
	Police Department – 2007 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service Report
	City of Troy Employees Retirement System Forty-Third Annual Actuarial Valuation – December 31, 2006
	Purchasing Department – Final Reporting BidNet On-Line Auction – Generators, Televisions, Display Case, and Vehicles – May/June, 2007
	Purchasing Department – Final Reporting BidNet On-Line Auction – Computers, Stacking Chairs, File Cabinets, and Card Tables – July, 2007
	City of Troy Retirement System – Summary Annual Report to Members – December 31, 2006

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Thanks to Carol Anderson from Bethany Mosshart Regarding the Parks and Recreation Staff and Activities
	Telephone Call to Police Staff from Rosanne MecIsaac Regarding Assistance Received from Officer Kris Maczka

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission – Notice of Hearing for Gas Customers of Consumers Energy Company Case No. U-14716-R

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested

	ADJOURNMENT



